m RUCHI INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

101, The Horizon, 1st Floor, Nath Mandir Road,
11/5, South Tukoganj, Indore - 452 001 (M.P))
Tel.:91-731-4755209, 4755227

CIN - L65990MH1984PLC033878

RIL/2020 7" February, 2020

BSE Litd.

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Tower,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai — 400 001

Dear Sirs,

Sub.: Updation of Corporate Information on BSE Portal

We may mention that the main object/business of the Company is storage and
warehousing of liquid elements/agri commodities but the corporate information of the
Company i.e. type of industry is showing “Edible Oils” instead of “Storage and
Warehousing” on BSE Portal (please refer Annexure attached herewith). Copy of the
Memorandum of Association and 35™ Annual Report of the Company are also attached
herewith for your reference.

Therefore, we request you to update/correct the corporate information details as referred
above on the portal of BSE.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,
For Ruchi Infrastructure Ltd.

Wik

AshiNehta
Company Secretary

Encl: As above

Regd. Office : 706, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021 Phone : +91 - 22 - 49712050
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Corporate information

Security Details

ISIN INE413B01023

CIN 1.65990MH1984PLC033878
industry Edible Qils

Impact Cost 3.68%

BC/RD BC 21/09/2015-23/09/2015
Market lot 1

Listing Date 15-03-1985

Board of Directors

Name Designation
Mr. Krishna Das Gupta Non-Executive - Independent Director

Mr. Narendra Kumar Shah Executive Director

Ravindra Kakani Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. Ruchi Joshi Non-Executive - Independent Director

Mr. Mohan Das Kabra Non-Executive - Independent Director
Ashish Mehta Company Secretary And Compliance Officer

Registered Office Address

706, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400021
Tel.: 022-49712051,

Fax. : 022-22043397,

ruchiinfrasecretarial@ruchiinfrastructure.com;
ashish_mehta@ruchiinfrastructure.com
(mailtorruchiinfrasecretarial@ruchiinfrastructure.com;
ashish_mehta@ruchiinfrastructure.com)

Website  www.ruchiinfrastructure.com

: (http://www.ruchiinfrastructure.com)
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

Ne. 33278 of 1984

1 hereby certify that COLUMBIA LEASING & FINANCE
11D. is this day incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956 ( No. 1 of 1956 ) and that the

Company is limited.

Given ander my hand at BOMBAY this
TWENTYEIGHTH day of AUGUST One Thousand
Nine Hundred and EIGHTYFOUR.

B,
The Jagl of The Ruigintam of Y. ODVINDAN
Comparees Maharsahba Rigiarar of Compuankeg
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CIRTINCATE FOR COMMENCEMENT OF BOSINESS

Porsuset of Esction 1493} of ihve Companles dct, TIEE

1 FERERY CERTIFY THAT THE COLUAMBMA LEASING & FINARCE LTD.
WHICH WAS INCORPORATED UNDER THE COMPAMIES AO0T, 1955 ON THE
TWERTYEIGHTH DAY OF AUGUST 1384, AND WHICH HAS THIS DAY FILED A
DULY VERIFIED DECLARATION IN THIS PRESCRIEED FORM THAT THE CON-
DITIONS QF SECTION 14WINA) TO (C) OF THE SALD ACT, HAVE BEEN COMP-
BED WITH 18 ENTITLED TO COMMENCE BUSINESS.

GIYEN UNDER MY HAND AT BOMBAY THIS FIETH DAY OF
OCTORER ONE THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED AND EMIHTYSOURN.
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GOVERNMENT OF INDIA - MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS
Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai

SECTION 18(1)(A) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Ceriificate of Registration of the Special Resolution Confirming Alteration of Object

Clause(s)
Corporate Idantity Number : LESSS0MH1884PLCO33ETE

The share holders of M/is RUCH! INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED having passed Special Resolullon in the
AnnualExtra Ordinary General Meeting held on  28/08/2010 altered the provisions of its Memorandum of
Assoclation with respect o its objects and compliad with the Section (18)(1) of the Companies Act, 1956 (No. 1 of

1858).

| heraby carlify that the said Spacial Resclulion together with the copy of the Memorandum of Association as
aliered has this day been reglsterad.

Given under my hand at Mumbal this Elaventh day of Oclobar Twa Thousand Ten .

{RAJENDER SINGH MEEMA)

TETHF T g/ Asslstant Registrar of Companies

e, gy
Maharashira, Mumbai

p—_— witrrE & Sraier AER § SUeE TEI 9T T

Madng Address as per record available in Regisirar of Companies offica:
RUCH! INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

TOE TULSIANI CHAMBERSNARIMAKN POINT, MUMBAL - 40001,
Maharashtra, IMDIA
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*1.

*2.

*3.

THE COMPANIESACT, 1956
PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
M emor andum Of Association

of

RUCHI INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

The name of the company is "RUCHI INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED”.

The Registered Office of the company will be situate in State of Maharashtra.

The objects for which the company is established are :

MAIN OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS INCORPORATION ARE :

To generate electrical power by conventional, non-conventional methods by solar, wind, tidal waves
and any other non-conventional method as may be developed from time to time and to promote,
own, acquire, erect, construct, establish, maintain, improve, develop, manage, operate, alter, carry
on, control, take on hire/lease power plants, solar and wind farms, co-generation power plants,
energy conservation projects, power houses, hydro power projects, thermal power projects, trans-
mission and distribution systems for generation, distribution, transmission and supply of solar,
wind and electrical energy and buy, sell, supply, exchange, market and deal in solar, wind and
electrical power, energy to the State Electricity Board, State Government, Appropriate Authorities,
licensee, specific industrial units and other consumer for industrial, commercial agriculutral,
househod and any other purpose in India in any area to be specified by the State Government,
Centra Government, Local Authority, State Electricity Boards and any other competent authority in
accordanace with the provisions of Indian Electricity Act, 1910 and/or Electricity (Supply) Act, 1948
or any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof and rules made thereunder.

To establish, organize, manage, run, charter, maintain, conduct, contract, develop, handle, own,
operate, undertake, and carry on the business of setting up of liquid/solid storage tank, warehousing
and logistics services as operators, transporters, agents, carriers, charterers in all its branches on
land, air, water & space for letting out on rent, warehousing, transporting goods, articles or things
on all routes and lines through all sorts of carriers and to act as commission agent, booking agent,
indenting agent, fleet owners, garage owners, warehouse owners, depot owners, service station
owners, cargo superintendents, cargo owners, stevedore, loading and unloading contractors, cart-
age contractors, C & F agent, ropeway owners, liaisoners and to do all incidental acts and things
necessary for the attainment of the above objects.

To purchase, take on lease, acquire in exchange or otherwise own, hold, occupy, management control,
construct, erect, alter, develop, pull down improve, repair, renovate, work, build, plan, lay out sell,
transfer, mortgage, charge, assign, let out, hire, sub-let, sub-lease, all types of lands, plots buildings,
hereditaments, bunglows, quarters, offices, flats, chawls, warehouses, godowns, shops, stalls,
markets, houses, structures, undertaking, constructions, tenaments, roads, bridges, forests, estates,
assets and properties, moveable or immovable freehold or lease-hold of whatever nature and
descripton and where situate and to carry on the business of builders, contractors, dealers in and
construction of complexes, malls and to own, buy, sell, possess, develop, construct, rebuild,
maintain, rent, lease, alter, repair, renovate, develop or otherwise deal in highways, flyover,
runways, docks, dams, canals, ports or any other infrastructure projects and to deal, sale, manage,
lease operate and run the infrastructure so developed on build, operate, own or lease and/or transfer
basis and buy and sell immovable property of any tenure and any interest therein and to create an
interest.

Altered vide Special Resolution dated 26 August, 2010.
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(B)

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

THE OBJECTS INCIDENTAL OR ANCILLARY TO THE ATTAINMENT OF THE ABOVE MAIN
OBJECTS ARE:

To carry out financing operations and perform financing services including factoring, making of
loans, both short and long term with provision for computer software.

To purchase, lease, exchange or otherwise acquire land, building and other immovable properties of
any type or description and rights connected with the land and turn the same into account in any
manner, whatsoever, and in particular by preparing building sites, opening road and by
constructing, altering, improving decorating, furnishing and maintaining offices, flats, houses,
shops, buildings etc, and by connecting or sub-dividing properties and by leasing or disposing off
the same.

To carry on all kinds of promotion business and in particular to take part in the formation, supervision
or control of business or operations of any company undertaking or firm and for that purpose to
appoint and remunerate any directors, accountants, or other experts or agents and also to join any
partnership firm as partner or otherwise on profit sharing basis or on any mode of distribution of
profits.

To enter into, make perform contracts of every kind and description, agreements and arrangements
with any person, firm, association, corporation, municipality, country, state body or government
or colony or dependency thereof.

To purchase or otherwise acquire and to take over by any method competent in law the whole or
any part of the goodwill, business, undertaking, property, assets and liabilities of any company,
society partnership or persons and to conduct develop and carry on or liquidate and wind up any
such business and purchase and take steps for acquisition of existing and new licence in connection
with any such business.

To buy, sell, exchange, export, alter, improve, manipulate, prepare for market and otherwise deal in
all kinds of plant, machinery, apparatus, tools, spare parts, utensils, receptacles, substances,
materials, all products, merchandise articles and things necessary or convenient for carrying on
any of the business or processes of the company usually dealt in by persons engaged in the like
business or process.

To buy, sell, manufacture, refine, manipulate, import and deal in substances, apparatus and things
capable of being used in any business of the company or required by any customers or persons
having dealing with the company.

To repair, alter, remodel, clean, renovate, convert, manipulate and prepare for re-sale and resell any
goods from time to time belonging to the company.

To adopt such means of making known and advertising the business and products of the company
as may seem expedient.

To apply for, purchase or otherwise acquire any patents, brevets invention, licences, concessions
and the like conferring any exclusive or non-exclusive or limited right to use, or any secret or other
information as to invention which may seem capable of being used for any of the purposes of the
company.

To employ experts to investigate and examine into the condition, prospects, value, character and
circumstances of any business concern and undertaking and generally of any assets, property or
light including that of the company.

To purchase, take on lease or licence or in exchange, hire or otherwise any real/or personal property
and any rights or privileges which the company may think necessary and convenient for the
purpose of its business or may enhance the value of any other property of the company, and in
particular any land (free-hold, lease-hold or other tenure) building, easement, machinery, plant
and stock in trade and on such lands to erect buildings factories, sheds, godowns or other structures
for the works and purpose of the company and also for the residence and amenity of its employees,
staff and other workmen and erect and install machinery and plant and other equipments deemed
necessary or convenient or profitable for the purposes of the company and either to retain any
property to be acquired for the purposes of the company’s business or to turn the same to account
as may seem expedient.

To acquire, build, construct, maintain, enlarge, pull down, remove or replace, improve or develop
and to work, manage and control and buildings offices, factories, mills foundries, refineries, furnaces,

(2)



17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22,

23.

24,

godowns, warehouses, shop machinery, engines, railway, tramways, roadways, or other means of
transport sidings, bridges, reservoirs, dams, water-courses, water systems, wharves, electrical
works, power stations, cable wires, lines, gas works or works-operated by any other kind of power
and also such other machinery, equipment, conveyances which may directly or indirectly to advance
the interests of the company and to subsidise, contribute to or otherwise assist or take part in doing
any of these and/or to join with any other person or company or with any government or
government authority in doing any of the above things.

To sink wells and shafts and to make, build and construct, lay down and maintain reservoirs,
waterworks, cisterns, culverts, filter beds, main and other pipes and appliances and to excute and
do all other works and things necessary or convenient for obtaining, storing, selling, delivering,
measuring and distributing water for the purpose of the company.

To let on lease or hire-purchase system or to lead or otherwise dispose of any property belonging to
the company and to finance the purchase of any article or articles, made by the company, by way of
loans or by the purchase of any such article or articles, and the letting thereof on the hire purchase
system or otherwise howsoever.

To sell, lease, surrender, hypothecate, mortgage, pledge, underlet, redeem, dispose, exchange or
otherwise deal with all or any part of the property, assets, rights or undertaking of the company on
any terms and conditions which may be considered expedient or desirable and for such consideration
as the company may think fit and in particular for shares, debentures or securities of any other
company whether or not having objects altogether or in part similar to those of this company and
to hold, deal with or dispose of any consideration so received.

Subiject to the provisions of the companies Act, 1956 to amalgamate, enter into partnership or into
any arrangement for sharing profits, union of interests, cartels, cooperation, joint adventure or
reciprocal adventure or reciprocal concession for limitting competition with any person or persons,
firm or company or body corporate carrying on or engaged in or about to carry on or engage in any
business or transaction which the company is authorised to carry on or engage in or which can be
carried on in conjunction therewith or which is capable of being conducted so as directly or indirectly
to be if it the company, and to lend money, to guarantee the contracts of or otherwise assist or
subsidise any such company or persons and to take or otherwise acquire shares and securities of
any such company and to sell, hold, reissue with or without guarantee or otherwise deal with the
same and to give to any person or company special rights or privileges in connection with control
over such company.

To purchase or otherwise acquire and undertake the whole or any part of the business, property,
rights and liabilities of any person, firm or company carrying on or proposing to carry on any
business which this company is authorised to carry on, or possessed of property or rights suitable
for any of the purposes of the company or which can be carried on in conjunction therewith or
which is capable of being conducted so as directly or indirectly to benefit the company and to
conduct, make or to carry into effect any arrangements in regard to the winding up of the business
of any such person, firm or company.

To establish or promote or concur or be interested in establishing or promoting any company or
companies for the purpose of acquiring by purchase, exchange or otherwise all or any of the property;,
rights and liabilities of the company or for any other purpose whatsoever and to transfer to any
such company any property of this company and to place or guarantee the placing of underwrite,
subscribe for or otherwise acquire all or any part of the shares, debentures or other securities of any
such other company and to subsidise or otherwise assists any such other company for any purpose
which may seem directly or indirectly calculated to benefit this company.

To pay for any property or rights acquired by the company either in cash or by the allotment of
fully or partly paid up shares of this company with or without preferred rights in respect of
dividends or repayment of capital or otherwise or by any securities which the company has power
to issue or partly in one mode and partly in another and generally on such terms as the company
may determine.

To acquire, hold, renew, use, sell, assign, lease, grant licences, mortgage, pledge or otherwise dispose
of in any part of the world any patents, patent rights, designs, licences and privileges, inventions,
improvements and processes, copy-right, trademarks, trade names, concessions, protections,
formulas brevets, designs, and the like conferring any exclusive or non-exclusive or limited rights

(3)



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

to their use or any secret or other intormation as to any purposes of the company, or the acquisition
of which may seem calculated directly or indirectly to benefit the company and to use, exercise,
develop, or grant licences in respect of or otherwise turn to account the property, rights, or
information so acquired and to assist encourage and expend money in experimenting upon, testing
or improving any such patents, inventions or rights.

To acquire, hold, use, sell, assign, lease, grant any contracts or concessions or in relation to the
supply and sale of any minerals, metals, products or other substances, materials, articles or things
or equipments for or in relation to the construction, execution, carrying out, improvement,
administration or control of any works and conveniences required for the purposes of carrying out
any of the business which the company is entitled to carry on and to undertake execute, carry out,
dispose of, or otherwise turn to account such contracts or concessions.

To enter into any arrangement with any government or authority, central, state of public body, or
person of firm or any private individual, local or foreign that may seem conductive to the companies
objects or any of them and to obtain from any such government, authority, person or company any
concessions, grants, decrees, rights, charters, contracts, licences, power and privileges, whatsoever
which may seem to the company capable of being turned to account or which the company may
think directly or indirectly coductive to any of its objects or capable of being carried on in connection
with its business and to work, develop, carry out, exercise and turn to account the same.

To apply for, promote and obtain any act of parliament, charter, privileges, concessions, licence or
authorisation of any government state or municipality, provisional order or licence of any authority
for enabling the company to carry any of its objects into effect or for extending any of the powers of
the company or for effecting any modification of the constitution of the company or for any other
purpose which may seem expedient and to oppose any proceedings or applications which may
seem calculated, directly of indirectly to prejudice the interest of the company.

To establish and support, or aid in the establishment and support of hospitals, schools, colleges,
associations, clubs, institutions, provident funds and trust and conveniences calculated to assist
the company in the conduct of its business or to benefit director, agents, employees or ex-employees
of the company or in predecessors in business of the dependents or connections of such persons and
to grant annuities, bonuses, pensions and allowances and to make payment towards insurance and
to subscribe, donate or guarantee money for charitable, religious or benevolent or any other objects
beneficial to company or public or for any exhibition or for any general or useful objects or for any
other purposes which the directors may consider reasonable.

To acquire from any person, firm or body corporate whether in India or elsewhere, technical
information, know-how processes, engineering manufacturing and operating data, plants, layouts
and blue prints useful for the design, erection and operation of plant required for any of the business
of the company and to acquire any grant or licence and other rights and benefits in the foregoing
matters and things.

To make donations to such persons or institutions in cash or any other assets as may be thought
directly or indirectly conductive to any of the company’s objects or otherwise expedient and in
particular to remunerate any person or corporation introducing business to this company and also
subscribe, contribute or otherwise assist or guarantee money for charitable, scientific, religious or
benevolent objects, or for any exhibition or for any public, general or other objects, but not intended
to serve any political party or purpose.

To establish and maintain or procure the establishment and maintenance of any contributory or
non-contributory provident, pension or super annuation, gratuties and/or other funds for the benefit
of and give or procure the giving of donations, gratuties, pensions, allowances or emoluments to
any company or of any company, which is a subsidiary of the company or is allied to or associated
with the company or with any such subsidiary company, or who are or were at any time the
directors or officers of the company or any such other company as aforesaid, and the wives, widows,
families and dependents of any such persons, and also establish and subsidise and subscribe to any
institutions, associations clubs or funds calculated to benefit or advance the interest and well being
of the company or of any such other company as aforesaid and make payments to or towards the
insurance of any such person as aforesaid and to any of the matters aforesaid either alone or in
conjunction with any such other company as aforesaid.
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32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

To give to any officers, servants, or employees of the company any shares or interest in the profits
of the company’s business or any branch thereof and whether carried on by means or through the
agency of any subsidiary company or not and for that purpose to enter into any arrangements,
which the company may think fit.

To train or pay for the training in India or abroad of any of the company’s employees or any
candidate in the interest of or for furtherance of the company’s objects.

To provide residential and/or sleeping accommodation for workmen and others and to afford facilities
and conveniences for washing, bathing, cooking, reading writing and facilities for the purchase,
sale and consumption of provisions, and for the safe custody of goods for the welfare of the workmen
and others.

To refer or agree to refer any claim, demand, dispute or any other questions by or against the
company or in which the company is interested or concerned and whether between the company
or in the members of his or their representatives or between the company and third parties, to
arbitration in India or at any place outside India and to observe and perform and to do all acts,
deeds, matters and things to carry out or enforce the awards.

To pay out of the funds of the company all costs, charges and expenses which the company may
lawfully pay with respect to the promotion, formation and registration of the company and/or the
issue of its capital or which the company shall consider to be preliminary expenses including
therein the cost of advertising, printing and stationery, commission for obtaining application for
taking, placing or underwriting or procuring the underwriting of shares, debentures or other
securities of the company and expenses attendant upon the formation of agencies, branches and
local boards.

Upon any issue of shares, debentures or other securities of the company to employ managers,
brokers, commission agents and underwriting and to provide for the remuneration of such persons
for their services by payments in cash or by the issue of shares, debentures or other securities of the
company or by the granting of option to take the same or in any other manner allowed by law.

(@) Subject to the provisions of the Act, to borrow or raise money or to receive money or deposit or
loan at interest or otherwise in such manner at the company may think fit and in particular by
the issue of promissory notes, bills of exchange and/or debentures, or debenture stock (perpetual
or otherwise) and/or other bonds whether convertible into shares of this or any other company
or not and to secure the re-payment of any such money borrowed, raised or received, or owing
by mortagage, pledge, charge or lien upon all or any of the property, assets or revenue of the
company (both present and future) including its uncalled capital and to give the lenders or
creditors the power of sale and other powers as may seem expedient and to purchase, redeem
or pay off any such securities and also by a similar mortgage, charge or lien to secure and
guarantee the performance by the company or other person, firm or company or any obligation
undertaken by the company or any other person, firm or company as the case may be.

(b) To borrow or take loans from individuals, firms, companies, corporations, financing houses,
government and semi-government institutions and to secure repayment thereof in such manner
as may be thought fit subject to Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and directives of R.B.I.

(c) Toissue and deposit any securities which the company has power to issue by way of mortgage
or charge to secure any sum less than the nominal amount of such securities and also by way
security for the performance of any contracts or obligations of the company.

(@) To lend and advance money or to give credit to such persons or companies and on such terms
as may seem expedient and in particular to customers and others having dealings with the
company and to guarantee the performance of any contract or obligation and the payment of
money of or by any such persons or companies and generally to give guarantee and indemnities
provided company shall not do any banking business as defined under the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949.

(b) To guarantee or become liable for the payment of money due and that may become due by or for
the performance of any obligations and in particular of any company of which this company is
the agent and severally to carry on and transact every kind of guarantee and indemnity business
and to undertake and execute all kinds of trust and obligations only in connection with the
business of the company.
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41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

(c) To guarantee the payment of any secured or unsecured money payable to a bank, firm or
person, or a company under or in respect of promissory notes, bonds, debentures, contracts,
mortgages, charges, obligation instruments and securities of any company whether incorporated
or not and to become sureties for the performance of the same.

To issue or guarantee the issue of or the payment of interest on the shares; debentures, or other
securities or obligations of any subsidiary company and to pay or provide for brokerage, commission
and underwriting in respect of any such issue.

(@) To lend, invest and deal with the money of the company either with or without interest or
security upon such terms and conditions and manner as may from time to time be determined.

(b) To invest any moneys of the company in such investments as may be thought proper and to
hold, sell or otherwise deal with such investment.

To take or concur in taking all such steps and proceedings as may seem best calculated to uphold
and support the credit of the company and to obtain and justify public confidence and to avert or
minimise financial disturbances which might effect the company.

To confer upon any encumbrancer or trustee for any encumbrances or uncalled capital such powers
of making and enforcing calls and of voting the transfer of shares not fully paid up as may be
thought fit.

To draw, make, accept, hold, endorse, discount, execute and issue and negotiate bills of exchange,
hundies, bills of lading, promissory notes, warrant, debentures and other negotiable or transferable
instruments or securities.

To commence, prosecute, enforce, defend, answer, oppose compromise, refer to arbitration, submit
to judgement proceed to judgement and execution or become non-suited in any action or proceeding
whether civil, criminal political, administrative or revenue, or proceedings including writ
proceedings under Constitution of India and also to enforce by execution,attachment, distress, suit
or otherwise any decree or award in its favour and to defend or to resist any proceedings to retain,
employ, engage and remunerate advocates, attorney, vakills and pleaders and to give necessary
authority and to revoke such retainers and authorities from time to time as its pleasure.

To subsidise, assist and guarantee the payment of money or for performance of any contract,
engagement of obligations by any person or company and in particular, customers of the company
or any person or company with whom the company may have or intend to have business relations.

To vest any real or personal property, rights or interests acquired by or belonging to the company
in any person or company on behalf of or for the benefit of the company and with or without any
declared trust in favour of the company.

To act as agents or brokers and as trustees and to undertake and perform sub-contracts and to do all
or any of the above things in any part of the world as principals, agents, contractors, trustees or
otherwise and either alone or jointly with others.

To procure the incorporation, registration or other recognisation of the company in any country,
state or place and to establish and regulate agencies for the purpose of the company’s business.

To distribute in specie or otherwise as may be resolved, any property or assets of the company or
any proceeds, of sale or disposal of any property or assets of the company including the shares,
debentures or other securities of any other company formed to take over the whole or any part of
the assets or liabilities of the company, subjects to the provisions of Companies Act 1956.

To apply the assets of the company in any way in or towards the establishment, maintenance or
extension of any association, institution or fund in anyway connected with any particular trade or
business or with trade or commerce generally and particularly with trade including any association
institution or fund for the protection of the interest of masters, owners and employees against loss
by bad debts, strikes, combinations, fire, accidents or otherwise or for the benefits of any of clerks,
workmen or others at anytime employed by the company or any of its predecessors in business or
their families or dependants and whether or not in common with other persons or classes of persons
and in particular of friendly co-operative and other societies reading rooms, libraries, educational
and charitable institution, refrecatories dining and recreation rooms, temples, schools and hospitals
and to grant gratuities, pensions and allowances and to contribute to any funds raise by public or
local subscription for any purpose whatsoever.
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53.

54,

55.

56.

57.

58.

To carry on any business or branch of a business which this company is authorised to carry on by
means or through the agency of any subsidiary company or companies and to enter into any
arrangement with any such subsidiary company for taking the profits and bearing the losses of
any business or branch so carried on, or for financing any such subsidiary company or guaranteeing
its liabilities, or to make any other arrangements which may seem desirable with reference to any
business or branch so carried on including power at any time either temporarily or permanently to
close any such business or branch and to appoint directors or managers of any such subsidiary
company.

To do of the above things either as principals, dealers agents, sub agents, manufacture’s
representative, trustees contractors or otherwise and either by or through agents, Sub-contractors
trustees or otherwise and either alone or in conjunction with others and or establish branches,
agencies, depots, maintenance in or outside India and to regulate or discontinue the same.

To do all and everything necessary, suitable or proper for the accomplishment of any of the purpose
or the attainment of any of the objects or the furtherance of any of the powers therein set fourth
either alone or in association with other corporate bodies, firms, or individuals and to do every
acts, things incidental or appurtenant to or growing out of connected with the aforesaid business or
powers or any parts thereof provided the same be not inconsistent with the laws of the Union of
India.

To undertake, carry out, promote and sponsor rural development including any programme for
promoting the social and economic welfare of or the uplift of the public in any rural area and to
incur any expenditure on any programme of rural development and to assets execution and
promoting thereof either directly or through an independent agency or in any other manner. Without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing. ‘Promoting of rural development’ shall also include any
programme for promoting the social and economic welfare of or the uplift of the public in any rural
area which the directors consider it likely to promote and assist rural development and that the
words, “rural area” will include such areas as may be regarded as rural areas under Section 35CC
of the Income Tax Act, 1961, or any other law, relating to rural development for the time being in
force or as may be regarded as rural areas in order to implement any of the above-mentioned
objects or purposes, transfer without consideration or at such fair or concessional value and divert
the ownership of any property of the company to or in favour of any public or local body or
authority or central or state government or any Public Institutions or Trusts or Funds or
Organisation (s) or person(s).

To carry on as its principal business of trading and as Investors by ways of acquiring, holding,
selling, buying, transferring, subscribing any shares, bonds, stocks, debentures, debenture stock
and other obligations and securities issued, guaranteed by any government, public body or
authority whether in India or elsewhere and to act as underwriters, guarantees, financier and to
lend or deal with money either with or without interest or securities to such individuals, firms
bodies corporate and institutions and upon such terms and conditions as the company may think
fit but not amounting to banking business as defined under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

To provide for the welfare of the employees, ex-employees, directors and ex-directors of the company
or its predecessors in business or the family members, dependents or connections of such person by
building or contributing to the building of houses, dwelling or quarters or by grants of money,
pensions, gratuities, allowances, payment towards insurance, houses, profit sharing bonuses or
benefits or any other payments or by establishing, supporting of form time to time subscribing or
contributing or aiding in the establishment and support of associations, institutions funds including
provident funds, trusts, profit sharing or other schemes and conveniences and by providing or
subscribing or contributing towards the places of instruction and recreation, hospitals and
dispensaries, medical and other attendances as the company shall think fit.

To form, incorporate or promote any company or companies whether in India or in any foreign
country having amongst its or their objects the acquisition of all or any of the assets objects which
in the opinion of the company could or might directly or indirectly assist the company in the
development of its properties or otherwise prove advantageous on the company and to pay all or
any of the costs and expenses incurred in connection with any such promotions on incorporation
and to remunerate any person or company in any manner it shall think fit for services rendered or
to be rendered in or about the formation or promotion of the company or the conduct of its business
or in or about the promotion or formation of any other company in which the company may have
an interest.
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60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

©
67.

68.

69.

To subscribe to become a member of subsidies and co-operative with any other association, whether
incorporated or not, whose objects are altogether or in part similar to those of the company and to
procure from and communicate to any such association, such information as may be likely to
further the objects of the company.

To lease, let out on hire, mortgage pledge, hypothecate, sell or otherwise dispose of the whole or any
part or parts of the undertaking of the company or any land, business, property, rights, or assets of
any kind of the company or any share or interest therein respectively in such manner and for such
consideration as the company may think fit, and in particular for shares, debentures or securities of
any other body corporate having objects altogether or in part similar of those of the company.

To pay legally and premiums or salaries and to pay for any property right or privileges acquired by
the company or for services render or to be rendered in connection with the promotion, formation
of the business of the company or for services rendered or to be rendered by any persons, firms or
body corporate in placing or assisting to place or guaranteeing the placing of any of the shares of the
company or any debentures, or other securities of the company or otherwise either wholly or
partly in cash or in shares, bonds, debentures or other securities of the company and to issue any
such shares either as fully paid up or with such amount credited as paid up thereon as may be
agreed upon and to charge any such bonds, debentures or other securities upon all or any part of
the property of the company.

To payout of the funds of the company, all costs charges and expenses preliminary and incidental to
the promotion, formation establishment and registration of the company.

To take into consideration and to approve and to confirm all acts, deeds or things that may be done
or entered into with any person firm or body corporate by the promoters of the company and
further to enter into any arrangement, agreement or contract with the promoters and to reimburse
them from all costs and expenses that may be incurred by them in connection with the formation or
promotion of the company.

To support, donate, contribute, subscribe, to give and to pay in cash or in kind for any purpose to
any individual or body of individuals and also to contribute, donate and subscribe to any charitable,
religious, educational or other public institutions, trusts, funds, clubs, societies or individuals, or
body of individuals, subject to the provisions of Section 293 of the Companies Act, 1956.

To carry on business as financiers concessionaires and to undertake and carry on and execute all
kinds of financial commercial and trading operations and to discount only sell and deal in bills,
notes, warrants, coupons, suits and decrees for money granted by any court in the Union of India
and other negotiable or transferable securities or documents.

To do the above things in any part of the world as principals, agent contractors, trustees or otherwise
by or through trustees, attorneys, agents or otherwise and either alone or in conjunction with
others.

OTHER OBJECTS FORWHICH THE COMPANY ISESTABLISHED ARE:

To carry on all or any of the business to transport, cartage and haulage garage proprietors, owners,
and charters of road vehicles, steam, barges, boats and vessels of every description and their
appurtenances, lighterman and carriers of goods and passengers by road, rail, water, or air, carmine,
cartage, contractors and agents, stevedores, wharfinger, cargo, superintendents, packers, haulers,
warehouseman, storekeepers, engineers, electricians, and job masters for the purpose of business of
the company.

To carry on all or any of the business or mechanical and electrical engineers and manufactures and
suppliers of implements and machinery, tool-makers, smiths, steel and brass founders metal
workers, machinist, iron and steel workers, metallurgists, chemical manufacturers, distillers,
electrical goods and accessories, engineers, gas suppliers, timber merchants and suppliers or
agricultural implements, motor and automobile spare parts and sugar mill machinery, oil mill
machinery, manufacturers of sugarical instruments and to buy, sell, manufacturer repair convert,
let on hire and deal in minerals, metals, machinery implements, rolling-stocks hardware and
chemicals of all kinds and to carry on any other business (manufacturing or otherwise) which may
seem to the company capable of being conveniently carried on in accordance with any of business
above specified.

To carry on all or any of the business as supplying, purchasing, selling importing, exporting
manufacturing, processing, converting, establishing workshop and factories, offices and buildings,
and the business of brick-makers, potters, chemists and druggists, cycle manufacturing, dairying
drapes and furnishers, machinery, electrical goods, appliance, tools and implements, hoteliers,
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70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.
76.

77.

78.

79.

general importers and exporters, jewellers and laundry business, mechanical engineers, miners,
motor car manufacturing, motor mini-bus-service, petroleum and mineral oil, paviours, refreshment
rooms, saw-mills shoes and leather-makers, soap manufacturing, spinning and weaving of all
fabrics, stationers, stores and provision, surgical instruments, tea planters, theatre company,
tobacconist company and to carry on any other business or work necessary and incidental to any
of the above business in the interest of the company.

To carry on the business of manufactures, importers, exporters, dealers, hirers, repairers, cleaners,
carriers, and stores of motors cars, automobiles spare and parts, mini-buses, trucks, lorries, tractors,
bulldozers motors cycle, scooters, motor boats, motor launches, buses motor lorries, motor vans,
aeroplanes sea-planes, ships, gliders and other conveyances of all descriptions whether propelled
or assisted by petrol, spirit, gas, steam, electricity, animal, atomic or other power or engines, bodies,
and other things used in connection with the above mentioned things.

To carry on the business of cold storage, refrigeration, cooking, dehydrating, preserving, canning of
any product on Company’s own account or as contractors for any governmental, municipal body
or individual on such terms and conditions as the directors may think fit.

To carry on the business of manufacturers and dealers of all kinds of oil including vegetable oil and
as meal manufacturers, oil merchants, cake and corn merchants, millers, flour merchants, bakers,
biscuit makers, confectioners, milling of flour, whole meal atta, suijji, rawa (semolina) basin (gram
flour), manufacturing of breakfast food spaghetti and macaroni.

To carry on the business of exhibition on films, cinema owners, film distributors, studio-owners
and all other allied materials, traders and techniques.

To purchase or otherwise acquire any land building or premises and to turn into account, develop,
improve, alter demolish or let out for the purpose of carrying on the business of hotel, restaurant,
coffee, tavern lodging, house-keepers and to carry on the business of wine, spiritand liquor merchants,
importers, exporters and manufacturers of aerated mineral and artificial waters and other drinks
whether intoxicating or not or caterers for public amusement or entertainment, proprietors of
motors and other vehicles garage proprietors, job master, refreshment-room keepers, framers,
dairyment and ice-merchants victuallers, live and dead-stock and colonical and foreign produce of
all descriptions, hair dressers, perfumers, chemists, proprietors of clubs, baths, dressing-room,
museum, reading, writing and newspaper room, library, playgrounds, indoor and outdoor games,
sport, recreation, exhibition, entertainment, of all kinds, tobacco and cigarettes, agents for railway
and shipping company and tourists, theatrical cinemas and opera-box and any other business
which can be conveniently or usefully carried on in connection with the aforesaid objects of the
company.

To carry on the business of brewers, distillers and other allied business.

To purchase, take on lease or otherwise acquire land, buildings, vineyard, gardens and other places
for growing keeping, brewing, preparing and storing of land products, plants or other things as
may be requisite for carrying on the said business.

To carry on, execute and conduct a general contracting business to submit tenders and undertake to
do all sorts of building, manufacturing, producing, farming, surveying, supplying designing,
enlarging, repairing, re-modeling managing, administering, controlling and supervising business.

To manufacture cotton, woolen and silk artificial and synthetic fibre goods of all kinds and to carry
on all or any of the following business :

Cotton, silk, dying materials, processors and printers of all textiles, woolen and silk spinners and
doublers, flex and jute spinners, wool combers, worsted spinners, linen manufactures, worsted
stuff manufacturers, drapers, flex, hemp, jute, wool and silk merchants, bleachers and dyers and
makers of vitriol, bleaching and dyeing materials, growers of mulberry or other trees and producers
of any other articles or thing whether by cultivation or aforestation or by any other mechanical or
chemical power or appliances for the purpose of obtaining silk, woolen cotton or any other material
to be converted into cloth, wool-combers, importers and exporters, sheep or any other animal
breeders.

To carry on the business as dealers in and purchaser of dairy, farms, garden and their produce of all
kinds and in particular milk, cream, butter, ghee, cheese, poultry eggs, fruits, vegetable oils, vegetable
ghee, artificial ghee, spices, sausages, prawn ported meat, table delicacies, loaves, bread, manures.
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81.

82

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

To carry on the business of house, shop, saloon, halls and other apartment and exhibition decorators
and execute decorative work of all sorts to prepare, manufacture paint, use, import, export, device,
design all kinds of artistic objects for use and ornamentation or any property used in the decoration
or furnishing of buildings, exhibition or other structures of all kinds and nature whatsoever.

To carry on all kinds of business of manufacturers, importers, exporters, dealers, assemblers and
distributors of radios, radiograms, gramophones, wireless, apparatus, domestic: and commercial
refrigerators, coolers, freezers of all kinds, humidifying, dehumidifying ventilating and cooling-
plants, room-coolers and air-conditioning of all kinds record, bare and rubber insulated wires,
cables, flexible cords, fuse wires, copper weld and aluminium wires, electric switches and switch
gears, contents, lamps, motors, fans and electric goods plastic and light material products,
equipments and accessories of all kinds, cold storage equipments and all articles and things used in
manufacture, construction, erection, maintenance and working thereof inconnection therewith in
any way whatsoever. To repair the same and their machinery and apparatus etc. To manufacture
and deal in loud-speakers, transformers, microphones, transmitters, amplifiers, receivers, public
address equipment of all kinds and accessories of all kinds used in the manufacture, installation,
erection, repairs, maintenance and working thereof or in connection therewith in any way
whatsoever.

To manufacture sowing machines, reaping machine thrashing machine, tractors and all other kinds
of farm implements and machinery, dairy machines, elevating machine conveying machines,
transmission machines incubators and part and tools thereof and accessories requisite thereof.

To buy, sell, import and deal in all kinds of machinery food products, seed, patents and licences, all
kinds of fertilizers, lime and stock feeds.

(@) To carry on the business of founders of ferrous and nonferrous metals, sheet metal workers,
Mechanical structural, electrical and metallurgical engineers, to carry on the work of cast iron
foundry for the manufacture of all types of pipes and pipe fittings, water reservoirs, drainage
requisites including manhole frames and covers, granting and ladders, cast-iron-sanitary
appliance and fittings including flushing cisterns, bath-tubes, wash-basins, cast iron, building
requisites including railing, spiral, stairs, ladders, ventilators, ornamental, window-frames,
pillars, agricultural implements including choppers, ploughs, cast iron, railway casting
including sleepers, fish-plates, wheels and other fittings houshold requisites and utensils
including cooking pans, containers, coal mining and engineering requisites including pinions,
tube-wheels pump parts and other general and special castings.

(b) To carry on the work of mechanical and electrical engineers and to run a workshop to undertake
and execute all types of mechanical and structural jobs of manufacturing, fabrication and
erection of buildings and articles and to do various types of sheets, metal work including
manufacturing and construction of storage tanks, buckets, drums, various types of containers
and other similar items that may be easily marketable.

To carry on the business of jewellers, bullions merchants, goldsmiths, silvers-smiths, gem and
stone merchants.

To deal in precious stones, diamonds, pearls, jewellery, watches, clock, chronometers, gold and
silver-plates, electro-plated, cutlery, presents and gifts, coins, cups, metals shields; curious articles
of virtue, art and antiquities, dressing bags, hand bags and bronzes.

To engage and carry on the business of raising, packing, grading preparing for market, butter,
cream, milk, farm products of all description.

Carry on the business of manufactures of paper, envelopes, card board and mill board dyers, bleacher
and tanners in all its branches and to makers, buyers and sellers of and dealers in any articles
which can be manufactured out of pulp, compressed paper or paper stock and to sell in either a raw
of partially or wholly completed prepared state all such paper envelopes, cardboard, mill board,
fibres substances, pulp or things as may furnish materials for proper manufacturing in any of its
branches and to undertake all or any manufacturing or preparing processes connected with or
useful for the purposes of such business or undertaking and generally to purchase and vend the
raw materials and manufactured articles both in a wholesale and retail manner.

To manufacture sugar and allied products from beet-root, sugarcane, gar, molasses and any other
substance or produce or chemicals.

To produce, grow, raise, preserve, purify, refine, import, export, prepare, sell and deal in sugar,
sugarcane, gur, molasses syrups alcohol and all other by-products and food products fertilizers
and things generally and to maintain refineries, foundries work-shops, distilleries and other works
for the purposes of the company.
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95.

96.

97.

98.

99.

*100.

To manufacture and deal in anatomical, orthopedic and surgical instruments and appliances of all
kinds.

To grow, raise, tend cultivate tea, coffee, cinchona, rubber and other produce and to carry on the
business of tea-planters in all its branches, to carry on and work the business of cultivator, wine
owners and buyers to every kind of vegetable, mineral or other, produce of the soil.

To carry on the business of helicopter spraying on farms, grovelands, cultivations, products and
other allied business of eradication of diseases virus and insecticides.

To carry on the business as travel agents, tourists and cargo carriers by road, air sea or by other
mode of transport and to carry on all allied business and activities pertaining to the travelling and
tourist business.

To carry on business as exporters, manufacturers, importers, buyers and sellers of and dealers in
all chemicals, petrochemicals and plastics (including without prejudice to the said generality and
in particular Soda Ash, Caustic Soda, Sulphuric Acid, Super Phosphate, Ammonium Chloride, Di-
Calcium Phosphate, Alcohol, Cosmetics, Chlorine Products, both organic and inorganic such as
Polyvinyl Chloride Carbontetrachloride, Trichloroethylene, Perchloroethylene, Ethylene dichloride,
Carbon disulphide, Barium Chloride, Aluminium Trichloride, Titanium Tetrachloride etc.) alkalis,
acids, cordials-drugs, tanins, essences and pharmaceutical, photographical, sizing, medical,
chemical, industrial and other preparations and articles of any nature and kinds whatsoever mineral
and other waters, cements, oils, paints, pigments and varnishes, compounds, drugs by stuff, organic
or mineral intermediates, paint and colour gunders, mahers 3 and dealers in proprietary articles of
all kinds and electrical, chemical, photographical, surgical and scientific apparatuses, instruments,
goods and materials.

To acquire from or sell to any person, firm body corporate or unicorporate, whether in India or
elsewhere, technical and managerial information, know-how, process engineering, manufacturing,
operating and commercial data, plants, layouts and blue-prints useful for the design, erection and
operation or any plant or process of manufacture and to acquire, grant or license other rights and
benefits in the foregoing matters, to render any kinds of managerial technical and financial
consultancy services and to carry on the business of market research organizers, sales promotion
agent, general advisers, technical and marketing consultants, either alone or in partnership.

To undertake, carry out, promote and sponsor scientific research and to incur any expenditure on
such research, and to assist and contribute to any scientific research association which has as its
objects the undertaking of scientific research or to assist and contribute to any University, college
or other institution any sums to be used for scientific research or research in social science or
statistical research whether related to the business or class of business carried on by the company
or not.

To produce, extract manufacture, purchase, refine, prepare, process, import, export, buy, sell and
generally to deal in graphite, synthetic and natural coal, coal and other cokes, carbon and other
minerals, chemicals, petro-chemicals, gas and other petroleum, substances in all there various
forms and derivations and their products, by-products and ancillary products and to carry on all
or any of the business of distillers, refinery operators, compounders, synthetic analysis, physicists
reactor operators, gas producers and consumers, manufacturers, chemists, druggists, analytical
chemists, drysalters, oil and colour men.

To carry on all or any of the business of the manufacturers of and dealers and workers in cement,
lime plasters, mortar, marble, mosaic tiles, writings, minerals, clay, earth, gravel, sand, coke, fuel,
artificial stone and builders, requisites of all kinds, nature and description whatsoever as may be
required for the attainment of the main object.

To carry on and undertake the business of finance and trading, hire, purchase, leasing and to finance
lease operations of all kinds, purchasing, selling, hiring or letting on hire all kinds of plant and
machinery and equipment that the company may think fit and to assist in financing of all and every
kind and description of hire purchase or deferred payment or similar transaction and to subsidise,
finance or assist in subsidising or financing the sale and maintenance of any goods, articles or
commodities of all and every kind and description upon any terms whatsover and to purchase or
otherwise deal in all forms of immovable and movable property including land and building plant
and machinery, equipment, ships, aircraft automobiles, computers and all consumers, commercial
and industrial items and to lease or otherwise deal with them in any manner whatsoever including
resale thereof regardless of whether property puchased and leased by new and/or/used.

Altered vide Special Resolution dated 26 August, 2010.
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104.
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106.

107.

108.

109.

110.

111.

To manage land, building and other property whether belonging to the company or not and to
collect rents, profits and issues and to provide and supply to tenants or other occupiers refreshment,
light, waiting rooms, reading rooms, meeting rooms, swimming pools, club rooms, gardens,
lavatories, laundry, convenience, garging facilities, play-grounds, water air conditioning facilities
and equipment lifts and escalators and all other conveniences and appliances relating to or connected
with offices and residence requirements in general.

To acquire, construct, maintain, improve, develop, work control, manage sell, dispose of or otherwise
turn to account, any hotels, clubs, restaurants, places of amusement, pleasure grounds, garden,
reading rooms, stores, dairies, estates, orchards, river or harbour site and other places or sites
wherever situate and other works and conveniences of each and every nature and description.

To carry on the business of manufactures and dealers of video, television, camera, watches, calculators
and allied electronic items and components thereof.

To carry on the business of manufacturers and dealers of processed food and allied items.

To carry on the business of technical, financial and management consultants and advisers and to
enter into collaboration agreements for the manufacture of items, which the company is entitled to
produce in India and abroad with the companies firms and individuals, central and or state
government and their concerns and to tender and provide all type of services including managerial,
personal, designing, engineering, preparation of feasibility and project report, drawing, plant
layouts, tenders for all the plants & machinery, equipments, buildings, and other structures and
helping finalization of contracts and creation and commissioning of plants.

To carry on business as timber merchants, saw mill proprietors and timber growers and to buy,
sell grow, prepare for market, manipulate import, export and deal in timber and wood of all kinds
and to manufacture and deal in articles of all kinds in the manufacture of which timber or wood is
used, and to buy, clear, plant and work timber, estates, and to establish, own, erect, acquire, work
and manage vaneer mills, plywood factories and similar mills and factories and to peel produce,
manufacture and prepare for market, store, stock, buy, sell, export, import, distribute, deal in any
carry on business in veneers, veneer products, veneer for tea-chests, packing cases and commercial
boards, decorative, veneers for furniture and cabinet making and other purposes, tea-chest, matches,
bobbins, commercial, plywood, plywood for cabinet making coach building, ship building,
aeroplanes, partitions panelings doors, windows and other constructional purposes, decorative
veneer boards, laminated boards, black board, composite boards, compressed boards, pressed
boards, hard boards, chip boards, bent wood, moulded wood and any other articles of like nature.

To establish, purchase, sell, take on lease, hire or otherwise acquire and work, any textile mills,
handlooms, power looms or other mills, cotton ginning and pressing factory, jute mills presses,
hemp or other fibre presses, spinning mills, weaving mills, and chemicals factories, waste plants or
press for pressing, merchandise into bales and to cultivate, process, buy, sell, import, export, pledge,
speculate, enter into forward transactions and dealing whether as commission agent, broker or
otherwise in raw jute, goods, cotton, kapas, cotton seeds, flax, hemp and silk.

To plant, cultivate, produce and raise sugar-cane, hem, flax food grains, oil seed, fruits and seeds,
nuts vegetables and to prepare, preserve, manufacture, crush and render marketable any such
produce and to deal in the same.

To constitute any trusts with a view to the issue of preferred securities based on or representing
any shares, or other assets specifically appropriated for the purposes of any such trust, and to settle
and regulate and if thought fit, to undertake and execute any such trust and to issue, dispose of or
hold any such preferred or other securities.

To search, win, work, get, raise quarry, smelt, refine dress manufacture, produce, plant, manipulate
convert, make merchantable, sell, buy or deal in lime, cement, sand-glass, paper, sugar, oil, oil
products, oilseeds, rice, dal, tea, coffee, rubber, cocoa, coal coke, iron, ironstone, marble, limestone,
silica, mica, brick, earth, fireclay, manganese, mineral oils, ores, clays, and other metals, metalligergus
ores, minerals and to manufacture, sell buy and deal in any of such, articles and commodities and
to carry on the business of manufacture of bricks, title, pipes, pottery, earthen ware, china and terra
cotta, cream and ceramic ware of all kinds.

To carry on the business of manufacturers or processors and/or importers, exporters, buyers, sellers,
stockiest and distributors of and/or dealers in all kinds of chemicals, drugs pharmaceuticals, plastics,
paints, varnishes, paper, types, tube, films, and vehicles, all types of watches, time piece, clocks.
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113.

114.

115.

116.

117.

118.

119.

120.

121.

To carry on the business of chemists, druggists, researchers, technicians, designers planners, advisers,
purchasers, testers, erectors, superintendents and contracts.

To carry on the business of public carries transporters and carriers of goods passengers, merchandise,
corn commodities and other, products and goods and luggage of all kinds and description in any
part of India and elsewhere on land, water and air by any conveyances whatsoever.

To manufacture, build, construct, develop, buy, sell, import, export, assemble, equip, distribute,
exchange, barter, let on hire, buy or sell on hire-purchase or instalment systems or otherwise deal
in lorries, trucks, motor-cars, motor cycles and other motor vehicles including cycles and scooters
of all kinds and description and generally to carry on the business as manufacturers, repairers,
assemblers, mechanical engineers, carriage builders of motors, mini-buses, taxi-cars, lorries, motor
cars and all other kinds of vehicles and vessels for the transport of persons and goods whether
propelled or moved by petrol, electricity, steam, oil, vapour or other motives or mechanical power.

To manufacture, buy, sell, exchange, process, refine smelt, prepare, work, alter, improve, import,
export and to carry on business as agents, distributors, stockiest and otherwise deal in iron, steel
and their scraps and by-products metal scrap, iron ores and minerals in all forms and to carry on
the business of iron and steel founders and manufacturers, iron workers, iron masters, brass founders
and metal makers, manufacturers of industrial agricultural and other fittings and to establish
rolling mills and rollers in their respective branches.

To carry on the business of manufacturers of drums, barrels, packages, tanks and containers, tubes,
aerosol, containers of every, description from steel, tin and other metals and of such substances like
paper boards, plastics etc. as may furnish materials for such manufacturing in any of its branches.

To act as shipping agents, stevedores, freight and chartering brokers ship brokers, characters of
vessels, suppliers and purveyors of ships and other vessels and boating contractors.

To carry on the business of furniture makers, gold and silver, smiths and to import, export, buy;, sell,
exchange or otherwise deal in all types of jewellers and ornaments and utensils made of gold and/
or silver.

To carry on the business of manufacturers and dealers in air conditioning and refrigeration
equipments, consumer and domestic appliances radios and transistors, electronic equipments
including television and computers, oxygen and acetylene, electrodes, including graphite electrodes,
weighing scales, cement, refractories, batteries, agricultural equipments, thermometers, flashlight,
detonators, and explosives, asbestos, starch and by products, wireropes, linoleum, vinyl, tiles,
glass calculators, typewriters, and all forms of office equipment magnets gauges and precision
instruments all type of electronic equipment conductors, rectifiers capacitors, meters, matches,
grinding and abrasive equipment, potteries, tiles and ceramics lighting equipments, oils, manures
or any one, or more such business in all or any of their respective branches.

To carry on business as manufacturers, producers, dealers traders, importers, stockiest, distributors
or agents of G.L.S. lamps, electric bulbs, miniature bulbs, tube lights, flood lights, flash lights,
mercury vapour bulbs and other type of types of bulbs lamps, tubes or other electrical items
required or used for lighting or for industrial, domestic, electronics, transport vehicles or commercial
purposes and glass shells, fittings, tubes, filaments, tungsten and molybdenum wires, caps and
other materials, machinery, accessories and spares required or used for manufacture of bulbs,
lamps, tubes.

To carry on the business as traders dealers, wholesalers, retailers, combers, scourers, spinners,
weavers, finishers, dyers, and manufacturers and processors of yarns, and fabrics of wool, cotton,
jute, silk, rayon, nylon, hemp and other natural, synthetic and/or fibrous substances including
polyesters, polyacry-lonitrile, polyvinyl acctate, cashmilon, acrylic fibres polyproylene polymers,
monomers clastomers and raising of all types, grades and coplymer formulations and forms or as
processed goods and including polythene, poloystyrene, polyvinyl chloride, polymethyl,
methacrylates epoxy resins, alkyd resins, melamine polycarbonates, polyamides or any other or
new substances being improvements upon, modifications of or being derived from additions to
petrochemicals or other products or resulting from any processes and/or manufacturer of materials
from the waste realized from the above mentioned products either on its own account or on
commission and to carry on the business as drapers and dealers of furnishing fabrics in all its
branches as continuers, readymade dress and mentle makers, silk mercers, makers and suppliers of
closing linherie and trimmings of every kind, furriers, drapers harberdashers, milliners, hoosiers,
glovers, lace makers, rope makers felt and tarpaulin makers, feather dressers, felt makers, dealers in
and manufacturers of yarns, fabrics and materials of all kinds varieties and substances, and also to
manufacture, deal in or process natural starch and other auxiliaries and sizing materials, dye-stuff,
synthetic or chemical substances, of all kinds and compounds and other substances either basic
intermediate or otherwise as required for the above mentioned product or products.
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123.

124.

*125.

126.

To prospect for examine exports, win, get guarry, smelt calcine, refine, crush and grind dress,
amalgamate, manipulate and prepare for market, purchase, sell or deal in ores, metals, and minerals
of all kinds and to carry on any other prospecting mining or metallurgical operations and to buy,
sell, manufacture and deal in minerals, plant, machinery, implements, conveniences, provisions
and things capable of being used in connection with prospecting, mining or metallurgical operations.

To carry on business as printers and publishers including of news papers, books and journals as
well as producers, distributors, importers, exporters, exhibitors and financiers of cinematograph
film and to manufacture own, acquire, provide, secure, arrange or deal in films, and photographic
paper and equipment cameras, sound, recording, musical, lighting appliances, instruments,
equipments and machines and to construct, establish, own hire or other wise acquire and to manage,
let out for rent, free, monetary gain or otherwise studios, laboratories, theatres, building, halls,
open air theatres, bars, restaurants, and other buildings or work required for the purpose of
production, distribution or exhibition of the films, operas, stage plays, dances, operattas burriesques,
vaudeville, revues, ballets, pantomimes, spectacular pieces, promenade concert circus or other
performance and entertainments and to act, as dealers, importers, exporters of musicals instruments
and records, tapes, cinema and film projectors and cameras, wigs and other products or materials
related or connected with the aforesaid objects and business, and to acquire exclusive or limited
rights to and play, story, script, musical songs and lyric, book, article or any technique by producing,
purchasing or otherwise acquiring and to use exercise develop or exploit or turn to account such
rights for the business of the company; and to act as agents for training, retaining arranging and
supplying artists, stars, art directors, script, or story-writers, technicians, extra and other personnel
required by the company or other film, cinema or show business.

To carry on the business of manufacturers, fabricators, processors, producers, growers makers,
importers, exporters, buyers, sellers suppliers, stockiest, agents, merchants, distributors and
concessionaires of and dealers in commodities of all or any of the following kinds:

(@) Drugs, medicines, chemicals, medical plants and all types of plantations mixtures, powders,
tablets, capsules, injections, oils compounds, creams, scents, glycerine, detergents, glue, gelatin,
scaps, lotions, toilet goods, pigments and all kinds of pharmaceutical, cosmetic and medicinal
preparations required or used for beauty aid personal hygiene or in allopathic, ayurvedic,
homeopathic, unani or nature cure methods or system of treatments, bandages, cotton, gauzes,
crutches, stretcher and all kinds of anatomical, orthopaedic and surgical appliances and stores
including prophlactics.

(b) Boots, pickers, shoes and footwear of all kinds made of leather, rubber, canvas, plastic or any
other synthetic or natural products, waterproof cloth or compound, leather, hids, skins, rexina,
rubber plastic, or synthetic cloth, compound or granules, lasts, boot, trees, buckles legging,
gaiters, heels laces, boot polishes, protectors, accessories and fittings, used in or required for
footwears.

() Writing pen, pencils, fountain pen, ball point pen, sign pen, colour pencils, tubes and tablets,
pins, erasers, ink, clips, rulers, newsprint, board, envelops, cards, dyes letter heads, forms files,
stamps, books, bags, cases, covers, racks cabinets, numerical printers adhesive tapes, gums, air
conditioners and refrigerators, vacuum cleaners sewing and knitting machines, hurricane,
lanterns, cutlery, anamel wares watches, and clocks, tape recorders, clocks, watches, vacuum
flask, toys waterproof materials, duplicators, typewriters, computers, calculators, accounting
and inter-communication machines and all kinds of office, domestic, industrial and educational
appliances, stationery, equipments, furniture, instruments, gadgets devices and stores and
their components.

To manufacture process, refine, import, export, buy, sell and deal in edible oils, vanaspati, oils, de-
hydrogenated vegetable oils, oils made or processed or solvent extracted from seeds, cotton seeds,
coconuts, products of plantations, horticulture, agriculture and forest produce and oil cakes, and to
get vanaspati, soaps and lubricants made from oils or as by-products thereof and to do plantation,
horticulture and produce oil-bearing seeds, plants, crops of any kind, either on its own or through
contract farming.

To carry on business of manufacture, fabricators, processors, producers, growers, makers, importers,
exporters, buyers, sellers suppliers, stockists, agents, merchants, distributors and concessionaries
of and dealers in flour cakes, pastry, cornflakes, bread biscuits, chocolates, confectionery, sweets,
fruit drops, sugar, glucose, chewing gums milk, cream, ice-cream aerated or mineral waters, fruit
juices wines liquors and other alcoholic drinks and fermentation products, canned-fruits and fruit
products milk and malted food tobacco, cigarette, cigars, protein foods, maize products butter,
ghee, cheese, and other dairy products, pickles, jams, jellies sausages, cider, pulses, spices, oils,
powder, and condensed milk, honey fresh and dehydrated vegetables, coffee, tea cocoa seeds,
processed seeds, concentrate for cattle or poultry feed, fruits and all kinds of processed foods as well
as materials required or used for preparation of or being food articles.

Altered vide Special Resolution dated 26 August, 2010.
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127.

128.

129.

130.

131.

132.

133.

134.

To carry on business as producers importers, exporters, processors, manufacturers, buyers, sellers,
distributors, stockists, agents and brokers of coal, coke, charcoal, lignite, petroleum copper, iron
ore, bauxite, kyanite, fire lay, china clay, salt, sodium, chloride, calcium, phosphate, nickel beryllium,
uranium, zinc, lead, asbestos tin alumina, mercury, silicon, sulphur, graphite, brass, aluminium,
silica sand, bentonite, quartz, destrine, mangasite, dolomite ferroalloys, conundum manganese,
mica, silver, gold, platinum, diamond sapphire, ruby, topaz, garnet emerald, pearl and other precious
semi precious or commercial minerals and stones and to act as metal semi precious or commercial
minerals and stones and to act as metal founders, manufacturers, agents, and dealers of metals,
sheets, wires, rods, squares, plates, foils, pipes, tubes, ingots, billets, circle sparts, coils, utensils,
ornaments, decorative and art materials and jewellery made wholly or partly from any one or
more of the metals and materials mentioned herein or their derivatives.

To manufacture deal in and process all kinds of medical and surgical instruments and appliances,
industrial instruments including meters, weighing machines and devices for including recording
and regulating pressure, temperature, rate of flow weights and levels scientific instruments,
mathematical surveying and drawing instruments as well as items produced in miscellaneous
mechanical and engineering industries like plastic moulded goods hand tools, small tools and the
like and razor blades.

To manufacture, export import, buy sell and deal in voltaic battery cells, over pack or storage
batteries and battery containers and battery eliminators of different types required for or used in
domestic household, industrial, commercial agricultural, mining hospital, surgical or scientific
appliances, machinery, apparatus or accessories and railway, tramways, automobile and other
vehicles, aircraft, boats, ships defence establishments, army, navy and air force, for wireless, radio
torches, toys electronic, equipments or otherwise and also to carry on business as manufactures of
land dealers in torches, toys, personal aids and other appliances working on such batteries and
such items and goods which may be useful, skin or otherwise connected with anyone or more of the
aforesaid items or products.

To manufacture, deal in export, imports, assemble fit, repair, convert overhaul, alter, maintain and
improve all types of electronic components, devices, equipments and appliances and raw materials
therefore and to deal in and with stores and other materials used in or in connection with electronic
and electrical industries.

To carry on the business of manufactures and dealers in capacitors resistors, tubes, condensers,
semi-conductor materials and devices, transistors, rectifies, zenerdiodes, themistors, integrated
and hybrid circuits, relays, and varistors, potentiometers, connectors, printed circuits, coils chocks,
transformers switches, volume controls, plugs, sockets bases, aerial gear, electrical diesel motors
and pumps, batteries, accumulators, cables, metal and other cases, paizo electric, quartz, crystals
of all types including those made from synthetic materials meters of all kinds, including those for
industrial domestic and other uses etc. chassis holders and covers.

To carry on the business of manufacture and or deal in all type of tapes, magnetic and otherwise,
tape recorder, television, broadcast relay and reception equipments, phonographs and others
equipments used in and or for audio and visual communications, apparatus and equipment including
those using electro magnetic waves intended for radio-telegraphic or radio telephonic
communications, photocopies, electronic, lighting controls, continuous fan motor speed controls,
continuous flashers and fire alarm systems, digital and other electronic clocks, time relays, electro
mechanical pneumatic controls automatic calculators, x-ray machines surgical, medical and other
appliances intended for electro and other thereby treatment.

To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, refiners, exporters, importers, buyers and
sellers of and dealers in all and any fats, fertilizers, manures, dips, sprays, vermifuge, fungicides,
insecticides, germicides, medicines, and remedies of all kinds for agricultural, tree and fruit growing,
gardening and other purposes or as remedies for humans and animals and whether produced from
vegetable, minerals gaseous or animal matter or substances by any process whether chemical,
mechanical electrical or other wise.

To manufacture, export, import, buy, sell and deal in containers, cans, boxes, drums, cylinders,
bottle tops, crown corks, packages, packing materials, bags, pressed netwares, utensils, cutlery,
table wares and articles made all of tin, metal aluminium plate, sheets, glass fibre, paper, board,
cloth hessian, leather, plastic or other synthetic compound or materials, timber or plywood and to
deal in tin plates wire, aluminium sheets and to undertake either on own account or on commission
basis or otherwise printing, painting, designing, enamelling, electroplating, engraving or otherwise
decorating the aforesaid products or any of such products or articles.
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136.

137.

138.

139.

140.

141.

142.

143.

144

145.

146.

*147.

To carry on research and development work for industrial, agriculture and minerals, productiviting
and methods of production into matters and problems relating to accountancy business
management, distribution, marketing and selling and to collect, analyse, examine, prepare, formulate,
publish, distribute and circulate date statistics, reports, journals, books, magazines, newspapers,
literature and information relating to any type of business, trade, industry, sports, education,
society, cinema or real estates and to promote or propose such methods, procedures and measures
as may be considered desirable or beneficial for all or any of the objects of the Company and for
extending, developing and/or improving any type of business, trade, estate, industry, commerce
organisation, methods, techniques, technical know-how, patents, trade makers and procedures to
consider and evaluate problems relating to administration, management manufacture, production,
storage, distribution, finance marketing and sale and/or relating to the rendering of any service.

To carry on all or any of the trade and business of and as are usually carried on by land, building
property and investment companies of whatever description in all their respective branches.

To carry on the trade, industry, business, occupation and profession of architects, engineers, builders,
contractors, electrical, sanitary and plumbing engineers and contractors, flooring contractors and
general builders, furnishers, decorators and contractors in all such other branches in which the
company is authorized to carry on business.

To act as and share transfer agents, shipping and forwarding agents or mercantile agents and to do
any kinds of commercial financial or agency business.

To carry on business and to act as merchants, commission agents, managers, carriers or in any
other capacity in India or in any part of the world and to import, export, buy, sell, barter, exchange
pledge, make advances upon or otherwise deal in goods products, articles, merchandise and
machineries and further to establish or acquire and carry on office, trading stations, factories,
stores, and depots in India or in any part of the world and to purchase, lease or otherwise acquire
carry on, develop, and improve any business.

To carry on business as designers, fabricators, manufacturers, importers, exporters, contractors,
constructors, and erectors of buildings, plants, and machineries of all kinds and to provide all
services and facilities in connection therewith and to act as contractors for the supply of labour,
personnel and expert manpower in India or in any part of the world.

To carry on business of manufacturers, fabricators, processors, producers, makers, importers,
exporters, buyers, sellers, suppliers, stockiest, agents, merchants, distributors, and concessionaires
of all types of refractories.

To carry on the business of purchase, sale, hiring, letting, importers, exporters, breeders and
developers of through bred and other horses, mares, or geldings and to develop and maintain
breeding farms and racecourses and all facilities connected there with.

To carry on the business of manufacturers of saddles and saddlery and other equipments required
for house and horse racing and to engage and participate in any races, held or conducted under any
recognized racing rules under any law for the time being in force.

To make or take wages or bets and settled the same upon any race held under the recognized racing
rules under any law for the time being in force provided that the company shall not carry on any
business or engage in any activity of farming or wagering prohibited by any law for the time being
in force.

To carry on business of manufacturers, fabricators, processors, producers, makers, importers,
exporters, buyers, sellers, suppliers, stockiest, agents, merchants, distributors and concessionaires
of all types of refractories.

To carry on merchant banking, portfolio management and underwriting activities interalia includes
issue management, consultant/advisor to issue, investment advisor and other related activities
and to promote assets management company, to act as registrar to issue.

To advance, deposit or lend-money, securities and properties to or with any Company, firm, person
or association whether falling under the same management or otherwise in accordance with and to
the extent permissible under the provisions, contained in Sections 370 and 372 of the Companies
Act 1956, with or without security and on such terms as may be determined from time to time.
However, the company shall not carry on the business of banking as defined under the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 and to provide a leasing, financing and investment advisory/counselling service
to other entities.

Altered vide Special Resolution dated 26 August, 2010.
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The liability of the member is limited.

The Authorised share capital of the company is Rs. 250,00,00,000/- (Rupees two hundred fifty crores
only) divided into 50,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each and 200,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each with power to increase or reduce the said share capital and to
issue any part of its capital original or increased, with or without any preference, priority or
special privilege or subject to any postponement of right or to any conditions, restrictions and so
that unless the conditions of issue shall otherwise expressly declare, every issue of shares whether
declared to be preference or otherwise shall be subject to the power hereinafter contained. The
rights of the holders of any class of shares for the time being forming part of the capital of the
company may be modified, affected, varied, extended or surrendered either with the consent in
writing of the holders of three fourth of the issued shares of the class or with sanction of special
resolution of the members of the class provided by the Memorandum of Association or as altered by
Special Resolution.
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We, the several persons, whose names, addresses and descriptions are subscribed
are desirous of being formed into a company in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association
and we respectively agree to take the number of shares in the capital of the company set
opposite our respective hames.

No. of Equity . Signature, Names
Name addresses, descriptions Sharestaken | SI9nature | aqgress description
and occupations of subscribers by each subscribers and Occupation
subscriber of witness
1. Shyam Sunder Gupta 10
S/o Banwari Lal Gupta (Ten) Sd/-
148, Chakla Street,
Bombay - 3.
Business
2. Bimal Kumar Agarwal 10
S/o Pramod Kumar Agarwal (Ten) Sd/-
228, Kalbadevi Road,
Bombay - 2.
Business

3. Bhanwer Lal Mundhra

AN
ket 3
Slo Gouri Shankar Mundhra 10 Sd/- Se=g
@© c
305, Rupal Apartments, (Ten) £ g S S
Bombay - 64. %o 5=
Business =0 »n T 9
S T/OQ
[} c
4. Ram Narayan Baldewa ng=r3g
S/o Shiv Narayan Baldewa 10 Sd/- =8 533
108, Rupal Apartments, (Ten) 5L=73
Bombay - 64. 2822
Business g “wg
= N
5.  Manohar Lal Mal 10 3
S/o Shyam Lal Mal (Ten) Sd/-
B-1, Ansa Industrial Estate,
Bombay - 72.
Service
6. Ram Ratan Bang 10
S/o Prem Ratan Bang (Ten) Sd/-
232, Kalbadevi Road,
Bombay - 2.
Business
7.  Devilal Lakhotia
S/o Sohan Lal Lakhotia 10
232, Kalbadevi Road, (Ten) Sdr-
Bombay - 2.
Service
70
TOTAL (Seventy)

Bombay, Dated 8/8/1984
(18)




 Ruchi

Ruchi Infrastructure Limited

35th Annual Report 2018-19



RUCHI INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

(CIN : L65990MH1984PLC033878)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

Board of Directors

Ruchi Joshi

Krishna Das Gupta

Mohan Das Kabra

Narendra Shah - Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer
Ravindra Kumar Kakani

Company Secretary
Ashish Mehta

Auditors

Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Bankers

South Indian Bank Ltd.
State Bank of India

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
Sarthak Global Limited

170/10, Film Colony,

R.N.T. Marg,

Indore - 452 001.

Tel: +91 731 4279626, 2526388
e-mail: investors@sarthakglobal.com

Registered Office

706, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point,

Mumbai - 400 021.

Tel: 491 22 6656 0600

Fax: +91 22 2204 3397

e-mail: ruchiinfrasecretarial@ruchiinfrastructure.com
Website: www.ruchiinfrastructure.com

CONTENTS

NOLICE oo 2
Directors’ Report 9
Management Discussion and Analysis Report................... 26
Corporate Governance Report ..........cocoevvvvvniciiininncnnnes 30
AUItOrs REPOIt.......cvuviiiiiriiiiiicccc e 38
Balance ShEet.......couieierniiciricicicecee e 46
Statement of Profit & LOSS .......c.cuvveuiveieiriirieiiieieiene 47
Statement of Changes in EQUItY .......ccccevveernineerniniereenee 48
Cash Flow Statement ..........ccceuveuvierniieieiriniennieeienneinne 49
Notes forming integral part of Financial Statements.......... 50
Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Accounts...................... 90
Consolidated Balance Sheet ..........coccceuveerniecrneniecrnenee 96
Statement of Consolidated Profit & Loss . 97
Statement of Changes in EQUItY .......cccevveerrneernincenennee 98
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement............cceveuieeucrinnn. 99
Notes forming integral part of Consolidated

Financial Statements.............cccuvurieriiiiiiciiieisisisccns 100
Statement relating to Subsidiary Companies...................... 138

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT

In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking
information to enable investors to comprehend our
prospects and take investment decisions. This report and
other statements - written and oral - that we periodically
make contain forward-looking statements that set out
anticipated results based on the management’s plans and
assumptions. We have tried wherever possible to identify
such statements by using words such as “anticipates’,
“estimates’, “expects’, “projects’, “intends’, “plans’,
“believes’, and words of similar substance in connection
with any discussion of future performance.

We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements
will be realized, although we believe we have been prudent
in assumptions. The achievements of results are subject
to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions.
Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize,
or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual
results could vary materially from those anticipated,
estimated, or projected. Readers should keep this in mind.
We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise.




Notice

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Fifth Annual General Meeting of the members of Ruchi Infrastructure Limited will be
held on Tuesday, September 3, 2019 at 11.15 A.M. at Rangswar Hall, Chavan Centre, Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan,
Gen. Jagannathrao Bhonsle Marg, Mumbai - 400021, Maharashtra, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the
reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the stand-alone and consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2019, the reports of Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon, be and are hereby received,
considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Narendra Shah (DIN:02143172), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Narendra Shah (DIN:02143172), Director of the Company, retiring by rotation at 35" Annual
General Meeting of the Company, being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the
Company, who shall be liable to retire by rotation.”

3. To re-appoint the Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, approval of members
of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of M/s. Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000743C/0C400037), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from
the conclusion of 35" Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 36" Annual General Meeting of the Company
on such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Narendra Shah (DIN:02143172), Executive Director and Mr. Ashish Mehta, Company
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may
be considered necessary in this regard for and on behalf of the Company, including but not limiting to, filing of necessary
forms, returns, submissions under the Companies Act, 2013.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To approve re-appointment of Mr. Narendra Shah (DIN:02143172) as the Executive Director of the Company and in this
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 {including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force}, the approval of the members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Narendra Shah (DIN:02143172) as the Executive Director of the Company for
a period of three years with effect from April 8, 2019 on the terms and conditions as set out in the explanatory statement
annexed to the notice.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to revise/vary the terms
and conditions (including remuneration) of re-appointment from time to time to the extent the Board of Directors may
deem appropriate, provided that such revised/increased remuneration shall not exceed ¥ 1.00 Crore per annum subject
to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of his tenure, the Company has no profits or
inadequate profits, Mr. Narendra Shah, Executive Director shall be paid such remuneration (as set out in the explanatory
statement) or such revised/increased remuneration, as approved by the Board of Directors from time to time, as the case
may be, as minimum remuneration in terms of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ashish Mehta, Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary in this regard for and on behalf of the Company,
including but not limiting to, filing of necessary forms, returns, submissions under the Companies Act, 2013.”

5. To approve the continuation of directorship of Mr. Krishna Das Gupta (DIN: 00374379), as a Non-Executive Independent
Director of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession to the ordinary resolution passed by the members of the Company at the 31 Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company held on September 23, 2015 regarding the appointment of Mr. Krishna Das
Gupta (DIN:00374379) as an Independent Director for a period of five years commencing from September 23, 2015
for first term and pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force or any other applicable
provisions and on the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and that of the Board
of Directors, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for continuation of directorship
of Mr. Krishna Das Gupta, as the Non-Executive Independent Director on the Board of Directors of the Company upto
September 22, 2020.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Narendra Shah (DIN:02143172), Executive Director and Mr. Ashish Mehta, Company
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may
be considered necessary in this regard for and on behalf of the Company, including but not limiting to, filing of necessary
forms, returns, submissions under the Companies Act, 2013.”

Registered Office: By order of the Board of Directors
Ruchi Infrastructure Ltd.

706, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point,

Mumbai — 400 021

Date : May 22, 2019 Ashish Mehta
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary
NOTES:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF, AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF
THE COMPANY. THE PROXY FORM DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE MEETING.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not
act as a proxy for any other shareholder.

Corporate members/Societies intending to send their authorized representative to attend the Annual General Meeting are
requested to send a duly certified copy of Board Resolution to the Company or upload it on the remote e-voting portal,
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Annual General Meeting.

Profile of Mr. Narendra Shah, Director of the Company, who is available for re-appointment at the 35" Annual General
Meeting of the Company, is produced in item no. 4 of the Explanatory Statement annexed to this notice and may also be
read and treated as requisite disclosure for item no. 2 of the Notice in terms of Secretarial Standard on General Meeting
(SS-2) and Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period beginning twenty-four hours before the time fixed for commencement of the meeting and ending
with the conclusion of the meeting, a member entitled to vote at the meeting is entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, at
any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice of such intention to
inspect is given in writing to the Company.

The Annual Report 2018-19, the Notice of AGM along with the attendance slip/proxy form, are being sent by electronic
mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ depositories, unless any member has
requested for a physical copy of the same. For members, who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies
are being sent by the permitted mode. The members may note that the Notice of the 35" AGM and the Annual Report
2018-19 will also be available on the Company’s website viz www.ruchiinfrastructure.com.

To support the “Green Initiative”, the members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to
register their e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the
Company electronically.

Members, proxies and authorized representatives attending the meeting are requested to complete the enclosed attendance
slip and deliver the same at the entrance of the meeting hall.

Members, proxies and authorized representatives are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report at the time of
attending the Annual General Meeting.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names
as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts are requested to write to the Company at least ten days
before the date of Annual General Meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

Members who wish to claim their dividends that remain unclaimed are requested to correspond with the Company or
to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. The amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven
years from the due date is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), constituted
by the Central Government. The Company had, accordingly, transferred the unpaid and unclaimed dividend amount
pertaining to dividend for the financial year 2010-11 to the IEPF within the stipulated time period during the year.

The members are requested to note that shares on which dividend remains unclaimed for seven consecutive years will
also be transferred to the IEPF in terms of the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable
rules made thereunder.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN)
by every participant in the securities market. SEBI has further strengthened the guidelines to raise industry standards for
Companies and their RTAs vide its circular dated April 20, 2018 and has advised Company to take special efforts to
collect copy of PAN and bank account details of members holding shares in physical form. Accordingly, a letter was
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14.

15.

16.

17.

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

sent to such shareholders through Registered Post in July, 2018 followed by two reminders sent during the financial year
2018-19. Members holding shares in physical form are further, requested to submit their PAN and Bank Account Details
to Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company by sending a duly signed letter along with self-attested copy of
PAN Card and original cancelled cheque.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate changes pertaining to their bank account details,
mandates, nominations, change of address, e-mail address etc., if any, to the Company or Company’s Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent. Members holding shares in electronic form must intimate the changes, if any, to their respective Depository
Participants. Members may note that shares in physical form cannot be transferred except in case of transmission or
transposition.

The facility for making/varying/cancelling nominations is available for individual shareholders of the Company.
Nominations can be made in Form SH-13 and any variation/cancellation thereof can be made by giving notice in Form
SH-14, prescribed under the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 for the purpose. The forms can be
obtained from the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent or from the Website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
at www.mca.gov.in.

The route map of the venue of the meeting is given at page no. 8 of the Annual Report. The prominent landmark for easy
location of the venue of the Meeting is Opposite Mantralaya, Mumbai.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has provided a facility to its members to
exercise their right to vote electronically at the 35" Annual General Meeting through the electronic voting (remote e-voting)
service facilitated by the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The facility for voting through ballot paper
will also be made available at the meeting and the members, who have not cast their votes by remote e-voting shall
be able to exercise their right to vote at the meeting through ballot paper. The members who cast their votes by remote
e-voting prior to the meeting may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again.

The instructions for e-voting are as under:

The e-voting period commences on Thursday, August 29, 2019 at 10.00 AM and ends on Monday, September 2, 2019
at 5.00 PM. During this period, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized
form, as on the cut-off date i.e. August 23, 2019, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled
by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to
change it subsequently.

The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of their shares in the equity share capital
of the Company as on the cut-off date. A person whose name is recorded in the Register of members or in the Register
of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility for
remote e-voting as well as voting at the meeting.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on Shareholders.

Now enter your user ID as under :-

a.  For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b.  For NSDL: 8 Characters DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c.  Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter folio number registered with the Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of
any Company, then your existing password is to be used.

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

J Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are

PAN requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in
the PAN field.
J In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits, enter the applicable number of 0’s before

the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters e.g. if your name is
Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RAOO0O00001 in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat
Details OR Date | account or in the Company records in order to login.

of Birth (DOB) | , If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company, please enter the member

id/folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).
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(ix)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(x)  Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter
their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for
voting for resolutions of any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.

(xi)  For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in
this Notice.

(xii) Click on the EVSN for “RUCHI INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED”.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “"RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting.
Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies
that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed.
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify
your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xvii)You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xviii)lf a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and
click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting
app can be downloaded from Google Play Store, Windows and Apple smart phones. Please follow the instructions as
prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

(xx) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

. Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to www.
evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

o A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com.

o After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user id using the admin login and password. The
Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

o The list of accounts linked in the login should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the
accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

e Ascanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian,
if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xxi) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting
manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

B.  The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Prashant D. Diwan, Practising Company Secretary as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting/ballot process in a fair and transparent manner.

C.  The Scrutinizer shall not later than forty eight hours of conclusion of 35" Annual General Meeting, submit a consolidated
scrutinizer’s report to the Executive Director of the Company, who shall declare the results forthwith.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
[Pursuant to provisions of Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013]

Item No. 3

In terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the second term of the existing
auditors (M/s. Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No.000743C/0C400037) may be
of one year only. The auditors have tendered their consent for re-appointment and requisite eligibility certificate. The Audit
Committee, on the basis of their vast experience and association with the Company, recommended their re-appointment as
proposed in the ordinary resolution as set out at item no.3 of the Notice. It is proposed to authorize the Board of Directors to
fix appropriate remuneration. However, the increase shall not be more than 15% of the existing remuneration. This explanatory
statement is provided in terms of provisions of Regulation 36(5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.
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Item No. 4
Mr. Narendra Shah was introduced on the Board of Directors and appointed as Executive Director for a period of three years
with effect from Apri 8, 2016. On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors
of the Company, at it's meeting held on April 6, 2019, re-appointed him as Executive Director of the Company for a further
period of three years with effect from April 8, 2019, subject to the approval of members in ensuing General Meeting. He is
a Director liable to retire by rotation and is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of
the Companies Act, 2013. He has given his consent to be re-appointed as Executive Director. In the opinion of the Board,
Mr. Shah fulfills the conditions for his re-appointment as Executive Director as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The following information pertaining to Mr. Narendra Shah is furnished pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013:
I.  GENERAL INFORMATION:
(i) Nature of Industry
The nature of business of the Company is providing storage facility for handling bulk storage of liquid commodities
and warehousing facility for agri commodities, cement, white goods, soap, adhesives and chemicals etc.
(ii) Date of commencement of commercial production
The Company got certificate of commencement of business on 5th October, 1984.
(iii) Financial performance based on given indicators
Figures of revenue and profit/(loss) recorded during last three financial years are as follows:

& In Lacs)
Financial Year Revenue Profit/(Loss) after tax
2018-19 5,141.27 (1,325.46)
2017-18 3,659.01 (767.92)
2016-17 29,339.34 40.43

(iv) Foreign investments or collaborators, if any

The Company has not entered into any foreign collaboration. As per the shareholding pattern of the Company as on
March 31, 2019, 1 Overseas Corporate Body holds 58,22,800 equity shares representing 2.84%, 4 Foreign Corporate
Bodies hold 2,18,40,942 equity shares representing 10.64% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company.
3 Foreign Body Corporates also hold 54,60,613 redeemable preference shares representing 100% of preference
share capital of the Company.

II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE:

(@) |Background Details Mr. Narendra Shah is 63 years old and holds Masters Degree in
Commerce and LLB from Sagar University, Madhya Pradesh. He has
more than 39 years experience in the field of accounts and finance
and is associated with the Company since 1986. Since last more than
three decades he is actively involved in taxation, finance and business
operations of the Company.

(b) | Past Remuneration ¥ 58.18 Lakh for the Financial Year 2018-19
(c) |Recognition or Awards None
(d) [Job profile and his suitability As Executive Director of the Company he is responsible for the

management of the Company, subject to the superintendence, guidance
and control of the Board of Directors. Taking into account his previous
experience, educational background, knowledge about the industry and
the nature and size of operations of the Company, he is a fit and proper
person as the Executive Director of the Company.

(e) |Remuneration Proposed The proposed remuneration details are as follows:

(a) Basic salary :% 23,46,276/- per annum

(b) HRA : X 11,73,144/- per annum

(c) Other Allowance : ¥ 16,16,760/- per annum

(d) Reimbursement of Vehicle Allowance : ¥ 3,60,000/- per annum

(e) Leave travel allowance, leave encashment, contribution to provident
fund and family pension fund, bonus, performance pay and gratuity as
per policy of the Company.




Notice «conta)

(f) | Comparative Remuneration profile with | Taking into consideration the size of the Company, the profile of Mr. Shah,
respect to industry, size of the Company, | the responsibilities shouldered by him and the industry bench marks,
profile of the position and person the proposed remuneration is reasonable, justified and commensurate
with the remuneration packages paid in the comparable Companies. The
same has been recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

(g |Pecuniary relationship directly|Mr. Narendra Shah has no pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly
or indirectly with the Company, or|with the Company other than his remuneration in the capacity of
relationship with managerial personnel, | Executive Director. He is not related to any other managerial personnel/
if any director and does not hold any equity share of the Company.
I1l.  OTHER INFORMATION:

(@) Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

Depreciation, amortization, impairment expenses, provision for doubtful debts as per IND AS and higher finance
costs are the main reasons for loss incurred by the Company.

(b) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement

The Company has taken initiatives to reduce the finance cost and variable expenses of the Company. Repayment of
loans bearing high cost of interest is also being contemplated.

(c) Expected increase in productivity and profit in measurable terms

The performance of the Company is expected to improve in the year ahead in terms of enhanced capacity utilisation,
efficient operations and better profitability as a result of above measures taken for improvement in Company’s
performance.

IV.  DISCLOSURES:

Other disclosures such as remuneration package of all directors, service contracts etc. have been disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report which is a part of this Annual Report of the Company.

It is also proposed to authorize the Board to revise the aforesaid remuneration payable to him from time to time, as may
be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, during his tenure, subject to a maximum ceiling of
% 1 Crore (Rupees one crore only) per annum including Salary, allowances, perquisites, reimbursement of expenses, leave
travel allowance, contribution to provident fund and family pension fund, leave encashment, bonus, performance pay and
gratuity as per policy of the Company.

Mr. Narendra Shah has attended all meetings of the Board held during the financial year 2018-19 and has drawn remuneration
0f¥ 58.18 Lakh. He is not on the Board and Committees of any other listed entity. He is on the Board of Directors of Peninsular
Tankers Pvt. Ltd. and Mangalore Liquid Impex Pvt. Ltd. (Subsidiary Companies).

None of the non-executive directors of the Company holds any equity shares of the Company.

This explanatory statement may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the requirements of Section 190 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Board recommends the special resolution as set out at ltem No. 4 of the Notice for approval of the members.

Save and except Mr. Narendra Shah and his relatives, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, none of the other
directors/key managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives is in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the resolution as set out at ltem No. 4 of the Notice.

Item No. 5

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17 (1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 as amended on date, no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of any person as a Non-Executive
Director who has attained the age of 75 (seventy five) years unless a special resolution is passed to that effect. Such provision
has been made effective with effect from April 1, 2019.

Mr. Krishna Das Gupta, who was appointed as an Independent Director for a period of five years at the 31% AGM held on
September 23, 2015, has attained the age of 75 years before March 31, 2019. He is M. Com., LL.B., M. Phil (Social Sciences) and
holds Masters Diploma in Public Administration. He joined Indian Revenue Service in 1966 and worked in various capacities
with Income tax department in Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, New Delhi and Uttar Pradesh. He retired as Chief Commissioner of
Income tax in 2002 and is on the Board of PTC Industries Limited, EMA India Limited, J.K. Cotton Limited and Ruchi Renewable
Energy Private Limited.

He is discharging his duties in a competent manner and has contributed proficiently in augmenting good corporate governance
practices. Considering his seniority, expertise and vast experience, which has benefited the Company, the Board recommended
continuation of his term as an Independent Director and also recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice to
be passed as special resolution. Mr. Krishna Das Gupta is fit and keen to continue and if approved, his first term of appointment
as Independent Director shall terminate on September 22, 2020.
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Save and except Mr. Krishna Das Gupta and his relatives, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company,
none of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

Registered Office:

Ruchi Infrastructure Ltd.

706, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point,
Mumbai — 400 021

Date : May 22, 2019 Ashish Mehta
Place : Mumbai

By order of the Board of Directors

Company Secretary

Route Map for Meeting Venue
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirty Fifth Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS R in Crore)
Particulars 2017-2018
Revenue from operations 51.41 36.59
Other Income 7.67 17.28
Total Income 59.08 53.87
Profit/(Loss) before depreciation, tax and exceptional items (3.30) 1.20
Exceptional items - -
Profit/(Loss) before depreciation and tax (3.30) 1.20
Depreciation 12.47 13.35
Profit/(Loss) before taxation (15.77) (12.15)
Provision for taxation (2.52) (4.47)
Profit/(Loss) after taxation (13.25) (7.68)
Balance brought forward from previous year (3.19) 4.49
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans through other comprehensive income (0.13) -
(net of tax)

Transfer to equity instruments through other comprehensive income (19.36) -
Balance as at end of year (35.93) (3.19)

OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The Company recorded revenue of ¥ 51.41 Crore from operations during the financial year under review as against
¥ 36.59 Crore in the previous financial year. The increase in revenues was primarily on account of sale of traded commodities
amounting to ¥ 17.42 Crore from ¥ 4.89 Crore in the previous year. The loss before depreciation and tax during the year
under review was ¥ 3.30 Crore as against profit of ¥ 1.20 Crore during the previous year. Considering the other income of
30.61 Crore for the year 2018-19 as against I 13.24 Crore for the year 2017-18 primarily on account of gain on sale of property, the
operational loss is lower in 2018-19 as compared to the previous year. The loss (after tax) of the Company for the year under review was
3 13.25 Crore as against ¥ 7.68 Crore recorded during the previous financial year.

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of the financial
year to which these financial statements relate and the date of this Report. There is no change in the nature of business during
the year under review.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company has not transferred any amount to the reserves during the current financial year.

DIVIDEND
The Directors regret the inability to propose any dividend for the year under review.

DIRECTORS

As per the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Narendra Shah, Director of the Company retires by
rotation at the 35" Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The Board of Directors of the Company on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at its meeting
held on April 6, 2019 has re-appointed Mr. Narendra Shah as Executive Director of the Company for a period of three
years with effect from April 8, 2019 subject to the approval of members. The terms & conditions of the re-appointment of
Mr. Narendra Shah including remuneration are set out in the notice convening the 35" Annual General Meeting of the
Company. Subject to approval of members in the ensuing General Meeting, the Board at its meeting held on April 6, 2019, has
also approved the continuation of the appointment of Mr. Krishna Das Gupta as Non-Executive Independent Director of the
Company for his remaining period of first term i.e. upto September 22, 2020, in terms of the provisions of Regulation 17(1A)
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.
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All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified for being appointed as Director, as specified in Section 164(2) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. During
the year under review, Executive Director of the Company did not receive any remuneration or commission from any of its
subsidiaries of the Company.

Necessary information required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial
Standards in respect of the re-appointment of Mr. Narendra Shah (including his brief profile) at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting is given in the Notice of 35" AGM of the Company.

The details of programs for familiarization of Independent Directors with the Company are available on the website of the
Company i.e. www.ruchiinfrastructure.com.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Narendra Shah, Executive Director

Mr. Ravindra Kumar Kakani, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Ashish Mehta, Company Secretary

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your directors confirm that:

a)  inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b)  the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2019 and of the loss of the Company for that period;

c)  thedirectors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d)  the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e)  the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The evaluation of the performance of the Board, its committees and of individual directors has been made in the manner as

enumerated in the Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy as well as, in accordance with the provisions of Companies

Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board excluding the Director being

evaluated; and the performance evaluation of the Executive Director and the Board as whole was carried out by the Independent

Directors.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors of the Company met four times during the financial year 2018-19. The meetings were held on May 30,

2018, August 8, 2018, November 13, 2018 and February 6, 2019.

ANNUAL RETURN

An extract of the Annual Return of the Company in Form MGT-9 in accordance with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

and relevant rules made thereunder is annexed as Annexure | to this report.

AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

STATUTORY AUDITORS
The first term of the appointment of M/s. Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
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000743C/0C400037) is expiring in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. On the basis of recommendation
of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors proposed the re-appointment of M/s. Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants as Statutory Auditors for a further period of one year (second term) from the conclusion of 35" Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of 36" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

M/s. Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants have given a written consent and certificate to the effect that their
re-appointment, if made, would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. As
required under Regulation 33(1)(d) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Auditors
have also confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

The notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.
The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 issued by
Mr. Prashant Diwan, Practising Company Secretary is annexed herewith as Annexure Il and is self-explanatory. The Board has
advised the promoters to comply with provisions of Regulation 31 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, pertaining to dematerialization of their shareholding.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company has three subsidiaries as at March 31, 2019 i.e. Mangalore Liquid Impex Pvt. Ltd., Peninsular Tankers Pvt. Ltd.
and Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt. Ltd. The Company does not have any joint venture or associate Company during the year
under review; however financials of an associate partnership firm, namely, Narang & Ruchi Developers have been consolidated
in terms of applicable Accounting Standards.

The statement containing salient features of the financial statements of its Subsidiary Companies and their contribution to
the overall performance of the Company during the period is attached with the financial statements of the Company in form
AOC-1. The Annual Report of your Company, containing inter alia the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements,
has been placed on the website of the Company at www.ruchiinfrastructure.com. Further, the audited financial statements
together with related information of each of the subsidiary Companies have also been placed on the website of the Company
at www.ruchiinfrastructure.com.

The policy for determining material subsidiary as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company is available on the website
of the Company at www.ruchiinfrastructure.com.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS/ADVANCES, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES

Particulars of loans/advances, investments, guarantees made and securities provided during the year as required under
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are provided in the notes to the standalone financial statements (Please refer Note 40 and
41 to the standalone financial statements).

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. Prior omnibus approval was obtained from the Audit Committee of
the Board for the related party transactions which are of repetitive nature and/or which can be foreseen and accordingly the
required disclosures are made to the Audit Committee on quarterly basis in terms of the transactions under such omnibus approval
of the Committee. All related party transactions were placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for review and
approval.

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with related parties which could be
considered material in accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. The policy on materiality of related party transactions
and on dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors may be accessed
on the Company’s website at www.ruchiinfrastructure.com. Your directors draw attention of the members to Note 48 to the
standalone financial statements which set out related party disclosures in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Since the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, the information related to conservation of energy and
technology absorption as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the Company.

Foreign Exchange earning was ¥ Nil (Previous year ¥ Nil) and Foreign Exchange Outgo was ¥ Nil (Previous year
% 0.05 Crore).

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. An internal
audit programme covering various activities and periodical reports are submitted to the management as well as Audit
Committee of the Board. The Company has a well-defined organizational structure, authority levels and internal rules and
guidelines for conducting business transactions. Besides the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has put primary responsibility of implementing a robust Internal Financial Control
framework and is under consistent supervision of Audit Committee, Board of Directors and also independent Statutory Auditors.
During the year, no reportable material weakness in the design or operation of internal control system and their adequacy was
observed.

RISK MANAGEMENT

With focused approach towards core business of storage infrastructure and renewable energy, the Board regularly reviews
the risk management strategy of the Company. The detailed analysis of risk and concerns of the Company is provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company adheres to the corporate governance requirements set out by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
and is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance. A separate report on Corporate Governance forms
an integral part of this Annual Report. Certificate of Statutory Auditors’ regarding compliance of Corporate Governance as
stipulated under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is annexed herewith
as Annexure 11 to this Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as Annexure IV to this report and the information
required under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is
provided in a separate annexure forming part of this Report. Further, the Annual Report is being sent to the members excluding
the aforesaid annexure. In terms of provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the said annexure is open for
inspection at the Registered office of the Company. Any member interested in obtaining the same may write to the Company
Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

As required under Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy for its directors and employees to
report their genuine concerns/grievances. The Policy also provides adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who
use such mechanism and makes provisions for direct access to the Vigilance Officer. The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower
Policy is uploaded on the website of the Company at www.ruchiinfrastructure.com.

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION POLICY

The Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy of the Company as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of

the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is available

on the website of the Company i.e. www.ruchiinfrastructure.com. The salient features of the policy are:

(@) It applies to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), Key Managerial Personnel (the “KMP”) and the Senior Management
Personnel of the Company. The primary objective of the Policy is to provide a framework and set standards for the selection,
nomination, remuneration and evaluation of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and officials comprising the senior
management.
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(b) It deals with functions, responsibilities and Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
(c) It sets guidelines/principles for recruitment/appointment of Directors/KMPs/Senior Officials and remuneration thereof.
(d) It deals with evaluation/assessment of Directors/KMPs/Senior Officials of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company has a duly constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee, which is responsible for fulfilling the
CSR objectives of the Company. The Committee comprises of Mr. Mohan Das Kabra (Chairman), Mr. Narendra Shah and
Mrs. Ruchi Joshi, as members. The CSR Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) which was approved by the Board and is available on the website of the Company
at www.ruchiinfrastructure.com.

During the year, the Company was not obliged to spend any amount on CSR activities/ programs for want of average net
profits calculated in terms of the provisions of Section 135 read with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. Annual report on
CSR activities as required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure V to
this Report.

OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors of the Company had already constituted various Committees and approved their terms of reference/role
in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.
The details of the role and composition of these Committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial year
and attendance at the meetings, are provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013

The Company always believed in providing an encouraging work environment devoid of discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassment and has adopted a policy in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. The objective of the policy is to prohibit,
prevent and address issues of sexual harassment at the workplace. The policy covers all employees irrespective of their nature of
employment and also applicable in respect of all allegations of sexual harassment made by an outsider against an employee. An
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has also been set up to redress complaints received on sexual harassment. No complaint
was pending at beginning of the year and none has been received during the year.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following matters as there were no transactions

pertaining to such matters during the year under review:

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. lIssue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.

4 No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals impacting the going concern status of
the Company and its operations in future.

5. No instances of fraud were reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules framed thereunder either to the Company or to the Central Government.

6.  The Company is regularly maintaining cost records for wind power generation, as specified under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Yours Directors place on record their gratitude for the valued support and assistance extended to the Company by the

Shareholders, Banks and Government Authorities and look forward to their continued support. Your directors also express their

appreciation for the dedicated and sincere services rendered by employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Narendra Shah Krishna Das Gupta
Place : Mumbai Executive Director Director
Date : May 22, 2019 DIN: 02143172 DIN:00374379
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ANNEXURE | TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
(FORM NO. MGT-9)

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2019
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1)
of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN

L65990MH1984PLC033878

Registration Date

August 28, 1984

Name of the Company

Ruchi Infrastructure Limited

Transfer Agent

iv | Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by Shares
v | Address of the Registered office & contact details 706, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point,
Mumbai-400021, Maharashtra
Tel: +91 22 66560600
Fax: +91 22 22043397
e-mail: ashish_mehta@ruchiinfrastructure.com
vi | Whether listed company Yes
vii | Name, address and contact details of the Registrar & Sarthak Global Limited

170/10, Flim Colony, R. N.T. Marg,
Indore-452001 Tel: +91 731 4279626/2523545
e-mail: investors@sarthakglobal.com

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company are as given below:

S. | Name & Description of main products/ services NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No. Product /service of the company
1 Storage & Warehousing 52109 53.54
2 Trading in Commodities — 33.88
3 Wind Power generated — 12.58
Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S. | Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ % of | Applicable
No. Subsidiary/ Shares Section
Associate Held
1 Mangalore Liquid Impex Private Limited U85110KA1997PTC021887 Subsidiary 98 2(87)
Opposite Customs House, Panambur,
New Mangalore, Dakshina Kannada,
Karnataka-575010
2 Peninsular Tankers Private Limited U35100MH2007PTC176717 |  Subsidiary 100 2(87)
706, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point,
Mumbai, Maharashtra-400021
3 Ruchi Renewable Energy Private Limited U40104MH2008PTC185366 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)
706, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point,
Mumbai, Maharashtra-400021
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage to total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end % Change
beginning of the year of the year during the
Demat Physical Total | % of Total Demat Physical Total | % of Total | Year
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
*a) Individual/HUF 72,14,969 | 2,51,99,300 | 3,24,14,269 1579 51,99,990 | 2,51,99,300 | 3,03,99,290 14.81 (0.98)

b) Central Govt. — — — — — _ _ _ _
c) State Gowt. — — — - — — _ _
d) Bodies Corporate 4,28,35,384 | 1,99,20,700 | 6,27,56,084 30.58 | 4,28,35,384 | 1,99,20,700 | 6,27,56,084 30.58 —

e) Banks/Fl — - - - - — - — -
f) Any other — — — — — — — — —
Umesh Shahra (Trustee of Shashwat Trust) | 1,55,00,000 — [ 1,55,00000 755 | 1,80,00,000 — 1 1,80,00,000 8.77 122
Dinesh Khandelwal (Trustee of Disha 35,05,610 —| 3505610 171] 3505610 —| 3505610 171 _
Foundation)
Sub-total (A)(1) 6,90,55,963 | 4,51,20,000 | 11,41,75,963 55.63 | 6,95,40,984 | 4,51,20,000 | 11,46,60,984 55.87 0.24
(2) Foreign
a) NRI- Individuals 76,00,000 — 76,00,000 3.70 76,00,000 — 76,00,000 3.70 —

b) Other- Individuals — — — — — — — _ _
c) Bodies Corporate — — — — — — — — _

d) Banks/FI — — — — — — — — —
e) Any other — — — — — — — — —
Sub-total (A)(2) 76,00,000 — | 76,00,000 3.70]  76,00,000 — | 76,00,000 3.70 —
Total Shareholding of Promoters 7,66,55,963 | 4,51,20,000 | 12,17,75,963 59.33 | 7,71,40,984 | 4,51,20,000 | 12,22,60,984 59.57 0.24

(A)=(A)1)+A) (2)
B. Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds — — — — — — — _ _
b) Banks/FI — — — _ _ _
c) Central Govt. 29,550 — 29,550 0.01 66,712 — 66,712 0.03 0.02
d) State Gowt. — — — — — — — _ _
e) Venture Capital Funds — — — — — - — _ _
f) Insurance Companies — — — — — — — — _
g) Flls — — _ _ _ _ _ _ _
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds — — — — — — — _ _
i) Others (specify) — — - — _ _ _ _ _
Sub-total (B)(1) 29,550 — 29,550 0.01 66,712 — 66,712 0.03 0.02
(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates

i) Indian 3,48,05,153 | 1,20,87,000 | 4,6892,153 22.85| 2,27,77,061 | 1,20,87,000 | 3,48,64,061 16.99 (5.86)
ii) Overseas 2,76,63,742 —| 2,76,63,742 13.48] 2,76,03,742 — | 2,76,63,742 13.48 —
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders holding 72,73,646 28,200 73,01,846 3.56 81,37,065 24,200 81,61,265 3.98 0.42
nominal share capital upto
1 lakh
i) Individuals shareholders holding 10,74,394 — 10,74,394 0.53 9,29,155 — 9,29,155 0.45 (0.08)
nominal share capital in excess
of ¥ 1 lakh
c) Others - Clearing Members 5,02,294 — 5,02,294 0.24 | 1,12,94,023 — | 1,12,94,023 5.50 5.26
Sub-total (B)(2): 7,13,19,229 | 1,21,15,200 | 8,34,34,429 40.66 | 7,08,01,046 | 1,21,11,200 | 8,29,12,246 40.40 (0.26)
Total Public Shareholding 7,13,48,779 | 1,21,15,200 | 8,34,63,979 40.67 | 7,08,67,758 | 1,21,11,200 | 8,29,78,958 40.43 (0.24)

(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs — — — — — — — —
Grand Total (A+B+C) 14,80,04,742 | 5,72,35,200 | 20,52,39,942 100.00 | 14,80,08,742 | 5,72,31,200 | 20,52,39,942 100.00 —
*As per the intimations received by the Company, the acquisition of 16,99,008 equity shares (in aggregate) by Savitri Devi Shahra through market on 27th and 28th March, 2018 and sale of
11,99,008 equity shares by Kailash Chandra Shahra HUF in market on 28th March, 2018 have not been reflected in their respective demat accounts till 31st March, 2018 and accordingly
the above details do not take account of such acquisition/sale.
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S. | Shareholder’'s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

% change in

No. share holding
No. of Shares % of total % of shares |  No. of Shares % of total % of shares during the year

shares of the pledged/ shares of the Pledged/

Company | encumbered to Company | encumbered to

total shares total shares
1 Neha Saraf 4,00,000 0.19 — 4,00,000 0.19 — —
2 | Sarvesh Shahra 5,971 — — — — — —
3 | Umesh Shahra — — — — — — —
4 | Neeta Shahra — — — — — — —
5 | Savitri Devi Shahra 3,00,000 0.15 — — — — (0.15)
6 | Sunaina Shahra 24,00,000 1.17 — 24,00,000 117 — —
7 | Kailash Chandra Shahra HUF 16,99,008 0.83 — — — — (0.83)
8 | Vishesh Shahra 47,99,990 2.34 — 47,99,990 2.34 — —
9 | Suresh Chandra Shahra HUF 12,00,000 0.58 — 12,00,000 0.58 — —
10 | Bhavna Goel 24,00,000 117 — 24,00,000 117 — —
11 | Ushadevi Shahra 12,00,000 0.59 — 12,00,000 0.59 — —
12 | Santosh Shahra 72,00,000 3.51 — 72,00,000 3.51 — —
13 | Aditi Shahra 24,00,000 117 — 24,00,000 117 — —
14 | Ruchi Shahra 24,00,000 1.17 — 24,00,000 1.17 — —
15 | Manish Shahra 48,02,000 2.34 — 48,02,000 2.34 — —
16 | Mrudula Shahra 11,97,300 0.58 — 11,97,300 0.58 — —
17 | Amisha Shahra 10,000 — — — — — —
18 | Dinesh Khandelwal (Trustee of Disha 35,05,610 1.71 — 35,05,610 1.71 — —

Foundation)

19 | Umesh Shahra (Trustee of Shashwat Trust) 1,55,00,000 7.55 — 1,80,00,000 8.77 — 1.22
20 | Ruchi Soya Industries Limited 2,73,24,239 13.31 — 2,73,24,239 13.31 — —
21 | Mahakosh Holdings Private Limited 1,50,57,840 7.34 — 1,50,57,840 7.34 — —
22 | Maha Kosh Papers Private Limited 60,00,000 2.92 — 60,00,000 2.92 — —
23 | Soyumm Marketing Private Limited 73,53,305 3.58 — 73,53,305 3.58 — —
24 | Sarthak Industries Limited 19,50,700 0.95 — 19,50,700 0.95 — —
25 | Viksit Engineering Limited 24,00,000 117 — 24,00,000 1.17 — —
26 | Nutrela Marketing Limited 12,00,000 0.59 — 12,00,000 0.59 — —
27 | Shahra Brothers Private Limited 14,70,000 0.72 — 14,70,000 0.72 — —
28 | Ankesh Shahra 76,00,000 3.70 — 76,00,000 3.70 — —
Total 12,17,75,963 59.33 —| 12,22,60,984 59.57 — 0.24
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(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding

SI. | Name of Promoters Shareholding at the Date wise Increase/Decrease in | Cumulative Shareholding |  Shareholding at the
No. beginning of the Year Promoters Share holding during during the Year end of the Year
the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/sweat equity etc.)
No.of | % of total No.of | % of total No.of | % of total
Shares | Shares of the Shares | Shares of the Shares | Shares of the
Company Company Company
1 |Sarvesh Shahra 5,971 — Sale of 5,971 equity shars — — — —
on 13.3.2019
2 | Amisha Shahra 10,000 — Sale of 10,000 equity shares — — — —
on 13.3.2019
3 | Savitri Devi Shahra 19,99,008 0.97 | Acquisition of 5,00,000 equity shares — — — —
on 7.6.2018, 992 equity shares on
11.6.2018. Gifted 25,00,000 equity
shares on 24.12.2018
4 | Kailash Chandra Shahra 5,00,000 0.24 Sale of 5,00,000 equity shares — — — —
HUF on7.6.2018
5 | Umesh Shahra (Trustee | 1,55,00,000 7.55|  Gift received of 25,00,000 equity | 1,80,00,000 8.77 | 1,80,00,000 8.77
of Shashwat Trust) shares on 24.12.2018
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

ADRs)

SI. | Name of Top Ten Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding at the

No. of the year (as on 1.4.2018) end of the year (as on 31.3.2019)
No. of Shares | % of total Shares No. of Shares | % of total Shares
of the Company of the Company
1 Bunkim Finance & Inv. Pvt. Ltd. 2,89,86,321 14.12 1,77,06,321 8.63
2 Jayati Finance & Inv. Pvt. Ltd. 95,16,569 4.64 97,08,608 4,73
3 *Mangal Keshav Financial Services LLP — — 92,80,000 4.52
4 Cresta Fund Limited 85,94,699 4.19 85,94,699 4.19
5 APMS Investments Fund Limited 70,66,809 3.44 70,66,809 3.44
6 Antarika Resources Limited 58,22,800 2.84 58,22,800 2.84
7 Lotus Global Investments Limited 57,49,434 2.80 57,49,434 2.80
8 Keval India Limited 24,00,000 1.17 24,00,000 1.17
9 Aldan Investments Pvt. Ltd. — — 20,00,000 0.97
10 |**Anand Mangal Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd. 17,88,202 0.87 - -
11 | **Investmart Stock Brokers Pvt. Ltd. 16,99,958 0.83 - -
12 | Sarthak Global Limited 16,80,000 0.82 16,80,000 0.82

The shares of the Company are traded on a daily basis and hence the datewise increase/decrease in shareholding is not

indicated.

*Not in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 1.4.2018. The same has been reflected above since the shareholder was in the

Top 10 shareholders as on 31.3.2019.

**Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 31.3.2019. The same is reflected above since the shareholder was one

of Top 10 shareholders as on 1.4.2018.

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

SI. No. Name of Directors/KMP

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (as on 1.4.2018)

Cumulative Shareholding at the
end of the year (as on 31.3.2019)

No. of Shares

% of total Shares of

No. of Shares

% of total Shares

the Company of the Company
V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment R In Lacs)
Particulars Secured Loans | Unsecured Loans Deposits Total
excluding deposits Indebtedness

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 16,485.16 — — 16,485.16
ii) Interest due but not paid — — — —
i) Interest accrued but not due 49.18 — — 49.18
Total (i-+ii+iii) 16,534.34 — — 16,534.34

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition — — — —
Reduction (1,851.09) — — (1,851.09)
Net Change (1,851.09) — — (1,851.09)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 14,667.60 — — 14,667.60
ii) Interest due but not paid — — — —
iii) Interest accrued but not due 15.65 — — 15.65
Total (i+ii+iii) 14,683.25 — — 14,683.25
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager

& In Lacs)

S.
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the MD/WTD/
Manager

Mr. Narendra Shah

Total Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

58.18

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Stock option

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others (specify)

Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other Directors

& In Lacs)

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the Directors

Mr. Krishna Das
Gupta

Mr. Mohan Das
Kabra

Mrs. Ruchi Joshi

Total Amount

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board/committee meetings

0.36

0.40

0.40

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

0.36

0.40

0.40

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board/committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnesl other than Managing Director/Manager/Whole-time Director

R In Lacs)

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Total

Company
Secretary

Chief Financial
Officer

Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

36.18

15.42 51.60

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others, specify

Others, please specify

Total

VIl

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type

Brief
Description

Section of the
Companies Act

Details of
Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority (RD/
NCLT/Court)

Appeal made
if any (give
details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding
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ANNEXURE Il TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2019

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

Ruchi Infrastructure Limited
706, Tulsiani Chambers,
Nariman Point,

Mumbai -400021

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Ruchi Infrastructure Limited having CIN: L65990MH1984PLC033878 (hereinafter called “the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31 March, 2019 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended 315 March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii)  The Depositories Act,1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(

iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Overseas Direct
Investment.

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act'):-

(@)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; and

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

As per the explanations given to me in the representations made by the management and relied upon by me, during the period
under review, provisions of the following regulations were not applicable to the Company:

() Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

(i) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):-
) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(
(
(
(
e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.
have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

)

(a

(

(

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

(

|

(i Secretarial Standards 1 & 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the Companies Act, 2013.
(

ii)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above to this report to the extent applicable, except the shareholding of promoter(s)
and promoter group is not 100% in dematerialized form as required under Regulation 31(2) of The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate notice is generally given to all directors to
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and as informed, there were no dissenting members’ views and hence not recorded as
part of the minutes.

| further report that as per the explanations given to me in the representations made by the management and relied upon by
me there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

As per the explanations given to me in the representations made by the management and relied upon by me, | further report
that, during the audit period there were no other specific events / actions took place, having a major bearing on the Company’s
affairs, in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc.

Prashant Diwan
Practising Company Secretary
FCS: 1403 CP: 1979

Date: 22.05.2019
Place: Mumbai

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

Annexure “A”
To
The Members
Ruchi Infrastructure Limited
706, Tulsiani Chambers
Nariman Point
Mumbai — 400 021

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.
2. Ihave followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness

of the contents of Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate, Specific and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Prashant Diwan
Practising Company Secretary
FCS: 1403 CP: 1979

Date: 22.05.2019
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE 11l TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Auditors’ Certificate

To
The Members of
Ruchi Infrastructure Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Ruchi Infrastructure Limited (the Company)
for the year ended March 31, 2019 as stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as applicable to the Company.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination has been
limited to a review of the procedure and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliances with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said regulations. It is neither an audit nor an expression or opinion
of the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, and the representations made
by the Directors and the management, we hereby certify that the Company has generally complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing regulations as mentioned above, except non-compliance of Regulation
31(2) of the aforesaid Regulations.

As informed to us, the records relating to investors’ grievances pending against the Company, if any, is maintained by the
Registrar of the Company, who has certified that as at March 31, 2019, no grievances remained unattended/pending for more
than 30 days.

We further state that such compliances is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For and on behalf of

Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn No. 000743C/0C400037)

CA Ashok Khasgiwala
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 22, 2019 Membership No. 70288
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ANNEXURE IV TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The information pursuant to Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as given below:

1.

24

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
financial year;

Mr. Narandra Shah is the Executive Director of the Company. The ratio of his remuneration to the median remuneration
of the employees of the Company for the financial year was as under:

Mr. Narendra Shah 15.02:1.00

The other Directors are non-executive independent directors and have not been paid any remuneration, except sitting
fee.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year;

Mr. Narendra Shah 10%
Mr. Ashish Mehta 8%

Mr. Ravindra Kumar Kakani 12.90%
The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 8.10%

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 126 as on March 31, 2019.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there

are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 10.20%

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

The remuneration is as per the Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and
a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company as approved the Board of Directors, may be accessed on the
Company’s Website i.e. www.ruchiinfrastructure.com. Since the Company does not have average net profit calculated
under Section 135 read with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has not spent any amount on its
Corporate Social Responsibility programs/activities during the financial year 2018-19.

The Composition of the CSR Committee:

The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of Directors comprising of Mr. Mohan Das Kabra,
Chairman, Mr. Narendra Shah and Mrs. Ruchi Joshi, Members.

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: NIL

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (Two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): NIL
Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

(@) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: ¥ NIL

(b) Amount unspent, if any: Not Applicable

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
S.No. | CSR project Sector in Projects or Amount Amount spent | Cumulative Amount
or activity which the programs: (1) outlay on the projects | expenditure spent:
identified project is Local area (Budget) or programs. upto the Director
covered or other, (2) project or Sub-heads: reporting or through
Specify the state | programs wise (1) Direct period implementing
and district expenditure agency
where projects on projects or
or programs was programs,(2)
undertaken Overheads
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any
part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report: Not Applicable.

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is incompliance
with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company:

We hereby affirm that the CSR Policy as approved by the Board has been implemented and the CSR Committee as well
as Board monitors the implementation of the CSR activities/programs undertaken by the Company in compliance of CSR
objectives and Policy of the Company.

Narendra Shah Mohan Das Kabra
Date: May 22, 2019 Executive Director Chairman-CSR Committee
Place: Mumbai DIN: 02143172 DIN: 07896243
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INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT
Your Company is primarily engaged in the business of Logistics and storage infrastructure viz.

(@)  Storage facilities for handling bulk storage of liquid commaodities such as edible oils, petroleum products, liquid chemicals,
etc.;

(b)  Warehousing facilities including storing Agi commodities such as wheat, maize, soybean etc. as well as extending
customized warehousing facility for cement, white goods, soap, adhesive industry; and

(c)  Renewable Energy — wherein company has set up wind energy projects in MP including through 100% subsidiary. The
Company also has a view for expansion in this sector.

The Indian logistics industry which provides employment to more than 22 million people has grown at a CAGR of 7.8
percent during the last five years, as per the economic survey 2017-18. Employment is expected to surge to 40 million by
2020. Although, India has improved its rank in all the six components of logistics performance index still with vast geography
and huge population India is behind countries like Taiwan (27), Chile (34), Finland (10) etc. Thus there is wonderful growth
opportunity in all the sub-verticals of Warehousing and Storage business. In terms of industry sources, the market size of the
logistics sector is seen climbing to $215 billion by 2020, logging 10.5 percent compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) over
2017. The annual investments in the logistics sector are expected to reach $500 billion by 2025.

The Indian Warehousing industry accounts for around 15% of the total logistics market in globe. It is the second most important
component after transportation. The industry structure is highly fragmented especially the industrial warehousing segment
with the un-organised players accounting for 70 to 75 percent of the total warehousing space. Between 2018 and 2020, the
warehousing is poised to receive ¥ 50,000 crore investments. However, the logistics industry faces challenges such as under-
developed material handling infrastructure, fragmented warehousing, multiple regulatory and policy making bodies, lack of
seamless movement of goods across modes, minimal integrated IT infrastructure. In order to develop this sector, focus on new
technology, skilling, automation, improving inter-modal transportation, single window for giving clearances and simplifying
processes would be required.

With the implementation of GST, the focus of the players has now shifted to enhancing the supply chain efficiencies. This is
generating demand both in Agri warehousing as well as Non-Agri warehousing. Government is also increasing their annual
procurement target of Agri commodities each year.

By recognizing the importance of the sector, a new logistics division has been created in the Department of Commerce to develop
and coordinate integrated development of the industry, improvement in existing procedures, identification of bottlenecks and
gaps, and introduction of technology-based interventions in this sector, the survey said. Improving logistics sector has huge
implication on exports and it is estimated that a 10 per cent decrease in indirect logistics cost can increase 5-8 per cent of exports.

In the same manner, Renewable Energy is also accorded priority in the Energy sector mix in the country for past years. As a part
of its Paris Agreement commitments, the Government of India has set an ambitious target of achieving 175 GW of renewable
energy capacity by 2022. These include 100 GW of solar capacity addition and 60 GW of wind power capacity. India added
record 8,532 MW of renewable energy capacity in 2018-19. With this the cumulative capacity has already crossed 78 GW.

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

The Indian warehousing industry is set to grow at a CAGR of 8 to 10 percent and modern warehousing at 25 to 30 percent over
the next five years due to various factors including anticipated increase in global demand, growth in organized retail coupled
with increasing manufacturing facilities, presence of extremely affordable and desirable e-commerce options and growth in
international trade. Exchanges like NCDX or NCS are also marking double digit growth in the Agri. Spot market.,

Edible oil and chemicals are mostly stored in commercial tank farms. Demand for liquid storage is increasing in India amid
increasing traffic and limited existing capacities. Currently, the utilization of commercial farm tanks in India is around 80
percent. Tank Farm Industry is on the threshold of phenomenal growth in India. There is a good demand for SS tanks, Floating
Roof Tanks, storage tanks for specialized products like Bitumen & Coal Tar and bunkering fuels supply.

The factors influencing the aggregate demand are as follows:

1. Consumption led demand by per capita income, booming e-commerce industry and Fast Moving Consumer Goods
market gaining traction.

2. Manufacturing Led demand -Make in India campaign is expected to increase the manufacturing activities in India, entailing
demand for warehousing. The Warehousing segment is expected to attract an investment of close to ¥ 150 Billion in the
next five years. The “Make in India initiative” is expected to boost the manufacturing sector to 10 percent growth. The
manufacturing sector spends 2 to 20 percent of its revenue on logistics.

3. Growth in Agriculture.
4. Improvement in International trade (Export and Import).
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5. Emergence of organized retail.
6.  Increasing private and foreign investments in infrastructure.
7. Easing of Government regulations.

The new growth drivers such as organised retail, information technology (IT), telecommunications and health care can be
considered as high potential sectors. The growth of these drivers, backed by the advent of technological advancements, is
likely to rise the demand for organised and automated warehouses going forward.

The industry is trying to address the structural limitations of the warehousing industry viz. lack of alignment of capacity,
absence of appropriate scale to support value oriented pricing, low capital and operating efficiencies, in-appropriate level of
automation. Established players are also bringing in new technologies in the market. This is leading to focus on mechanization
and better cost management.

From a mere combination of transportation and storage services, Logistics is fast emerging as a strategic function that involves
end to end value added solutions to improve the efficiency of the supply chain and to offer better value to the consumers of the
services. Growing demand for better services at lower costs has led to the emergence of organized warehousing in the country.
Appropriate size of storage, locational factors to facilitate better connectivity between the provider, aggregator and end user,
Efficient inventory management systems, Modern storage solutions, automation of warehouses for the effective utilization of
space and MIS implementation are key differentiating factors which would be considered in future investments in the sector
for the organized players, keeping in view the long term and sustainable advantage.

It is believed that the following initiatives would contribute towards creating a sustainable roadmap for the growth of the
logistics sector in 2019.

a. Infrastructure enablement

The government has reiterated its steadfast commitment to modernizing the functionalities of Indian logistics with a key
focus on infrastructure development. The ambitious Bharatmala project holds the promise of strengthening the countrywide
road network and improving connectivity with the interior and backward areas of the country. The Sagarmala initiative
is a key step in doubling India’s coastal shipping share in the country’s broader modal mix and aims at formulating a
comprehensive shipping policy and optimizing the country’s maritime assets.

The high-speed, freight-only Dedicated Freight Corridor Project aims at decongesting a heavily saturated road network
and reducing freight transit times from industrial heartlands in north India to ports on the eastern and western coast of the
country..

b.  Regulatory support

Key reform measures and policy interventions like the unveiling of the Goods and Services Tax, (GST), relaxed FDI
regulations and granting of infra status has boosted the core competencies of the Indian logistics industry. The ongoing
trade policy related matters between the US and China presents India with the key opportunity to expand its export trade
and correct its trade imbalances with the Asian economic powerhouse.

c.  Technological leverage

The emergence of new-age empowering technologies like artificial intelligence, internet of things, and machine learning
will disrupt the conventional workings of the country’s logistics sector. The impact of these technologies is anticipated to
enhance productivity across the supply chain spectrum and streamline operational processes thus resulting in boosting
efficiencies of supply networks, reduce wastages and lead to supply chain optimization.

BUSINESS STRATEGY; OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

(a) Liquid Storage Business Vertical: Your Company has storage infrastructural facilities at strategic locations across the country.
Your Company is exploring a number of options to leverage the strengths of the company viz. being the major player in the bulk
liquid storage industry, having experienced and well-trained manpower and a strong track record in terms of strategic alliance
with third parties. Your company focuses on further expanding and optimizing its network of storage terminals, providing
specialist logistic concepts and entering into strategic alliances that provide related logistic services.

(b) Warehouse Storage Business: This vertical of the company has achieved around 80%+ CAGR for past 2 years. Company in
the middle of complete Business Transformation and in last 10 quarters it has established itself as one of the leading warehouse
and service provider in MP. The company has not enlarged the product portfolio to include storage of various products other
than the agri products but also has successfully started construction of customized warehouse for the prospective customers.
This will enable the company to utilize the facilities efficiently, unlock the potential value, from time to time, due to better
economies of scale and visibility in the growing space with better connect with the existing and potential consumer base.

Considering the long term outlook of the storage industry, the Company is evaluating various opportunities to formulate strategic
plans for a sustainable growth of the company. This will entail investments, strengthening of the existing systems, strategic
partnerships/alliances etc to cater to growing supply chain dynamics. The competition in this industry is, however, increasing
due to many factors including technological factors, capacity orientation, efficiency in costs, dynamic changes in the needs
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of user industry apart from seasonality. Your company is aware of the changing nature of the storage industry and reviewing
action plans to be constantly relevant to the user industry and facilitate value addition.

(c) Renewable Energy: Your Company has 10.8 MW wind power project which is in operations for around 11 years also has
14.7 MW wind project in its 100% subsidiary. Both the projects are running successfully. With seasoned and experienced team
and good geographic network your company is now exploring opportunity to enter into Solar power as well.

RISKS AND CONCERNS
(a) Domestic Economy

The domestic economy is primarily driven by the domestic consumption, import and export business activities, the
demand -supply factors, overall economic growth and global factors. Any slow down in the overall business sentiments
impact the business of the company. However, the core business segments that the company is engaged facilitate trade
and contribute to the supply chain demand and consumption needs. Also, keeping in view the overall thrust given to the
Infrastructural needs in the country for the next wave of development, your company is well geared to cater to wise range
and varied needs of businesses across sectors.

(b) Government Policies

Government policies have major influence on the prospects of the Industry. This includes encouragements for investments
on infra sector, duties and tariffs on imports, concessions and subsidies on exports, taxes on domestic products, supportive
environment for financing long term infra projects and the like. It is widely recognized that investments in infrastructure
will be key to revive and sustain high economic growth, the tariffs need to be equitable among the stakeholders to
facilitate global trade and support for creation of conductive conditions for financing infra sector will be needed to step
up projects in infra sectors. The Government policies have been and are likely to be progressive in this regard.

(c) Price Volatility

The end users of the storage division of the company deal in commodities which are subject to price volatility and therefore
have exposures which are prone to commodity price fluctuations in their businesses. One of the business segments of
Your Company too is exposed to commodity price variations. In order to mitigate the risks arising from the commodity
price movements, the company has planned to reduce (a) the dependence on storage of agri commaodities but diversify
into other high value added products, by the end users and (b) business volumes in the commodity oriented business
segment considerably lower to focus more on core infrastructure businesses.

(d) Weather conditions in India

Monsoon in India is an important factor for agro based economic businesses and also fast moving consumer goods
due to disposal income and consumption. The storage needs has thus a bearing on the consequence of production and
distribution owing to weather factors. Your company has set up the terminals at strategic locations with a view to derive
efficiency on logistics and supply chain in terms of proximity to sourcing and consumption centers. Also, the company
has diversified into other high value products for inland storage terminals so as to reduce the dependency on storage of
agro based products which are susceptible to weather conditions and seasonality.

Also, change in weather conditions might have an impact on generation of wind power relating to our renewable energy
segment. However, (a) the power projects of your company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been set up at strategic
places having dependable wind velocity record with consistency and (b) our projects have had a good track record of
generation of power in the past. It is, therefore, expected that the projects will deliver sustainable power generation over
a period.

(e) International business sentiments

The international business sentiments, demand supply factors, import duties, export subsidies/concessions, commercial
parity and foreign exchange movements impact the volumes of Import into and export out of India. Your company has
storage locations at port based locations to facilitate supply chain management of end users. Considering the shortage of
storage spaces at port based locations and the growing volumes of international trade, the demand for storage is expected
to be buoyant in nature in future.

(f)  Fuel Prices

Fuel prices impact the transportation costs and the overall cost of products. Any abnormal increase in fuel prices will
push up the cost of products and bring down the consumption in cases of commodity oriented products. This will in
turn impact the needs for and turnaround of storage of commodities. However, keeping in view that (a) the fuel prices
have been range bound, (b) the domestic economy is likely to improve in the near future on sustainable basis and (c) the
business initiatives undertaken for diversification into storage of high end products. Your company has set up a balanced
business model to take care of the pattern of change in storage needs at various points from time to time.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The Company’s internal control systems are adequate. Processes, functions and measures forming part of internal control have
been dealt with the Director’s Report.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS ANALYSIS
Details of significant changes in key financial ratios are as follows:

2018-19 2017-18 *Change (%)

Debtors Turnover (Days) 162.47 722.34 (77.51)
Inventory Turnover (Days) 284.75 1,265.92 (77.51)
Interest Coverage Ratio (Times) (0.25) 0.16 (252.86)
Current Ratio (Times) 0.94 1.10 (14.42)
Debt Equity Ratio (Times) 1.23 1.18 4.00
Operating Profit Margin (%) 3.62% (2.78%) (230.37)
Net Profit Margin (%) (22.44%) (14.26%) 57.38
Return on Net Worth (%) (15.57%) (10.80%) 44.12

*Explanation for major changes in the ratios:

(@) Debtors Turnover ratio has improved in financial year 2018-19 as compared to the previous year due to better recovery
and increased provisoning for doubtful debts resulting in lower overall debtors.

(b) Inventory trunover ratio has improved in financial year 2018-19 as compared to previous year due to better turnaround
of inventory.

(c)  Profit for the previous year includes gain on sale of property ¥ 13.24 Crore as compared to ¥ 0.61 Crore In Current year.
Excluding such other income, the interest coverage ratio has improved to (0.29) in current year as compared to (0.75) in
the previous year.

(d)  Operating profit margin has improved primarily due to addition of capacity and better levels of capacity utilisation in core
infrastructure businesses.

(e) Net Profit margin has comparatively declined in financial year 2018-19 primarily due to due to higher other income of
% 13.24 Crore on account of sale of property booked on sale of property in financial year 2017-18 as compared to 0.61
Crore in the current year.

()  Total Comprehensive Income in previous year was higher due to other income of ¥ 13.24 Crore booked on account of
sale of Property.

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE

The detailed analysis of operations and financial results is provided in the Directors’ Report. The main segment in which
your Company operates are Trading (Trading in commodities) and Infrastructure (Storage, Warehousing and Wind Energy).
The detailed segment-wise performance is given in Note No. 47 under the Notes forming integral part of the financial
statements of the Company. There were no material changes/developments in human resources requirement during the year
under review.
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COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is creating and enhancing long-term sustainable value for the stakeholders through ethically driven
business process. At Ruchi Infrastructure Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘RIL’), it is imperative that our company affairs managed
in a fair and transparent manner. We, at RIL, ensure that we evolve and follow the corporate governance guidelines and best
practices. We consider it our inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding governance of the
Company. The Company strives to conduct its affairs, with the objective of enhancing the value for all of its stakeholders. RIL
believes that improvement in business processes and practices is a continuous process, which facilitate companionship among
the stakeholders and calls for fair, transparent and prudent corporate actions and behavior.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

Board of Directors of RIL (‘The Board’) comprises of four directors. Mr. Narendra Shah is the executive director of the Company.
Mr. Krishna Das Gupta, Mr. Mohan Das Kabra and Mrs. Ruchi Joshi are non-executive independent directors. Subject to the
approval of members, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on April 6, 2019 re-appointed Mr. Narendra
Shah as Executive Director of the Company for a period of three years with effect from April 8, 2019. Subject to the approval
of members, the Board has approved the continuation of Mr. Krishna Das Gupta as Non-Executive Independent Director of
the Company for the remaining period of his appointment i.e. upto September 22, 2020 in terms of Regulation 17(1A) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended. There is no institutional or nominee
or government director on the Board. None of the directors is related to any of the other directors of the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management.

Meetings of the Board

The Board met 4 times during the financial year 2018-2019. The dates of board meetings are May 30, 2018, August 8, 2018,
November 13, 2018 and February 6, 2019.

Attendance Record of Directors

Name of director DIN Category Number of Whether Number of Number of Committee
Board meetings | attended | Directorships in other | positions in other Public
during the the last | Public Companies as Companies as on
Financial year AGM on March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019
2018-19
Held | Attended Chairman | Member | Chairman | Member of
of Board Committee
Mr. Krishna Das Gupta | 00374379 |  Independent 4 4 Yes — 3* 1 4
(Non-executive)
Mr. Mohan Das Kabra | 07896243 | Independent 4 4 Yes — — — —
(Non-executive)
Mr. Narendra Shah 02143172 Executive 4 4 Yes — — — —
Director
Mrs. Ruchi Joshi 07406575 |  Independent 4 4 Yes — — — —
(Non-executive)

* Mr. Krishna Das Gupta is Independent Director of following listed Companies: PTC Industries Ltd. and Ema India Ltd.

Private Limited and Section 8 Companies (if any) as defined under Companies Act, 2013, where the Directors of the Company are
directors, have been excluded for the above purpose. Further, as per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, chairman/membership of Audit Committees and Stakeholders Relationship Committees only are considered
for the purpose of Committee positions.

None of the Directors of the Company holds any equity share in the Company as on March 31, 2019. The Company has not
issued any convertible instrument.
Details of Familiarization Programmes imparted to Independent Directors may be accessed at www.ruchiinfrastructure.com.

The Board of Directors has identified the following skills/competencies for its effective functioning:
(@)  Leadership/Corporate Strategy & Management

(b)  Corporate Governance and Disclosure
(c)  Financial Literacy

(d)  Social and Environmental Accountability
(e)  Training and Education
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Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has an important role in ensuring good corporate governance and has laid down a comprehensive Code of
Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Company. The Code has also been posted on the website of the Company.
All Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed the compliance thereof for the year ended March 31, 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The objective of the Audit Committee is to keep a vigil and oversight on the Management’s financial reporting process with a
view to ensure timely and transparent disclosures in the financial statements.

The terms of reference of the Committee are extensive and meet the requirements as mandated in terms of provision of Section
177(4) of the Companies Act, 2013. The role of the Committee includes meticulous review and monitoring the financial
reporting system within the Company and considering un-audited and audited financial results, as may be applicable, for
the relevant quarters and year before being adopted by the Board. The Committee generally reviews internal audit reports,
approval of transactions with related parties, scrutiny of inter corporate loans, evaluation of internal financial controls, review
of independence of Auditors, legal compliance reporting system, presentation of segment-wise reporting, review of internal
control systems, major accounting policies and practices, compliance with accounting standards and risk management.

The Committee does advice the management on areas where greater internal audit focus was needed and on new areas to be
taken up for audit purpose. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. The Committee meetings were
also attended by Chief Financial Officer, Accounts and Finance executives, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor on need
basis, of the Company.

Constitution and Composition

The Audit Committee consists of Mr. Krishna Das Gupta, Mr. Mohan Das Kabra and Mr. Narendra Shah. Mr. Krishna Das
Gupta, the Chairman of the Committee is an Independent, Non-executive Director and has a strong financial and accounting
background. All the members of the Committee are financially literate and the composition of Committee is in accordance
with the Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Meeting and attendance during the year

During the financial year 2018-2019, the Audit Committee met on May 30, 2018, August 8, 2018, November 13, 2018 and
February 6, 2019. The meetings were scheduled in advance. Mr. Krishna Das Gupta, Mr. Mohan Das Kabra and Mr. Narendra
Shah attended all the audit committee meetings.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The brief terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to
the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;
3. Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;
Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down and recommended to the Board of Directors for their appointment and removal.
5. Whether to extend or continue the terms of appointment of the independent Directors, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent Director.
Constitution and composition
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Krishna Das Gupta and its other members are Mrs. Ruchi Joshi
and Mr. Mohan Das Kabra. Mr. Krishna Das Gupta, the Chairman of the Committee is an Independent, Non-Executive Director
and has a sound financial and accounting background. The composition of Committee is in compliance with Regulation 19
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Meeting and attendance during the year
During the financial year 2018-2019, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on May 30, 2018. Mr. Krishna Das
Gupta, Mr. Mohan Das Kabra and Mrs. Ruchi Joshi, Directors of the Company attended the meeting.
Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors
The evaluation/assessment of the Directors, KMPs and the senior officials of the Company is to be conducted on an annual
basis and to satisfy the requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and

Companies Act, 2013.The following criteria may assist in determining how effective the performances of the Directors/KMPs/
Senior officials have been:
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o Leadership & stewardship abilities.

o Contributing to clearly defined corporate objectives & plans.

o Communication of expectations & concerns clearly with subordinates.
. Obtain adequate, relevant & timely information from external sources.

o Review & approve achievement of strategic and operational plans, objectives, budgets.
o Regular monitoring of corporate results against projections.

o Identify, monitor & mitigate significant corporate risks.

o Assess policies, structures & procedures.

° Direct, monitor & evaluate KMPs, senior officials.

U Review management’s succession plan.

J Effective meetings.

o Assuring appropriate board size, composition, independence, structure.

o Clearly defining roles & monitoring activities of committees.

o Review of Company’s ethical conduct.

Evaluation on the aforesaid parameters is conducted by the Independent Directors for the Executive Director in a separate
meeting of the Independent Directors. The Executive Director along with the Independent Directors evaluate/assess each of
the Independent Directors on the aforesaid parameters. Only the Independent Director being evaluated does not participate

in the said evaluation discussion. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee carries out evaluation of the performance of
Directors of the Company at regular interval.

Performance evaluation criteria for independent Directors are included in Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy
for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees of the Company. The same is also available on the website
of the Company at www.ruchiinfrastructure.com.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
(@) Remuneration of the Executive Director

The remuneration paid to Mr. Narendra Shah, Executive Director during the financial year 2018-19 is ¥ 58.18 lakh.
(b) Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

Except the payment of sitting fees, no other remuneration, commission, fee, etc. is paid/payable for the year to the non-
executive directors. As approved by the Board of Directors and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, the non-executive directors are paid ¥ 4,000/- for each Board meeting and ¥ 4,000/- for each committee
meeting attended by the non-executive directors.

The following table shows the amount of sitting fees paid to the non-executive directors for the financial year 2018-2019:

(Amount in )

Sr. No. | Name of Directors Sitting fees
1 Mr. Krishna Das Gupta 36,000
2 Mr. Mohan Das Kabra 40,000
Mrs. Ruchi Joshi 40,000

STAKEHOLDERS” RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Committee considers and resolves the grievances of the shareholders of the Company, including complaints related to
transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report and non-receipt of declared dividends, etc.

Constitution and composition

Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board comprises of Mrs. Ruchi Joshi, Non-Executive Independent Director
(Chairperson), Mr. Narendra Shah (Executive Director) and Mr. Mohan Das Kabra, Non-Executive Independent Director
(Inducted with effect from April 1, 2019). The composition of committee is in compliance with Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Ashish Mehta,
Company Secretary is also the Compliance Officer of the Company.
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Meeting and attendance

During the financial year 2018-19, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met on May 29, 2018, August 8, 2018, November
13,2018 and February 6, 2019. Mrs. Ruchi Joshi and Mr. Narendra Shah, attended all meetings held during the financial year.
No complaint was received during the year under review and no complaint was pending as on March 31, 2019.

INFORMATION ON GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Annual General Meetings

The venue, dates and time of holding the last three Annual General Meetings and particulars of Special resolutions passed
thereat are as under:

32" AGM held on September 14, 2016 at 12.45 P.M.

Venue: Sunville Deluxe Pavilion, Sunville Building, 9, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.

No Special Resolution was passed.

33" AGM held on September 27, 2017 at 9.15 A.M.

Venue: Rangswar Hall, Chavan Centre, Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan, Gen. Jagannathrao Bhonsle Marg, Mumbai —400021.
No Special Resolution was passed.

34" AGM held on September 20, 2018 at 3.00 P.M.
Venue: Kilachand Conference Room, IMC Building, 2" Floor, IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai — 400020.
No Special Resolution was passed.

Extra-ordinary General Meeting

No extra-ordinary general meeting of members of the Company was convened during the financial year 2018-2019.

Resolution passed by way of Postal Ballot

No resolution was passed by way of postal ballot during the financial year 2018-19. No special resolution is proposed to be
conducted through postal ballot.

SHAREHOLDERS” COMMUNICATION

Quarterly un-audited financial statements prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognized accounting practices and
policies, are generally published in Free Press Journal and Navshakti. Beside this, the Company has its own website (www.
ruchiinfrastructure.com) on which important public domain information is posted. Besides being placed on the website, all the
financial, vital and price sensitive official news releases are also properly communicated to the concerned stock exchanges.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

Date : September 3, 2019.

Time : 11.15 AM.

Venue : Rangswar Hall, Chavan Centre, Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan, Gen. Jagannathrao Bhonsle Marg, Mumbai — 400021.
Cut-off date for the purpose of voting by electronic means: August 23, 2019.

The financial year of the Company under review is from April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019.

Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Codes:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the following Stock Exchanges:

Stock Code

(@)  BSE Ltd. (BSE) 509020
P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001.

(b)  National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) RUCHINFRA

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051.
The ISIN of the Company is INE413B01023.

The Company has duly paid the annual listing fee for the financial year 2018-19 to the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and BSE Ltd.
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MARKET PRICE DATA
The monthly high and low quotations at the BSE during the financial year 2018-19 are as follows:

Period High }) Low )
April, 2018 3.86 3.44
May, 2018 3.82 2.74
June, 2018 3.13 2.25
July, 2018 2.89 2.40
August, 2018 2.60 2.25
September, 2018 3.94 2.58
October, 2018 5.49 3.60
November, 2018 4.86 3.63
December, 2018 4.45 3.52
January, 2019 4.49 3.27
February, 2019 3.49 2.26
March, 2019 3.25 2.46

COMPARISON OF STOCK PERFORMANCE OF RIL WITH BSE SENSEX

Comparison of Stock Performance of RIL with BSE SENSEX
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Registrars and Share Transfer Agent
Sarthak Global Limited, 170/10, Film Colony, R. N. T. Marg, Indore-452 001.

Share Transfer System

Shares lodged in physical form with the Company/its Registrars & Share Transfer Agent are processed and generally returned,
duly transferred within 15 days, except in cases where litigation is involved. However, the transfer of shares in physical form
are not allowed with effect from April 1, 2019. In respect of shares held in dematerialized mode, the transfer takes place
instantaneously between the transferor and transferee at the depository participant(s) through which electronic debit/ credit of
the accounts are involved.
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Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2019:
Category Particulars No. of % of
shares held holding
Promoter holding
1 Promoters
Indian Promoters 11,46,60,984 55.87
Foreign Promoters 76,00,000 3.70
2 Persons acting in concert — —
Sub-total | 12,22,60,984 59.57
Non-Promoter Holding
1 Institutions
a) MFs/ UTI — —
b)  Banks/ Fls/Insurance Companies — —
c) Central/State Govt. Institutions/Non-Govt. 66,712 0.03
d) Flis — —
66,712 0.03
2 Non Institutions
Bodies Corporate 6,25,27,803 30.47
Individuals holding nominal capital
upto ¥ 2.00 Lakh 84,77,523 413
Individuals holding nominal capital
more then T 2.00 Lakh 2,43,080 0.12
HUF 1,55,804 0.08
Non Resident Indians 2,14,013 0.10
Any other (Clearing Members) 1,12,94,023 5.50
8,29,12,246 40.40
Sub-total | 8,29,78,958 40.43
Custodian (depository — —
for shares underlying
GDRs)
Total 20,52,39,942 100.00
Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2019:
Range of Shares No. of % of No. of Share % of
Shareholders Shareholders held Shareholding
001 - 2,500 7,242 91.485 30,34,462 1.479
2,501 - 5,000 326 4.118 12,36,385 0.602
5,001 - 10,000 161 2.034 11,72,454 0.571
10,001 - 20,000 80 1.011 11,36,727 0.554
20,001 - 30,000 24 0.303 5,99,381 0.292
30,001 - 40,000 14 0.177 4,87,742 0.238
40,001 - 50,000 6 0.076 2,65,585 0.129
50,001 - 1,00,000 16 0.202 10,57,542 0.515
1,00,001 & Above 47 0.594 |  19,62,49,664 95.620
TOTAL 7,916 100.00 20,52,39,942 100.00
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Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The trading in shares of the Company are under compulsory demat segment. The Company is listed on BSE and NSE. The
Company’s shares are available for trading in the depository systems of both NSDL and CDSL. 14,80,08,742 equity shares of
the Company, equal to 72.11 % of total issued capital of the Company as on March 31, 2019 were in dematerialized form.

Outstanding Convertible Instruments
As on March 31, 2019, there were no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other Convertible Instruments.

Commodity Price Risk/Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities
The core business of storage infrastructure and renewable energy are not prone to commodity price risk/ foreign exchange risk.
Accordingly, the Company adopts adhoc hedging tools on need basis for transactions involving foreign exchange.

Plant Location of the Company
Ruchi Infrastructure Limited, Village Sejwaya, Ghatabhillod, Distt. Dhar, Madhya Pradesh — 454773.

Address for Correspondence

The shareholders may send their communications, queries, suggestions and grievances to the Compliance Officer at the
following address:

Mr. Ashish Mehta, Company Secretary, 706, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai — 400021.

Email address : ashish_mehta@ruchiinfrastructure.com.

The shareholders may also e-mail their queries, suggestions and grievances at ‘ruchiinfrasecretarial@ ruchiinfrastructure.com’.

OTHER DISCLOSURES:
(@) Transactions with related parties

The Company has not entered into any transaction of material nature with related parties that may have any

potential conflict with the interest of the Company. The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and
dealing with related party transaction as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website at
www.ruchiinfrastructure.com. The Company is complying with requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(b) Compliance by the Company
The Company has generally complied with the requirement of stock exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities on
matters related to capital markets during last three years. No penalties have been imposed on the Company or strictures
passed by any Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other authorities relating to capital markets.

(c)  Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy

The Company promotes ethical behavior and has in place mechanism for reporting and redressal of illegal and unethical
behavior. The Company has a vigil mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy for due protection of whistle blowers. It is
hereby confirmed that no employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Company has complied with mandatory and most of the discretionary requirements as per Regulation 27 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(d) Credit Rating
The Company has neither issued any debt instruments nor undertaken any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or
proposal involving mobilisation of funds, whether in India or abroad.

(e) Fees paid to Statutory Auditors
Total fees paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis to the auditors is given below:

R In Lacs)

S. | Entity Statutory Auditors Amount paid
No.
1 Ruchi Infrastructure Limited M/s. Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP 7.07
2 Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt. Ltd. M/s. Jain Gautam & Co. 2.95
3 Peninsular Tankers Pvt. Ltd. M/s. Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP 0.42
4 Mangalore Liquid Impex Pvt. Ltd. M/s. Prakash H. Shah & Co. 0.88

Total 11.32
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(f)  Certificate from Practising Company Secretary

The Company has received a certificate from Mr. Prashant D Diwan, Practising Company Secretary to the effect that none
of the directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority.

(g) Web link

Policy for determination of material subsidiary is available on website of the company: www.ruchiinfrastructure.com.
The other disclosures in terms of Regulation 46 (2) are also made available in the said website.

(h) Demat suspense account

There are no unclaimed shares/securities of the Company in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

(i)  Disclosures on compliance with corporate governance

Pursuant to regulation 26(3) read with Para D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Board Members and Senior Management personnel of the Company have confirmed compliance
to the Code of Conduct as applicable to them for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

Due disclosures have been made in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Compliance Certificate issued by the Statutory
Auditors on compliance of corporate governance is annexed to the Directors’ Report.

For Ruchi Infrastructure Limited

Narendra Shah
Place : Mumbai Executive Director
Date : May 22, 2019 DIN:02143172
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Independent Auditors Report

To,
The Members of
Ruchi Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Ruchi Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31st March 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 March, 2019, and its loss,
total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

Recoverability of Export Trade Receivable Audit Procedure

As at the year end March 31, 2019 Trade receivable includes,
Export trade receivable amounting to Rs. 3653.06 lacs doubtful
of recovery. Permission is pending with RBI for its w/off.

We have verified the documents filed by company with RBI and
RBI has recommended to recover the dues. However company
has made adequate provision for the same.

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosures of revenues and other related balances in view
of adoption of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (new revenue accounting standard)

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed the Company’s process to identify the impact
of adoption of the new revenue accounting standard. Our
audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing
as follows:

The application of the new revenue accounting standard
involves some key points which includes Identification of
contract with customer, identification of distinct performance
obligations, determination of transaction price of the identified
performance obligations, the appropriateness of the basis used
to measure revenue recognized. Additionally, new revenue

Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to
implementation of the new revenue accounting standard.
Sample selected from continuing and new contracts, and tested
the operating effectiveness of the internal control, relating
to identification of the distinct performance obligations and
determination of transaction price.
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Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

accounting standard contains disclosures which involves
collation of information in respect of disaggregated revenue
and periods over which the remaining performance obligations
will be satisfied subsequent to the balance sheet date.

We have performed the following procedures:

e Read, analysed and identified the distinct performance
obligations in these contracts.

e Compared these performance obligations with that
identified and recorded by the Company.

e Considered the terms of the contracts to determine the
transaction price including any variable consideration to
verify the transaction price used to compute revenue and
to test the basis of estimation of the variable consideration.

e Sample of revenues disaggregated by type and service
offerings was tested with the performance obligations
specified in the underlying contracts.

e Performed analytical procedures for reasonableness of
revenues disclosed by type and service offerings.

e We reviewed the collation of information and the logic of
the report generated from the budgeting system used to
prepare the disclosure relating to the periods over which
the remaining performance obligations will be satisfied
subsequent to the balance sheet date.

Lease Expired

Audit Procedures

Company has storage tank terminal at Haldia on lease from
Kolkata Port Trust, Haldia Dock Complex. The lease of the
same expired on 15/03/2018 and renewal of lease is in process.

We have checked the lease agreement and application of
renewal of lease. Considering the past records and practice it
is highly probable that lease will be renewed.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the Ind. AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

b.  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

c.  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

d.  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e.  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken on record by the

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in

terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements —
Refer Note 31 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contract for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and

according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during

the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 000743C/0C400037)

CA Ashok Khasgiwala

Place : Mumbai (Partner)
Date : 22.05.2019 M.No0.070288
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even
date to the members of Ruchi Infrastructure Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 315 March, 2019.

Vi.

Vii.
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In respect of its Fixed Assets :

a.  The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

b.  As explained to us, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the management during the
year, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies between the book records and the physical inventory have been noticed. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

c.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company except detailed as under :

Particulars | No. of | Gross Block as at | Net Block as Remarks
cases 31 March, 2019 | at 31 March,

(Rs. In lacs) 2019 (Rs. In
lacs)
Freehold 1 423.27 423.27 Land at 40-41, East Madha Church Street, Roypuram,
Land Chennai is still in the name of M/s Kay Am Processers

and M/s Venkateshwara Warehousing Corporation
being the partnership firm in which company has
acquired 100% ownership in the year 2003.

In respect of its Inventories:

The inventories has been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification
is reasonable and no material discrepancies were noticed.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loans to three companies
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The company has not granted any
loans secured or unsecured to firms, LLPs or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. In respect of the aforesaid loans granted :

a. The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;
b.  The repayment of principal and receipts of interest is regular as stipulated.
c.  There is no amount overdue for more than 90 days as on balance sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made and guarantee given. The
company has not provided any security in terms of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits
from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules, framed there under. As informed to us no Order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie
the prescribed records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of Statutory dues :

a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our
opinion the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, goods and service tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed statutory dues in
arrears, as at 31 March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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Viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Place : Mumbai
Date :22.05.2019

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales tax, value added tax, income
tax, service tax, duties of customs, duties of excise which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on

account of any dispute except as follows :

Name of the Statute | Nature of (Amount | Related Period Forum where dispute is
Liability in Lacs) pending

Sales Tax / VAT Acts | Sales Tax /Vat 4.74 | 2011-2012 Jt. Commissioner of
Commercial Taxes,
Mangalore

Sales Tax / VAT Acts | Sales Tax /VAT 4548.08 | 2009-2010 Gujarat VAT Tribunal

Sales Tax / VAT Acts | Entry Tax 70.54 | 2013-2014 The High Court, Kolkatta

Central Excise & Service Tax 424.58 | 2009-2010 to 2014-15 CESTAT, New Delhi

Service Tax Act

Central Excise & Service Tax 145.89 | 2009-2010 2011-12 & The High Court,

Service Tax Act 2012-13 New Delhi

Central Excise & Service Tax 5.49 | 2014-15 The Commissioner, Indore

Service Tax Act

Income Tax Act Income Tax 32.98 | 2007-2008 to 2009-10 CIT ( Appeals), Mumbai

According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowings to a financial institution, bank or government as on
the balance sheet date. The Company has not issued any debenture.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised any term loan during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the company by the officers or employees,
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Nidhi Company therefore,
the provision of para 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year, therefore the provision of para 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the year, hence the provision of para 3 (xv)
of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 therefore, the
provision of para 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the company for the year under audit.

For Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 000743C/0C400037)

CA Ashok Khasgiwala

(Partner)
M.No. 070288
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Annexure B To the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of Ruchi Infrastructure Limited
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ruchi Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India.
For Ashok Khasgiwala & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 000743C/0C400037)

CA Ashok Khasgiwala
Place : Mumbai (Partner)
Date :22.05.2019 M.No. 070288
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Ruchi Infrastructure Limited
CIN:L65990MH1984P1L.C033878
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

R in lacs)
Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(@) Property, Plant and Equipment

Capital work-in-progress

(b)
(c) Intangible Assets
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(ii) Others

(e) Deferred tax Assets (Net)

(f) Other non-current assets

Total Non-current assets

2)

Current assets

(@) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments

ii) Trade receivables

iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above

(
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(
(

v) Loans

(vi) Others

(c) Other Current Assets

Total Current assets

3)

Assets Classified as held for Sale

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity share capital

(b) Other Equity

Total Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities

(@) Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

(b) Provisions

(c) Other non-current liabilities

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Current liabilities

(@) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade payables

(ii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions

Total Current liabilities

(3)

Liabilities directly associated with Assets classified as held for sale

Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying notes to accounts forming an integral part to the
standalone financial statements

General information and significant accounting policies

—_ .

[6; R NCUR )

14

16
17
18

19

21
22

1to 54

A-B

18,283.85 18,367.83
498.43 949.32
145.77 151.96

4,005.83 6,651.01
679.32 403.61
824.45 476.03

2,139.13 2,030.94

26,576.78 29,030.70

1,137.25 1,581.03

- 11.46

1,430.63 3,146.30

167.30 831.62
92.26 172.83

1,476.80 1,445.58

3,948.36 2,980.71
744.85 958.50

8,997.45 11,128.03
212.38 -

35,786.61 40,158.73

2,052.40 2,052.40

9,871.17 11,884.20

11,923.57 13,936.60

13,670.76 15,550.60

38.86 32.33
472.59 493.95

14,182.21 16,076.88

8,022.44 8,744.76

1,157.39 1,051.55
397.54 341.72

7.46 7.22
9,584.83 10,145.25
96.00 -
35,786.61 40,158.73

As per our report of even date attached.

For ASHOK KHASGIWALA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn No 000743C/0C400037)

CA Ashok Khasgiwala
Partner

Membership No. 070288
Mumbai, May 22, 2019
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Ravindra Kumar Kakani
Chief Financial Officer

Ashish Mehta
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Narendra Shah

Executive Director

DIN 02143172

Krishna Das Gupta

Director
DIN 00374379

Mumbai, May 22, 2019



Ruchi Infrastructure Limited
CIN:L65990MH1984P1.C033878
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

R in lacs)
Particulars Notes For the Year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
INCOME
. Revenue from Operations 23 5,141.27 3,659.01
1.  Other Income 24 766.65 1,727.92
lll. Total Income (I+11) 5,907.92 5,386.93
IV. EXPENSES
Cost of material consumed 25 148.49 162.83
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 26 840.79 329.39
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 27 447.44 (158.51)
stock in trade
Employee Benefits Expense 28 783.15 704.47
Finance Costs 29 1,265.05 1,449.21
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expenses 1 1,246.76 1,334.74
Other Expenses 30 2,753.46 2,780.06
Total Expenses 7,485.14 6,602.19
V.  Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (l11-1V) (1,577.22) (1,215.26)
VI.  Exceptional Items - -
VII. Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI) (1,577.22) (1,215.26)
VIII. Tax expense
Current Tax - 58.00
Deferred Tax 4 (264.30) (505.34)
Tax Expense for earlier year 12.54 -
IX.  Profit/(loss) after tax for the year (VII-VIII) (1,325.46) (767.92)
X.  (A) Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (18.15) 0.44
Tax thereon 5.05 (0.15)
Gain/(Loss) on change in fair value of equity instrument other (753.54) (859.18)
than subsidiaries
Tax thereon 79.07 35.32
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive income (687.57) (823.57)
XI.  Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X) (2,013.03) (1,591.49)
XIl. Earnings per equity share of face value of ¥ 1 each
Basic and Diluted earnings per share
(a) Basic (in%) (0.84) (0.57)
(b) Diluted (in %) (0.84) (0.57)
The accompanying notes to accounts forming an integral part 1 to 54
to the standalone financial statements
General information and significant accounting policies A-B
As per our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For ASHOK KHASGIWALA & CO. LLP Ravindra Kumar Kakani Narendra Shah
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Executive Director
(Firm Regn No 000743C/0C400037) DIN 02143172
CA Ashok Khasgiwala Ashish Mehta Krishna Das Gupta
Partner Company Secretary Director
Membership No. 070288 DIN 00374379
Mumbai, May 22, 2019 Mumbai, May 22, 2019
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Ruchi Infrastructure Limited

CIN:L65990MH1984PLC033878

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCIE) FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

A. Equity share capital

R in lacs)

b.

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the period 20,52,39,942 2,052.40 20,52,39,942 2,052.40
Changes in Equity share capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the period 20,52,39,942 2,052.40 20,52,39,942 2,052.40
Other Equity
(i) As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Equity Instru- Total
Capital Securities General Retained m(;n;s thcrough
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings ther (i
prehensive
Income
Balance at the beginning of the period 3,378.73 1,179.04 8,906.41 (318.91) (1,261.07) 11,884.20
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (1,325.46) - (1,325.46)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - (13.10) (674.47) (687.57)
(net of tax)
Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income - - (1,935.99) - (1,935.99)
Transfer to Retained Earnings - - 1,935.99 1,935.99
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (3,274.55) 1,261.52 (2,013.03)
Balance at the end of the period 3,378.73 1,179.04 8,906.41 (3,593.46) 0.45 9,871.17
(i) As at March 31, 2018
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Equity Instru- Total
Capital Securities General Retained me";s thCrOUgh
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings i om-
prehensive
Income
Balance at the beginning of the period 3,378.73 1,179.04 8,906.41 448.72 (437.21) 13,475.69
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (767.92) - (767.92)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - 0.29 (823.86) (823.57)
(net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (767.63) (823.86) (1,591.49)
Balance at the end of the period 3,378.73 1,179.04 8,906.41 (318.91) (1,261.07) 11,884.20
The accompanying notes to accounts forming an integral part
to the standalone financial statements 1to 54
General information and significant accounting policies A-B
As per our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For ASHOK KHASGIWALA & CO. LLP Ravindra Kumar Kakani Narendra Shah

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No 000743C/0C400037)

CA Ashok Khasgiwala
Partner
Membership No. 070288

Mumbai, May 22, 2019
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Chief Financial Officer

Ashish Mehta
Company Secretary

Executive Director
DIN 02143172

Krishna Das Gupta

Director

DIN 00374379
Mumbai, May 22, 2019



Ruchi Infrastructure Limited
CIN:L65990MH1984P1.C033878
CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

R in lacs)
Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Cash Flow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax (1,577.22) (1,215.26)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,246.76 1,334.74
Net (gain)/Loss on Sale of Property, plant & Equipment (61.05) (1,324.45)
Amounts charged directly to OCI (18.15) 0.44
Guarantee Commission (201.59) -
Share in (profit)/loss of partnership firm 0.56 (0.73)
Prepaid Lease Rentals 22.45 26.34
Government Grant Income (22.29) (34.68)
Provision for doubtful debts 1,130.77 1,438.25
Profit on sale of Investment (0.02) -
Interest Income (272.57) (157.48)
Dividend Income - (6.86)
Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign currency translation (218.11) (10.82)
Finance Costs 1,265.05 1,449.21
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 1,294.60 1,498.70
Working Capital Adjustments
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 443.78 (153.03)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other receivables 36.88 6,255.18
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and other payables (485.70) (5,114.18)
Cash Generated from operations 1,289.56 2,486.67
Income Tax Paid (138.97) (162.35)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,150.59 2,324.32
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (Including Capital WIP and Capital (986.27) (996.04)
advance)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 128.94 1,555.25
Purchase of Investment (16.62) (821.25)
Sale of Investment 2,121.31 -
Interest Income 242.61 151.73
Share in profit/(loss) of partnership firm (0.56) 0.73
Dividend Income - 6.86
Change in Bank Balances (188.16) (64.41)
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,301.25 (167.13)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of borrowings (1,817.57) (1,408.33)
Finance Costs (1,298.58) (1,457.32)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,116.15) (2,865.65)
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (664.32) (708.46)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 831.62 1,540.08
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 167.30 831.62
Cash & Cash Equivalents comprises:
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 162.86 823.28
Cash on Hand 4.44 8.34

167.30 831.62
As per our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For ASHOK KHASGIWALA & CO. LLP Ravindra Kumar Kakani Narendra Shah
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Executive Director
(Firm Regn No 000743C/0C400037) DIN 02143172
CA Ashok Khasgiwala Ashish Mehta Krishna Das Gupta
Partner Company Secretary Director
Membership No. 070288 DIN 00374379
Mumbai, May 22, 2019 Mumbai, May 22, 2019
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Notes

FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE:A-B
GENERAL INFORMATION

Ruchi Infrastructure Ltd (the Company) is a Public Limited Company (CIN L65990MH1984PLC033878) incorporated
on 28th August, 1984 in India under the provision of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at 706,
Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400021. The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure viz.
storage of liquid commaodities, Agri Warehousing Facilities, Wind power generation, trading of various commodities and
manufacturing of soap. Its equity shares are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and BSE Limited.

A.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i)

i)

iii)

iv)

Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (“Ind AS”)
notified, under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the rules notified under the relevant
provisions of the Act.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies mentioned below.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents.

Functional and presentation currency

These separate financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts have been rounded to the nearest Rupees in lacs unless otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates, Judgments and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal operating
cycle of twelve months and other criteria set out in Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013.

Significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have
significant effect on amount recognized in the financial statements are:

i) Allowance for bad and doubtful trade receivable.

ii) Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies.

iii) Depreciation/Amortisation and useful lives of Property, plant and equipment / Intangible Assets.
iv) Recognition of deferred tax.

v) Income Taxes.

vi) Measurement of defined benefit obligation.

vii) Impairment of Non-financial assets and financial assets.

Revenue
Recognition

The company recognised revenue i.e. account for a contract with a customer only when all of the following criteria
are met:
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ii)

iiii)

V)

(a) the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other customary
business practices) and are committed to perform their respective obligations;

(b) the entity can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred;
(c) the entity can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;

(d) the contract has commercial substance (ie the risk, timing or amount of the entity’s future cash flows is expected
to change as a result of the contract); and

(e) it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the
goods or services that will be transferred to the customer. In evaluating whether collectability of an amount
of consideration is probable, an entity shall consider only the 3 customer’s ability and intention to pay that
amount of consideration when it is due. The amount of consideration to which the entity will be entitled may
be less than the price stated in the contract if the consideration is variable because the entity may offer the
customer a price concession.

Measurement

When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, company recognise as revenue the amount of the transaction
price (which excludes estimates of variable consideration that are constrained) that is allocated to that performance
obligation.

The transaction price is the amount that the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring promised
goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, some taxes on
sales). The consideration promised may include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods. Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer which is usually on dispatch / delivery
of goods, based on contracts with the customers. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the
contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government. Due
to the short nature of credit period given to customers, there is no financing component in the contract.

Sale of Services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised as the services are rendered and is booked based on agreements/
arrangements with the concerned parties.

Interest and Dividend

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised
in profit or loss on the date on which the company’s right to receive payment is established.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, except by-product/scrap is valued at net realizable
value. Cost of inventory is arrived at by using Moving Average Price Method. Cost of inventory is generally comprises
of cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

vi) Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Freehold land is measured at costs.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, acquisition or construction cost
including borrowing costs, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, initial estimate of the costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
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vii)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using Written down value method (WDV) on
depreciable amount as per the useful life of the assets in the manner as specified in Schedule I to the Companies
Act, 2013. The estimated useful life of assets and estimated residual value is taken as prescribed under Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on additions during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to date of addition/
installation. Depreciation on assets disposed/discarded is charged up to the date on which such asset is sold.

The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each balance
sheet date, any changes therein are considered as changes in estimate and accordingly accounted for
prospectively.

Biological Assets

Biological assets are classified as Bearer biological assets and Consumable biological assets. Bearer Biological
Assets which are held to bear agricultural produce are classified as Bearer plants. Consumable biological assets
are those that are to be harvested.

Bearer plants are recognised under Property, Plant and Equipment on fulfilment of the following condition :
1. Is used in the production or supply of agricultural produce;

2. Is expected to bear produce for more than one period; and has a remote likelihood of being sold as
agricultural produce, except for incidental scrap sales.

Promogranate Plants are recognised as Bearer biological assets. These are classified as mature Bearer Plants
and Immature Bearer Plants. Mature Bearer Plants are those that have attained harvestable stage. Cost incurred
for new plantations and immature areas are capitalised. Cost includes cost of land preparation, new planting
and maintenance till maturity. The cost of areas coming into bearing is transferred to mature plantations and
depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Promogranate Plants attain a harvestable stage in about 1.5 years.

Bearer biological assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any. Subsequent expenditure on bearer assets are added to its book value only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Mature bearer plants are depreciated over their estimated useful life. Immature bearer plants are tested
for impairment / obsolescence. The estimated useful life of mature bearer plants are approx. 24 years.

Capital Work In progress

Assets under erection/installation are shown as “Capital work in progress”, Expenditure during construction
period are shown as “pre-operative expenses” to be capitalized on erection/installations of the assets.

Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the
asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Recognition and measurement

Computer softwares and Jetty rights have finite useful lives and are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
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viii)

ix)

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands,
when incurred is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.
Computer software are amortised over their estimated useful life of 3 years. Jetty Rights are amortised over the life
mentioned in the agreement entered with Maritime

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if required.

Employee benefits
i)  Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as
a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii) Defined benefit plans

The liability for gratuity a defined benefit plan is determined annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

The company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of service with company at the
time when the employee leaves the company as per the payment of gratuity act 1972.

The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity
payment to the employees.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to other
comprehensive income. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised
in statement of profit and loss.

iii) Other employee benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of obligation
as at the Balance sheet date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

iv) Defined Contribution Plan

The company’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognized as expenses during the period in which
the employees perform the services that payment covers. Defined contribution plan comprise of contribution to
the employees’ provident fund with government, Employees’ State Insurance and Pension Scheme.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to other comprehensive income or a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity.

i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
(@) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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X)

Xi)

Xii)

Xiii)

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income
tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be
measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on the same taxable entity.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Difference arising on settlement of monetary items are recognised in statement
of profit and loss except to the extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs
on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets
which are capitalized as cost of assets..

Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using
the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value
was determined. Exchange difference arising out of these transactions are generally recognised in statement of profit
and loss.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till the date it is ready for its intended use or sale. qualifying asset are the
assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs
are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent includes the cash and Cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with bank and
other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank overdraft are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of financing
activities in the cash flow statement. Book overdraft are shown within other financial liabilities in the balance sheet
and forms part of operating activities in the cash flow statement.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effect of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and items
of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flow. The cash flow from operating, investing and
financing activities of the company is segregated based on the available information.
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Xiv)

XV)

Xvi)

Earning Per Share

i) Basic earnings per shares is arrived at based on net profit / (loss) after tax available to equity shareholders
divided by Weighted average number of equity shares , adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued
during the year (if any) and excluding treasury shares.

ii) Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit attributable to equity holders after tax divided by
Weighted average number of shares considered for basic earning per shares including potential dilutive equity
shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been
actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Potential
ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their conversion to ordinary shares would
decrease earnings per share or increase loss per share from continuing operations.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company. Contingent assets are not recognized, but its existence is disclosed in the financial statements.

Leases
As a Lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as finance lease or an operating lease. Leases under which the company
assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. When acquired, such
assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of lease,
whichever is lower. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Other leases are treated as operating leases, with payments are recognized as expense in the statement of profit and
loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.
As a Lessor

Rental Income from operating leases is recognized on straight - line basis over the term of relevant lease. Where the
rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s
expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognized in the period in which such benefits accrue.

xvii) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial asset or
a group of non-financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the amount of
impairment loss.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets is considered as
cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable amount.
Losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the company
considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If
the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.
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When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been in place had there been no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss, taking into account the normal depreciation/amortization.

xviii) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency
foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and currency options; and embedded derivatives in the host
contract.

i)

Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories :
(@) Those measured at amortised cost and

(b) Those measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through
profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Measured at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(@) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(@) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial assets included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl). However, the
company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in
the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported
as interest income using the EIR method.
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Financial Asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for financial asset. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the group company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost
or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the profit and loss.

Derecognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

iii) When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the company has retained.

iv) Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

(@) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, and bank balance.

(b) Trade receivables.
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
i)  Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

ii)  For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.
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Financial liabilities
Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be
subsequently measured at fair value.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
or amortised costs.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and
forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks,
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when,and
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Xix)

XX)

xxi)

when the company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends either to settle then an a
net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Measurement of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for financial
instruments.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be
classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Government Grants

Government Grants and subsidies from Government are recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the
grant/subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Government grant received are
recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss on a systematic basis over the period in which the Company recognizes
as expenses the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate.

Guarantee Commission

In respect of Corporate Guarantees given by the Company on behalf of its Subsidiaries as on the Ind As transitional
date, notional income is booked at rate prevalent in market for similar guarantee and the income is amortised over
the period of the guarantee . The notional income for guarantees given in subsequent periods is treated as deemed
investment, added to the carrying cost of investment in Subsidiary and amortised over the period of the guarantee.

Mandatory exceptions applied — Standard Issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116 Leases : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116
will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract
i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset
is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard
also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard
permits two possible methods of transition:

e Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

e Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized
at the date of initial application.
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The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the standalone financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement- On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments,
curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

e to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period
after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

e to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a
surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company
does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while
performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need
to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments,
that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the
most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach,
Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8
— Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively
with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without
adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The
Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the
date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company
is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the standalone financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments
to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions
or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company
is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the standalone financial statements.
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NOTE:1 — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment R in lacs)
Particulars Freehold | Buildings | Plant & | Furniture | Vehicles | Office |Biological| Total
land Equip- |& Fixtures Equip- | Assets
ment ment
a. Gross carrying amount
As at April 1, 2017 5,258.18] 2,952.99| 3,214.11| 1,079.47 229.00 298.84 -113,032.59
Additions - 30.97 28.37 10.43 9.38 17.59 - 96.74
Deduction/Adjustments 187.24 19.52 35.53 0.48 2.17 0.24 - 245.18
As at March 31, 2018 5,070.94| 2,964.44| 3,206.95| 1,089.42 236.21 316.19 -112,884.15
Additions - 163.50 408.54 1.89 0.45 8.95 25.02 608.35
Deduction/Adjustments 23.80 4.62 70.47 0.02 - 2.40 -l 101.31
Transfer from /(to) assets given on lease 71.70]  (36.71) - - - - 34.99
Less: Assets classified as held for sale 212.38 212.38
(refer note 45)
As at March 31, 2019 4,834.76| 3,195.02] 3,508.31| 1,091.29 236.66 322.74 25.02|13,213.80
b. Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
As at April 1, 2017 - 139.34 453.98 73.35 72.49 23.38 - 762.54
Depreciation charge for the year -l 150.48| 378.18] 262.97 52.85 126.24 -l 970.72
Deduction/Adjustments - 1.37 11.46 0.08 1.34 0.12 - 14.37
As at March 31, 2018 - 288.45 820.70 336.24 124.00 149.50 -l 1,718.89
Depreciation charge for the year - 129.70 351.88 195.89 32.71 77.54 0.34 788.06
Deduction/Adjustments - 0.90 30.51 0.01 - 2.00 - 33.42
Transfer from / (to ) assets given on lease (31.88)]  (32.68) (64.56)
As at March 31, 2019 - 385.37| 1,109.39 532.12 156.71 225.04 0.34| 2,408.97
c. Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2018 5,070.94| 2,675.99| 2,386.25 753.18 112.21 166.69 -1 11,165.26
As at March 31, 2019 4,834.76| 2,809.65| 2,398.92 559.17 79.95 97.70 24.68/10,804.83
ASSETS GIVEN ON LEASE
Particulars Freehold | Buildings | Plant & | Furniture | Vehicles | Office |Biological| Total
land Equip- |& Fixtures Equip- | Assets
ment ment
a. Gross carrying amount
As at April 1,2017 -| 7,550.35 196.02 - - - -| 7,746.37
Additions - - - - - - - -
Deduction/Adjustments - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2018 -| 7,550.35 196.02 - - - -| 7,746.37
Additions 192.12 631.99 - - - - 824.11
Deduction/Adjustments - - - - - - - -
Transfer (to) / from Owned Assets (71.70) 36.71 - - - -l (34.99)
As at March 31, 2019 -| 7,550.35 196.02 - - - -l 8,535.49
b. Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
As at April 1, 2017 - 184.57 15.64 - - - - 200.21
Depreciation charge during the year -l 336.34 7.25 - - - .| 343.59
Deduction/Adjustments - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2018 - 520.91 22.89 - - - - 543.80
Depreciation charge for the year -l 337.87 110.24 - - - - 448.11
Deduction/Adjustments - - - - - - -
Transfer (to) / from own assets 31.88 32.68 - - - - 64.56
As at March 31, 2019 - 890.66 165.81 - - - -| 1,056.47
c. Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2018 -l 7,029.44 173.13 - - - - 7,202.57
As at March 31, 2019 - 6,780.11 698.91 - - - - 7,479.02
GRAND TOTAL
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2018 5,070.94| 9,705.43| 2,559.37 753.19 112.22 166.68 -118,367.83
As at March 31, 2019 4,834.76] 9,589.76| 3,097.82 559.18 79.96 97.69 24.68/18,283.85
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2. Capital Work in Progress R in lacs)
Particulars Freehold | Buildings | Plant & | Furniture | Vehicles | Office |Biological| Total
land Equipment | & Fixtures Equipment | Assets
As at April 1, 2017 - - 0.41 ] - - | 0.4t
Additions -1 127.30 821.37 - - - 0.24 | 948.91
Less: Transfer to Property, Plant - - - - - - - -
and Equipment
As at March 31, 2018 -] 127.30] 821.78 - ; - 0.24 | 949.32
Additions - 71.93 401.45 -| 473.38
Less: Transfer to Property Plant -| 67.39 856.64 0.24 | 924.27
and Equipment
As at March 31, 2019 -| 131.84 366.59 - - - -| 498.43
3. INTAENGIBLE ASSETS & in lacs)
Particulars Jetty Rights Computer Total
Software
a. Gross carrying amount
As at April 1, 2017 293.79 - 293.79
Additions - 5.93 5.93
Deduction/Adjustments
As at March 31, 2018 293.79 5.93 299.72
Additions - 4.40 4.40
Deduction/Adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2019 293.79 10.33 304.12
b. Accumulated Amortisation
As at 1 April 2017 127.33 - 127.33
Amortisation charged for the year 20.21 0.22 20.43
Deduction/Adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2018 147.54 0.22 147.76
Amortisation charged for the year 7.12 3.47 10.59
Deduction/Adjustments
As at March 31, 2019 154.66 3.69 158.35
c. Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2018 146.25 5.71 151.96
As at March 31, 2019 139.13 6.64 145.77
Note: 1. Refer Note no 16 for details of Property, Plant, Machinery pledged.
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2.

The ownership of jetty ¥ 293.79 lacs (At Cost) (previous year ¥ 293.79 lacs) rests with the Gujarat Maritime Board.

3. The title deeds in respect of 0.789 acre of freehold land (cost as per books ¥ 423.27 lacs as at March 31, 2019,

Previous Year ¥ 423.27 lacs) situated at 40-41, East Madha Church Street, Royapuram, Chennai - 600013 are still
in the name of M/s. Kay Am Processers and M/s. Venkateswara Warehousing Corporation, being partnership firms
in which the Company has acquired 100 % ownership in the year 2003.

The Company’s storage tank terminal at Haldia is located on 10117 Sq Mtrs of land leased from Kolkatta Port Trust,
Haldia Dock Complex (“HDC”). The lease of the said plot expired on March 15, 2018. The Company has written
to the HDC asking them to renew the lease and the same is under process.

The Company has purchased 42.97 acre of land (cost as per books ¥ 1190.25 lacs as at March 31, 2019,3 1190.25
lacs as at March 31, 2018) at Industrial Park, Pantapalam, A.P on January 1, 2015 from Andhra Pradesh Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation Ltd (“APIICL”). Due to alleged non compliance of certain terms and conditions of the
alottment, APIICL has cancelled the allotment of the land and has asked the Company to surrender the land. The
Company has filed a writ petition in the Andhra Pradesh High Court, Hyderabad against the demand for surrender
of the land and same is under process.

There was no borrowing cost to be capitalised during the year (Previus year nil).
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R in lacs)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

NOTE: 2 - NON- CURRENT INVESTMENTS
A. Investment in Equity Instruments: Measured at Cost
(@) In Subsidiary companies

Unquoted
i) 70,00,000 (previous year 70,00,000) Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
fully paid up in Peninsular Tankers Pvt Ltd. 378.00 378.00
Add/(Less): Impairment of Investments (378.00) (378.00)
i) 92,29,990 (previous year 92,29,990) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
fully paid up in Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt. Ltd. (refer note no. 37) 2,738.09 2,536.50
iii) 9,800 (previous year 9,800) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid
up in Mangalore Liquid Impex Pvt Ltd. 0.98 0.98
Total 2,739.07 2,537.48
B. Investment in Equity Instruments - Other than in subsidiary, associate and
Joint Venture companies
(Measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
(a) Quoted
i) 13,71,800 (previous year 13,71,800) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
fully paid up in National Steel & Agro Industries Ltd. 76.68 395.08
ii) 11,700 (previous year 11,700) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully
paid up in Ruchi Strips & Alloys Ltd. 0.22 0.21
iii) 2,59,625 (previous year 82,59,625) Equity Shares of ¥ 2/- each fully
paid up in Ruchi Soya Industries Ltd. 17.24 1,309.15
Total 94.14 1,704.44
(b) Unquoted
i) Nil (previous year 7,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid
up in Ruchi Acroni Industries Ltd. - 320.38
ii) Nil (previous year 1,25,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid
up in Ruchi Global Ltd. - 140.14
iii) Nil (previous year 10,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up
in Union Infrastructure Solutions Pvt Ltd. - -
Total - 460.52
Total 94.14 2,164.96
C. Investment in Preference Shares (measured at Amortised cost)
Unquoted
i) 2,00,000 (previous year 2,00,000) 6% Redeemable Non-convertible
cumulative Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each fully paid up in Ruchi Soya
Industries Ltd. (refer note no. 36) 200.00 200.00
ii) Nil (previous year 5,70,000) 6% Non-Convertible Redeemable
cumulative Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each fully paid up in RRHL Realty
Holdings Ltd. - 792.57
Total 200.00 992.57
D. Investments in Other Structrued Entities
Investment in Partnership Firm (refer note no. 38) 972.62 956.00
Total 972.62 956.00
Grand Total 4,005.83 6,651.01
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 94.14 1,704.44
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - Cost 4,289.69 5,324.57
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of unquoted investments 378.00 378.00
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R in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

NOTE: 3 - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON CURRENT
Interest Accrued but not due

On Fixed Deposits With Bank 29.38 22.00

Balance with Banks in Deposit Accounts having maturity over 12 months

(Earmarked as security for Guarantees issued by Bank) 649.94 381.61
679.32 403.61

NOTE: 4 — DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Deferred Tax Assets

On account of provision for doubtful debts 953.03 766.14
On account of Carry forward of Business Losses 53.25 -
On account of Fair Valuation of Investments 58.39 -
On account of defined employee benefit plan 4.90 -
On account of other timing differences 12.89 13.21
Total Deferred Tax Assets 1,082.46 779.35
Deferred Tax Liabilities

On Depreciation between book depreciation and tax depreciation 258.01 282.49
On account of fair valuation of investment - 20.68
On account of defined employee plan - 0.15
Total - Deferred Tax Liabilities 258.01 303.32
Net tax assets/(Liabilities) 824.45 476.03

i) The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority.

ii) Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and
liabilities and recoverability of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on
estimates of taxable income by each jurisdiction in which the relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred
income tax assets will be recovered.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

NOTE: 5 - OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Capital Advances 164.96 164.63
Balance with Government Authorities 25.30 25.30
Advance Income-Tax (Net of Provision) 1,330.02 1,203.59
Prepaid Lease rentals 618.85 637.42

2,139.13 2,030.94

NOTE: 6 - INVENTORIES

Raw Materials (including packing material) 24.33 20.67
Work-in-progress 1.87 3.71
Finished goods 12.31 6.18
Stock-in-Trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading) (refer note no. 35) 1,098.74 1,550.47

1,137.25 1,581.03

i) Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

ii)  The cost of inventories recognised as an expense include nil (previous year nil) in respect of write down of inventory to
net realisation value.
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R in lacs)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

NOTE: 7 — CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Unquoted

Investment in Mutual Fund (Designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income) [FVTOCI]

Nil Mutual Fund (previous year 1,00,000) units of ¥ 10 each in IDBI Midcap Fund - 11.46
- 11.46
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments-cost - 10.00
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments g -
NOTE: 8 - TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured, considered good* 990.65 3,146.30
Unsecured, considered doubtful 3,425.71 2,294.94
Credit impaired 439.98 -
Have significant credit risk - -
4,856.34 5,441.24
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts/expected credit loss 3,425.71 2,294.94
1,430.63 3,146.30
*The above includes debts due from firms/private companies in which director is
partner/director ¥ 44.72 lacs. [Previous Year 2017-2018 ¥ 38.98 lacs]
NOTE: 9 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 162.86 823.28
Cash on hand 4.44 8.34
167.30 831.62
NOTE: 10 - BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Dividend Accounts earmarked 0.78 1.18
In Deposit Accounts with
Original Maturity less than or equal to 12 months (earmarked) 91.48 171.65
92.26 172.83
NOTE: 11 — LOANS
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Security Deposits 240.80 235.58
Loans to Subsidiaries 1,236.00 1,210.00
1,476.80 1,445.58
NOTE: 12 — OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT
Other Receivables* 3,847.06 2,901.99
Interest Accrued but not due
On Fixed Deposits with Banks 2.63 6.10
On Other deposits 98.67 72.62
3,948.36 2,980.71
* (refer note no. 34)
NOTE: 13 — OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Advance against supply 12.66 140.08
Balance with Government Authorities 586.89 692.59
Other receivable** 122.85 99.49
Prepaid lease rentals 22.45 26.34
744.85 958.50

** Represents prepaid expenses, advance to employees etc.
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R in lacs)

Particulars As at As at

(TR YV OYCN March 31, 2018

NOTE: 14 — EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(@) Authorised

50,00,00,000 (previous year 50,00,00,000) Equity shares of Re 1/- each 5,000.00 5,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00
(b) lIssued, Subscribed and paid-up
20,52,39,942 (previous year 20,52,39, 942) Equity share of Re 1/- each 2,052.40 2,052.40
fully paid up
2,052.40 2,052.40

The reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding is set out below:

Particulars As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Equity Shares:

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 20,52,39,942 2,052.40 20,52,39,942 2,052.40
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Equity Shares at the end of the year 20,52,39,942 2,052.40 20,52,39,942 2,052.40
(@) Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares:
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The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Re. 1 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for
one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend which is paid as and when declared by the Board
of Directors. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

The details of shareholders’ holding more than 5% Shares.

EQUITY SHARES As at March 31, 2018

No of Shares % age of holding
Bunkim Finance and Investments Pvt Ltd 1,77,06,321 8.63 2,89,86,321 14.12
Ruchi Soya Industries Ltd 2,73,24,239 13.31 2,73,24,239 13.31
Umesh Shahra (Trustee of Shashwat Trust) 1,80,00,000 8.77 1,55,00,000 7.55
Mahakosh Holding Pvt Ltd 1,50,57,840 7.34 1,50,57,840 7.34

For the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared, i.e. 31.03.2019, the
Company has not allotted any shares pursuant to Contract(s) without payment being received in Cash or by way of bonus
shares or bought back any shares/class of shares.
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Particulars

R in lacs)

As at
March 31, 2019

NOTE: 15 — OTHER EQUITY

A. Capital Reserve

B Securities Premium

C. General Reserve

D Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

(refer Note D below)

m

Retained Earnings (refer Note E below)

TOTAL

A. Capital Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Less: Transfer during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

B Securities Premium

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Balance as at the end of the year

C. General Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add: Transfer during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

D. Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
(refer note (iv) below)

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Fair value change in investments in equity shares - OCI (net of tax)

Transfer to Retained Earnings

Balance as at the end of the year

E. Retained Earnings (refer Note (v) below)

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add: Net Profit/(Loss) for the year

Less: Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans through Other
Comprehensive income (net of tax)

Transfer to Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as at the end of the year

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
(i) Capital Reserve

As at
March 31, 2018

3,378.73 3,378.73
1,179.04 1,179.04
8,906.41 8,906.41
0.45 (1,261.07)
(3,593.46) (318.91)
9,871.17 11,884.20
3,378.73 3,378.73
3,378.73 3,378.73
1,179.04 1,179.04
1,179.04 1,179.04
8,906.41 8,906.41
8,906.41 8,906.41
(1,261.07) (437.21)
(674.47) (823.86)
1,935.99 -
0.45 (1,261.07)
(318.91) 448.72
(1,325.46) (767.92)
(13.10) 0.29
(1,935.99) -
(3,593.46) (318.91)
9,871.17 11,884.20

Capital Reserve was created on account of gains on buyback of FCCB's. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(i) Securities Premium

Securities Premium is created on recording of premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii) General Reserve

The General Reserve is created from time to time out of surplus profit from retained earnings. General Reserve is created

by transfer from one component of Equity.

(iv) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

The company has elected to recognise changes in fair value of certain class of investments in other comprehensive income.
These fair value changes are accumulated within this reserve and shall be adjusted on derecognition of investment.

(v) Retained Earnings

The same is created out of profits over the years and shall be utilised as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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R in lacs)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

NOTE: 16 - BORROWINGS

A. Secured
Term Loans
From Banks (refer note A.1 below) 7,570.57 8,406.49
Less: Shown under current maturities of Long Term Debt (refer note 20) 875.98 757.12
6,694.59 7,649.37
From Others (refer note A.2 below) 1,636.42 2,618.06
Less: Shown under current maturities of Long Term Debt (refer note 20) 120.86 177.44
1,515.56 2,440.62
8,210.15 10,089.99
B. Unsecured
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (refer note B below)
54,60,613 (previous year 54,60,613) 6% Non convertible, Cumulative,
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each fully paid up. 5,460.61 5,460.61
13,670.76 15,550.60

Note:
A.1 Term Loan From Banks

(@) Term Loan from State Bank of India

i) Term Loan of ¥ 2600.00 lacs from State Bank Of India outstanding ¥ 1934.08 lacs (previous year ¥ 1976.62 lacs)
secured by exclusive first charge on future receivables from sale of wind power, charge by way of hypothecation
charge on 18 wind turbine generators (WTG's) located at location No P-161 to P-167, P-170 to P-178, village
Palsodi, and P-117, P-179 Village Gopalpura Dist. Ratlam (M.P.) 17 WTG’s and location No N-22 Village
Palnagar Dist. Dewas, (M.P) T WTG and Personal guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Shahra. The Rate of Interest as at the

year end is 17.60 % p.a (previous year 17.10 %).

ii) The Loan is repayable in 139 scattered monthly instalments starting from September 2015 and last instalment

due in March 2027. R in lacs)
Year No. of Amount of Total
Instalments Instalment Amount

2015-2016 7 18.57 129.99
2016-2017 12 11.92 143.04
2017-2018 12 13.54 162.48
2018-2019 12 13.00 156.00
2019-2020 12 15.17 182.04
2020-2021 12 16.25 195.00
2021-2022 12 18.42 221.04
2022-2023 12 19.50 234.00
2023-2024 12 21.67 260.04
2024-2025 12 22.75 273.00
2025-2026 12 24.92 299.04
2026-2027 11 28.71 315.81
2026-2027 1 28.52 28.52
Total 139 2,600.00
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(b) Term Loan From South Indian Bank Ltd.

Term Loan of ¥ 6900 lacs Outstanding ¥ 5636.49 lacs (previous year ¥ 6383.65 lacs) from South Indian Bank is
secured by:

i)

ii)

i)

(© i)

ii)

Hypothecation of all current assets of the Company including receivables other than those charged to existing
lenders of the Company.

Collateral security by way of hypothecation/mortgage of warehouses of the Company located at:
(@) Survey No. 30/1, 30/2, 30/3, 30/4, Village Linga, District Chindwada (MP), Area of Land- 26353 sq mt.

(b) Survey No. 253/1, 257/1, 258 and 259, Village Chaigaon, Devi Tehsil, District Khandwa, Area of land-
37100 sqg. mt.

(c) Survey No. 711, 712, 713, Village Jamunia, Kala Patwari, Halka No. 11, Mhow Nasirawad road, Tehsil and
District Ratlam (MP),

(d) Survey No. 734/2, 751/2, 752, 756/2, 756/3, 756/4, 756/5, 758/1, 759/1, Patwari Halka No. 31, Village
Mangrol, Mhow Nasirawad road, Tehsil and District Ratlam (MP), area of land - 53100 sq mt.

(e) SurveyNo.167/1,168/1,78/1,78/3,79/2,74,75,76,77,79/1,78/2,173/1, Village Raigaon, Tehsil Raghuraj
Nagar District Satna(MP), area of land - 36300 sq mt.

The rate of Interest as at the year end is 11.15% (previous year 10.70%).
The loan is repayable in 26 scattered instalments starting from September 2017 with the last instalment due in

December 2023. & in lacs)
Year No. of Amount of Total
Instalments Instalment Amount

2017-2018 1 166.66 166.66
2017-2018 2 166.67 333.34
2018-2019 4 187.50 750.00
2019-2020 4 187.50 750.00
2020-2021 4 250.00 1,000.00
2021-2022 4 312.50 1,250.00
2022-2023 4 375.00 1,500.00
2023-2024 2 383.30 766.60
2023-2024 1 383.40 383.40
Total 26 6,900.00

Term Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd

Term Loan of ¥ 59.70 lacs from HDFC Bank Ltd, (Outstanding ¥ Nil/-, previous year ¥ 3.68 lacs) is secured
by charge on specific assets financed by the Bank. The loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Instalment of
% 1.25 lacs (Including interest) commencing from July 2013, last instalment being due in June 2018. Rate of
Interest as at the year end is Nil p.a. (previous year 9.61 %).

Term Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd

Term Loan of ¥ 162.43 from HDFC Bank Ltd, (Outstanding ¥ Nil/-, previous year ¥ 42.54 lacs) is secured by
charge on specific assets financed by the Bank. The loans are repayable in 60 Equated Monthly Instalment of
¥ 3.47 lacs (Including interest) commencing from April 2014, last instalment being due in March 2019. Rate of
Interest as at the year end is Nil p.a. (previous year 10.25%).

A.2 Term Loan From Others

Term Loan From JM Financial Product Ltd.

Term Loan of ¥ 2,800 lacs from JM Financial Products Limited, Outstanding ¥ 1,636. 42 lacs (previous year X 2,618.06
lacs) is secured by:

i)

i)

Mortgage of residential property of the Company situated at Flat No 14, Vandan Co operative Housing Society, 29-A,
Doongersey Road, Malabar Hill, Walkeshwar, Mumbai

Pledge of Nil (Previous year 80,00,000 Shares) shares of Ruchi Soya Industries Ltd held by the Company. The rate of
Interest as at the year end is 12.75 % p.a. (previous year 12%)
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The loan is repayable in 120 equated monthly instalment of ¥ 26.88 lacs including interest commencing from
February 2017 with the last instalment being due in January 2027.

Secured long term borrowings aggregating to ¥ 1,934.08 lacs (previous year X 2,022.81 lacs) including interest accrued but
not due on borrowings of ¥ Nil (previous year ¥ 2,561.33 lacs) are secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Shahra.

B. Terms/Rights attached to Preference Shares:

Preference shares are non-convertible, cumulative, redeemable and have a par value of ¥ 100/- per share. Each preference
shareholder is eligible for one vote per share only on resolutions affecting their rights and interest. Shareholders are entitled
to dividend at the rate of 6 % p.a. which is cumulative. In the event of liquidation of the company before redemption, the
holders of preference shares will have priority over equity shares in the payment of dividend and repayment of capital.

The details of share holders holding more than 5% of shares

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
No. of % age of No. of % age of
Shares holding Shares holding
Preference Shares
Wellway Development Ltd 27,96,281 51.21 27,96,281 51.21
Apec Investments Ltd 17,33,345 31.74 17,33,345 31.74
Everlead Trading Ltd 9,30,987 17.05 9,30,987 17.05

(@) The Company had allotted 6% Non Convertible, Cumulative,

under:

17,33,345 Shares were allotted on 31st March 2006
37,27,268 Shares were allotted on 9th October 2006

(b) The aforesaid Preference Shares are redeemable as under:

¥ 25/- to be redeemed after 18 years from date of allotment

% 75/- to be redeemed after 19 years from date of allotment

Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- each as

The Company at its sole discretion has an option to prematurely redeem the preference shares in full or in part after
completion of three years from the date of allotment.

Particulars

NOTE: 17 — PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity

Compensated absences

(refer note 46 for disclosure as per Ind AS 19)

NOTE: 18 — OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Government Grants - Deferred Income
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March 31, 2019

® in lacs)

As at
March 31, 2018

38.86 32.33
38.86 32.33
472.59 493.95
472.59 493.95
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R in lacs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

NOTE: 19 — TRADE PAYABLES

a. Total outstanding due to Micro and Small Enterprises

b. Total outstanding due to others than (a) above.

NOTE: 20 — OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT

Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 16 for security details)

Interest accrued

Unclaimed Dividends (refer note (i) below)

Others

Creditors for capital expenditure

Note:
i) There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund under Companies Act, 2013.

NOTE: 21 — OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Customers’ Credit Balances

Other liabilities

Deferred Government Grants

Statutory Dues

Unamortised Guarantee Commission (refer note no. 37)

NOTE: 22 — PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits

Compensated absences

(refer note no. 46 for disclosure as per Ind AS 19)

8,022.44 8,744.76
8,022.44 8,744.76
996.84 934.57
15.65 49.18
0.77 1.18
38.07 12.57
106.06 54.05
1,157.39 1,051.55
238.84 202.50
4.67 71.81
21.36 22.29
31.87 45.12
100.80 -
397.54 341.72
7.46 7.22
7.46 7.22

71



Notes

FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

NOTE: 23 — REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(a) Sales of products

(b) Sale of Services

Rental Income from storage and Warehouse

Cargo Handling Income

(c) Sale of Wind Power Generated

(d) Other Operating Income

Mark to Market of Purchase Contracts

NOTE: 24 — OTHER INCOME

(a) Interest Income (at amortised cost)

(b) Dividend Income from equity instrument

From Other than Subsidiaries, associates and Joint Ventures entities

c) Net Gain on Sale/Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment

d) Share in Profit of Partnership firm

(
(
(e) Net gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations
(f) Other Non Operating Income

Guarantee commission

Government Grant Income

Other Non Operating Income

NOTE: 25 — COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

(a) Raw Material

(b) Packing Material

NOTE: 26 — PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

NOTE: 27 — CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

Inventory at the beginning of the Year

Finished Goods

Work in Progress

Stock In Trade

Inventory at the end of the year

Finished Goods

Work in Progress

Stock In Trade

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
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For the year

ended
March 31, 2019

R in lacs)

For the year
ended
March 31, 2018

1,742.19 489.17
2,391.58 2,087.76
360.89 389.02
646.61 593.57
5,141.27 3,559.52
- 99.49

- 99.49
5,141.27 3,659.01
272.57 157.48

- 6.86

61.05 1,324.45

- 0.73

218.11 10.82
100.80 106.40
22.29 34.68
91.83 86.50
766.65 1,727.92
133.89 147.73
14.60 15.10
148.49 162.83
840.79 329.39
840.79 329.39
6.18 5.62
3.71 4.01
1,550.47 1,392.22
1,560.36 1,401.85
12.31 6.18
1.87 3.71
1,098.74 1,550.47
1,112.92 1,560.36
447.44 (158.51)
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R in lacs)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
NOTE: 28 — EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salary, Wages and Bonus 717.41 636.89
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 47.49 53.74
Staff Welfare expenses 18.25 13.84
783.15 704.47
NOTE: 29 — FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense 1,249.10 1,428.19
Other borrowing costs 15.95 21.02
1,265.05 1,449.21
NOTE: 30 - OTHER EXPENSES
Manufacturing expenses 0.03 0.06
Stores & Chemicals Consumed - -
Processing Charges 9.74 9.72
Rent 180.33 201.77
Repairs and Maintenance
Plant & Machinery 312.37 236.54
Buildings 105.16 37.19
Others 72.53 63.64
Freight & forwarding 21.04 12.62
Material Handling Expenses 97.27 72.60
Rates & Taxes 140.71 80.71
Insurance 29.22 29.87
Donations 18.60 26.37
Provision for doubtful debts 1,130.77 1,438.25
Commission & rebate 9.00 16.70
Bank Commission & charges 7.28 12.26
Share in Loss of Partnership Firm 0.56 -
Other expenses 618.85 541.76
2,753.46 2,780.06

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

NOTE: 31 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Contingent Liabilities
i) Demands disputed in appeals:

(a) Income Tax 32.98 32.98
(b) Sales Tax/VAT 4,552.81 12.56
(c) Entry Tax 70.54 70.54
(d) Service Tax 575.96 432.49

ii) Corporate Guarantee given on behalf of Subsidiary 7,200.00 7,600.00
(Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt Ltd)

iii Arrears of dividend on 54,60,613 6% non convertible cumulative 1,310.55 982.91
redeemable preference shares of ¥ 100 each

iv) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 959.81 959.81

B. Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
and not provided for (Net of advances of ¥ 164.96 lacs previous year
$164.63 lacs) 88.20 202.13
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NOTE: 32 — DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES
DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006.

(a) Trade Payables includes nil (previous year nil) amount due to Micro and Small enterprises registered under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED).

(b) The detail of amount outstanding to Micro and small Enterprises are as under:

Particular As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Principle amount due and remain unpaid - -

Interest due on above and unpaid interest - -

Interest paid - -

Interest payment made beyond appointed day during the year - -

Interest due and payable for the period of delay - -

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years - -

(c) The information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available
with the company and relied upon by the auditors.

NOTE: 33 - PAYMENT TO AUDITOR

®in lacs)
Particulars 2017-18
(a) For Statutory audit 4.50 4.50
(b) For Tax Audit 1.25 1.25
(c) For Other services 0.25 1.02
(d) For Cost audit - 0.40
(e) For reimbursement of Expenses 0.02 0.08
NOTE: 34

Pursuant to Notification issued by the Government of India, during the year 2013-14 the Company has filed a claim for receipt
of Export Incentive amounting to ¥ 2,199 lacs with the Director General of Foreign Trade (“DGFT”). The Company’s claim is
under process with the DGFT and the said amount is shown under Other Receivables in note no 12.

NOTE: 35

The Company had 3,582 Mt of Castor Seeds as Stock in Trade in various warehouses as at March 31,2019 with a carrying
value of ¥ 1098.74 lacs. of this 3025 Mt have been siezed by the Sales Tax Department against demand of ¥ 4548.08 lacs.
which is shown as contingent liability under note 31A 1(b).

NOTE: 36

The Company has invested ¥ 200 lacs in 2,00,000 6 % Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each issued
by Ruchi Soya Industries Ltd. These shares are to be redeemed as under: ¥ 33 on 31/03/2021,% 33 on 31/03/2022 & ¥ 34 on
31/03/2023.

The issuing company is presently under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process and the final outcome of the process is
awaited. Due to pending of the outcome of the resolution process, the Company is accounting the Preference Shares at their
carrying value.

NOTE: 37

The Company has issued Corporate guarantee of ¥ 7,200 lacs (Previous Year ¥ 7,600 lacs) to M/s. Indian Renewable Energy
Development Authority Ltd on behalf of its 100 % subsidiary Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt Ltd. Deemed Guarantee Commission
0f ¥ 201.60 lacs (Previous Year Nil) has been added to the carrying cost of the investment as at March 31, 2019 (Previous Year
Nil).
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NOTE: 38 — DETAILS OF INVESTMENT IN PARTNERSHIP FIRM NARANG & RUCHI DEVELOPERS

Name of Partner

As at March 31, 2019

R in lacs)

As at March 31, 2018

Balance in % age of share Balance in % age of share
(T NAWYLLIT ST W YOI A Capital Account  in Profit/loss
Ruchi Infrastructure Ltd 972.62 70 956.00 70
Narang Developers Pvt Ltd 83.12 30 77.95 30
NOTE: 39 — EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)
Particulars 2017-2018
Basic and diluted earnings per share:
(a) Net Profit/(loss) after tax (1,325.46) (767.92)
(b) Less: Preference dividend including tax there on 394.34 394.34
(c) Profit/(loss) available for equity shareholders (1,719.80) (1,162.26)
(d) Weighted average number of equity shares 20,52,39,942 20,52,39,942
(e) Nominal value of ordinary share 1.00 1.00
() Basic and diluted earning per share ¥ (0.84) (0.57)
NOTE: 40 — DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 186 (4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013
Particulars 2017-2018
Loan Given Amount Loan Given Amount
Outstanding as at Outstanding as at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018
(a) Particulars of Loan given and outstanding
Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt Ltd. 185.00 130.00 81.93 214.00
Mangalore Liquid Impex Pvt Ltd. - - 410.00 410.00
Peninsular Tankers Pvt Ltd. 1,335.00 1,106.00 835.00 586.00

The above loans given are unsecured and classified under Financial assets under Loans and are charged interest at the rate
of 12.50 % p.a. The same are utilised by the recipient for general corporate purpose.

Investment made and outstanding at the year end:

The same are classified under respective heads amount to be utilised for purposes mentioned in their object clause.(refer

note no. 2)

Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt Ltd (Subsidiary)

Guarantees/Securities given and outstanding as at the end of the year.

As at

March 31, 2019

7,200.00

As at

March 31, 2018

7,600.00

NOTE: 41 — DISCLOSURE UNDER REGULATION 34 (3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015.

R in lacs)
Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018
Loan Given | Amount Maximum | Loan Given | Amount Maximum
Outstanding | Amount Outstanding | ~ Amount
as at 31st | Outstanding as at 31st | Outstanding
March, 2019 | during the March, 2018 during the
year year
During the year the Company has given the
following loans to its subsidiaries:
Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt Ltd. 185.00 130.00 249.00 80.00 214.00 663.00
Mangalore Liquid Impex Pvt Ltd. - - 410.00 410.00 410.00 410.00
Peninsular Tankers Pvt Ltd. 1,335.00 1,106.00 1,821.00 835.00 586.00 686.00
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NOTE: 42 — DISCLOSURE ON FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses foreign currency forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure in foreign currency related to firm
commitment and highly probable forecasted transactions.

1. Notional amount of forward contract entered into by the Company and outstanding - Nil (previous year Nil).
2. Foreign Currency exposure which are not hedged as at the year end:
(a) Payable in foreign currency on account of refund of customer advances:

2018-2019 2017-2018
Amount in foreign currency Tin lacs Amount in foreign currency <in lacs
USD 22,699 15.70 USD 22,699 14.76

(b) Receivables in foreign currency on account of exports:

2018-2019 2017-2018
Amount in foreign currency Tin lacs Amount in foreign currency <in lacs
usSD 52,81,192 3653.07 USD 52,87,298 3439.08

NOTE: 43
The Company is not required to spend any amount on Corporate Social Responsibility activities under Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for the year ended March 31, 2019 (previous year nil) calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

NOTE: 44
The following charges created by various lenders on the Company’s assets are not satisfied and are being shown as Outstanding
as per records with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. However entire amounts have been duly paid off by the Company.

Name of Lender Amount for which Charge was created | Year of Repayment
% lacs

Industrial Development Bank of India 650.00 2005-2006

Axis Bank Ltd 35,500.00 2014-2015

Axis Bank Ltd 18,000.00 2014-2015

Note: Event after the reporting period.
Charges in respect of the following lenders have been satisfied after March 31, 2019 but before approval of Financial statements.

Name of Lender Amount for which Charge was created | Year of Repayment
Rs. lacs

HDFC Bank Ltd 5,000.00 2014-2015

Rabobank International 8,500.00 2016-2017

NOTE: 45 — ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
The company has entered into agreements for sale of Land as under :

Particulars Carrying Value Advance amount Expected date of
T Lacs Received Completion of sale
% Lacs

Description of Asset
Freehold Land (Refer Note 1)

Agreement dt 19/04/2018 for Sale of 8.1801 acre of 129.79 31.00 September 2019
land at Pipariya, Madhya Pradesh

Agreement dt 03/01/2019 for Sale of 11.73 acre of 82.59 65.00 December 2019
land at Kakinada, Andhra Pradesh

Total 212.38 96.00

NOTE: 46 — DISCLOSURE AS PER IND AS 19 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A. Gratuity
The Company has opted for scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India (“LIC”) to cover its liabilities towards employees
gratuity. The annual premium paid to LIC is charged to Profit and Loss Account. The Company also carries out Actuarial
valuation of gratuity using Projected Unit Credit Method as required by Ind As - 19 and the difference between fair value of
plan assets and liability as per actuarial valuation as at the year end is recognised in statement of Profit and Loss.
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R in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Change in Present value of defined benefit obligation

Present Value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 116.00 95.09
Interest Cost/(income) 9.14 6.91
Current Service cost 7.43 6.68
Past Service Cost - 11.41
Benefits Paid from fund (32.90) (4.47)
Remeasurement or actuarial (gain/loss)arising due to - -
Financial Assumptions 1.04 (4.45)
Experience adjustment 16.25 4.82
Present Value of Benefit obligation at the end of the period 116.96 115.99
Change in Fair Value of plan assets

Fair Value of the plan assets at the beginning of the year 116.45 97.20
Interest Income 9.18 7.07
Contributions Paid by Employer 27.20 15.84
(Benefit Paid from Fund) (32.90) (4.47)
Return on Plan Assets Excluding Interest Income (0.86) 0.81
Fair value of plan asset at the end of the year 119.07 116.45
Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet

(Present Value of benefit obligation at the end of the period 116.96 115.99
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period 119.07 116.45
Funded Status (surplus/(Deficit) (2.11) (0.46)
Net (Liability)/asset recognised in the Balance Sheet (2.11) (0.46)
Net Interest Cost for Current Period

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the period 116.00 95.09
Fair Value of the plan assets at the beginning of the period 116.45 97.20
Net Liability/(Asset) at the beginning of the period (0.45) (2.11)
Interest Cost 9.14 6.91
(Interest income) (9.18) (7.07)
Net Interest cost for the current period (0.04) (0.16)
Expense Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss for current period

Current Service Cost 7.43 6.68
Net Interest Cost (0.04) (0.16)
Past Service Cost - 11.41
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit & loss 7.39 17.93
Expense Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) for current

period

actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation for the period 17.29 0.37
Return on Plan Assets excluding interest income 0.86 (0.81)
Net (Income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI 18.15 (0.44)
Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening Net Liability (0.45) (2.11)
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 7.39 17.93
Expenses recognised in OCI 18.15 (0.44)
(Employer’s contribution) (27.20) (15.84)
Net Liability/(Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet (2.11) (0.46)
Category of Assets

Insurance Fund 119.07 116.45
Total 119.07 116.45
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Particulars

Other Details

No of Active Members

Per month salary for active members

Weighted average duration of the Projected benefit obligation

Average expected future service

Projected Benefit obligation

Prescribed contribution for next year

Net Interest cost for the next year

Present Value of Benefit obligation at the end of the period

(Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period)

Net Liability/(Asset) at the end of the period

Interest cost

(Interest income)

Net Interest cost for the next year

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss for next year

Current Service Cost

Net Interest Cost

Expenses recognised

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: From the Employer

1st Following year

2nd Following year

3rd Following year

4th Following year

5th Following year

6th Following year

Sum of years 6 to 10

Sum of years 11 and above

Sensitivity Analysis

Defined benefit obligations on current assumptions

Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting

Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting

Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary increase

Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary increase

Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover

Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover

Actuarial Assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting

date (expressed as weighted averages)

Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

Rate of return on plan assets

Retirement Age

Attrition Rate

Mortality Rate

R in lacs)

As at
March 31,2019

As at
March 31, 2018

125 133
22.88 20.42
10 8

14 12
116.96 116.00
7.00 6.98
116.96 116.00
119.07 116.45
(2.11) (0.45)
9.09 9.14
(9.25) (9.18)
(0.16) (0.04)
9.11 7.43
(0.16) (0.04)
8.95 7.39
116.96 116.00
(8.92) (6.59)
10.18 7.48
10.10 7.62
(9.22) (6.83)
2.04 1.49
(2.27) (1.65)

7.77%
50/0
7.77 %
60
2%
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-2008)

7.88%
5%
7.88%
60
2%
Indian Assured

Lives Mortality
(2006-2008)
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B. Leave Encashment

The liability in respect of leave encashment is determined using actuarial valuation carried out at at Balance sheet date
actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which they occur. Liability
on account of Leave encashment as the year end ¥ 46.32 lacs (previous year ¥ 39.55 lacs).

C. Defined Contribution Plan - Post employment benefits

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under : R in lacs)
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018
Employers Contribution to Provident Fund 18.22 13.64
Employers Contribution to Pension Fund 13.74 12.93

31.96 26.57

NOTE: 47 — SEGMENT REPORTING
A. General Information
i) Factors used to identify the entity’s reportable segments, including the basis of organisaiton Based on the criteria as
mentioned in Ind As 108 “ Operating Segment”, the Company has identified its reportable segments as under:
Segment - 1 Trading
Segment - 2 Infrastructure
Segment - 3 Others
Segment - 4 Unallocable
The Company’s operating segments are established on the basis of those components of the Company that are
evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing
performance. These have been identified taking into account nature of products and services, the differing risks and
returns and the internal reporting system.

ii) Following are the reporting segments

Reportable Segment Description

Trading Trading in various commodities, products
Infrastructure Storage, Warehousing, Wind Energy
Others Manufacturing of Soap

Unallocable

Activities not covered by above

B. Segmentrevenue, results, segment assets and liability include respective amounts directly identified with the segment and
also an allocation on reasonable basis of amounts not directly identified. The expenses which are not directly relatable to
the business segment are shown as un allocable corporate cost. Assets and Liabilities that cannot be allocated between
segment are shown as un allocable corporate assets and liabilities respectively.

A. Operational Segment Information R in lacs)
Particulars Trading Infra- Others Un- Total
structure allocable

Segment Revenue 1,536.21 3,399.08 205.98 - 5,141.27
349.40 3,080.99 228.62 - 3,659.01

Segment Result before Finance Cost and Tax (785.20) 1,210.85 34.15 (771.97) (312.17)
(1,284.91) 2,397.84 47.25 (926.23) 233.95

Finance Cost 1,265.05
1,449.21

Profit Before Tax, Exceptional Items (1,577.22)
(1,215.26)

Exceptional Items -
Profit Before Tax (1,577.22)
(1,215.26)

Provision for Taxes

Current Tax -
58.00

Tax for earlier Year 12.54
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Particulars Trading Infra- Others Un- Total
structure allocable
Deferred Tax (264.30)
(505.34)
Profit After Taxes (1,325.46)
(767.92)
Segment Assets 3,658.05| 15,764.27 223.52| 16,140.77| 35,786.61
6,284.55| 15,346.58 199.31| 18,328.29| 40,158.73
Segment Liabilities 7,888.37 1,006.79 3.44| 14,964.44| 23,863.04
8,666.48 872.44 2.75] 16,680.46| 26,222.13
Segment Depreciation - 695.86 0.34 550.56 1,246.76
- 643.68 0.48 690.58 1,334.74
Capital Expenditure 1,429.50 7.02 0.34 1,436.86
- 73.31 0.25 29.10 102.66
Non Cash expenditure other than - - - - -
depreciation - - - - -
B. Geographical Information
All Operating facilities of the Company are located in India
Particulars 2017-2018
Domestic Revenue 5,141.27 3,659.01
Export Revenue - -
Total Revenue 5,141.27 3,659.01
C. Revenue from Major Products
Particulars 2017-2018
1. Trading 1536.21 349.40
2. Infrastructure - -
i) Storage 1992.01 1971.46
ii) Warehousing 760.46 515.96
iii) Wind Energy 646.61 593.57
3. Others 205.98 228.62
Total Revenue 5,141.27 3,659.01
D. Revenue from Major customers
Revenue from customers exceeding 10 % of the total revenue of the Company
Particulars 2017-2018
Segment
Trading 853.09 -
Infrastructure 1,221.44 988.23
Total 2,074.53 988.23

NOTE: 48 — RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE AS PER IND AS -24

A.
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List of related parties With whom transaction have taken place

i) Key Managerial Person
Name of Person/entity
Mr. Narendra Shah
Mr. Ashish Mehta
Mr. Ravindra Kumar Kakani

Relation

Executive Director
Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer

i) Entity where control exits.

Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt Ltd Subsidiary
Mangalore Liquid Impex Pvt Ltd Subsidiary
Peninsular Tankers Pvt Ltd Subsidiary
Narang & Ruchi Developers Associate




iii) Entity or close members having significant influence and with whom transaction have taken place. — Nil
Related party transactions (financial year 2018-2019 & previous year 2017-2018)

R in lacs)
Nature of relationship Subsidiaries Associate Key Management Personnel
Mangalore| Ruchi |Peninsular| Narang & | Narendra | Ashish | Ravindra
Liquid |Renewable| Tankers Ruchi Shah Mehta Kakani

Impex Energy Pvt Ltd |Developers
Pvt Ltd Pvt Ltd

Remuneration/Salary Paid - - - 58.18 36.18 15.42

40.50 24.46 11.92

Post Employement Benefits - - - - - 0.36 0.15
- - - - 1.15 0.70 0.34
Cargo Handling Income Received 133.19 - - - - - -
150.41 - - - - - -
Interest Received 44.56 14.81 148.55 - - - -
6.23 70.63 33.08
Rent Received - - 0.24 - - - -
- - 0.24 - - - -
Sales 0.06 519.49
Guarantee Commission Received - 100.80 - - - - -
- 106.40 - - - - -
Share in Profit/(loss) of Partnership Firm - - - (0.56) - - -
- - - 0.73 - - -
Investment in Capital account 16.62
28.69

Loan Given - 185.00| 1,335.00 - - - -

410.00 80.00 835.00 - - - -

BALANCES AS AT THE YEAR END

Trade Receivable - - . .

As at March 31,2019 44.72 - - - - - -
As at March 31,2018 38.74 - 0.23 - - - -
Interest Receivable

As at March 31,2019 - 0.47 61.98 - - - -
As at March 31,2018 5.60 10.84 29.78 - - - -
Loan Receivable - - - -
As at March 31,2019 - 130.00( 1,106.00

As at March 31,2018 410.00 214.00 586.00 - - - -
Unamortised Guarantee Commission

As at March 31,2019 100.80

As at March 31,2018 -

Guarantee Outstanding - - - - - -

As at March 31,2019 7,200.00

As at March 31,2018 7,600.00
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NOTE: 49

Tax Reconciliation

A. Amounts recognised in Statement of profit and loss R in lacs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Current tax on profit for the year - 58.00

Deferred tax (264.30) (505.34)

Tax expense for the year charged to the Profit and loss (a) (264.30) (447.34)

Deferred tax on amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (b) 84.12 35.17

Total Tax expenses for the year (a + b) (180.18) (412.17)

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit before tax (1,577.22) (1,215.26)
Applicable Tax Rate 0.00% 20.39 %
Computed Tax Expense - (247.78)
Tax effect of: -
Exempted income - (1.55)
Income/Expenses disallowed - 307.32
Income/Expenses allowed - -
Deferred Tax on account of Property,Plant and Equipment and Intangible (24.48) (53.84)
Assets
Deferred Tax on account of Financial Assets and Other Items (239.82) (451.49)
Tax Expenses recognised during the year (264.30) (447.34)
Effective Tax Rate 16.76% 36.81%
C. Movement in deferred tax balances
Particulars As at For the E.Y. 2018-19 As at
April 1, 2018 Recognised in Recognised March 31, 2019
profit or loss in OCI
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation 282.50 (24.48) - 258.02
Fair valuation of Investment 20.68 - (79.07) (58.39)
Defined Employee Benefit Plan 0.15 - (5.05) (4.90)
Total - Deferred Tax Liabilities 303.33 (24.48) (84.12) 194.73
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Doubtful debts 766.15 186.89 - 953.04
Other timing difference 13.21 (0.32) - 12.89
Carry forward of Business Loss - 53.25 - 53.25
Total - Deferred Tax Assets 779.36 239.82 - 1,019.18
Net tax (Assets)/Liabilities (476.03) (264.30) (84.12) (824.45)
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Particulars As at For the F.Y. 2017-18 As at

April 1, 2017 Recognised in Recognised March 31, 2018

profit or loss in OCI

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation 301.02 (18.52) - 282.50
Fair valuation of Investment 56.00 - (35.32) 20.68
Defined Employee Benefit Plan - - 0.15 0.15
Total - Deferred Tax Liabilities 357.02 (18.52) (35.17) 303.33
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Doubtful debts 283.25 482.90 - 766.15
Other timing difference 9.29 3.92 - 13.21
Total - Deferred Tax Assets 292.54 486.82 - 779.36
Net tax (Assets)/Liabilities 64.48 (505.34) (35.17) (476.03)

NOTE: 50 — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES, MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY

A.

Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities,
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets
and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. A substantial
portion of the Company’s long-term debt has been contracted at floating rates of interest, which are
reset at short intervals. Accordingly, the carrying value of such long-term debt approximates fair value.
A substantial portion of the Company’s long-term debt has been contracted at floating rates of interest, which are reset at
short intervals. Accordingly, the carrying value of such long-term debt approximates fair value.

i) Asat March 31, 2019  in lacs)
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTPL FVTOCI | Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cost *

Financial assets
i) Investments * - 94.14 200.00 294.14 94.14 - - 94.14
ii) Trade Receivables - 1,430.63| 1,430.63 - -
iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents - - 167.30 167.30 - -
iv) Bank Balance other than above - - 92.26 92.26 - -
v) Loans - - 1,476.80 1,476.80 - -
vi) Others - -|  4,627.68| 4,627.68 - -

94.14 7,994.67 | 8,088.81 94.14 - - 94.14
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings - -| 14,667.60| 14,667.60 - -
i) Trade payables - -| 8,022.44| 8,022.44 - -
iii) Other Financial liability - - 160.55 160.55 - -

22,850.59 | 22,850.59 - - - -

83



Notes

FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ii) Asat March 31, 2018 [ in lacs)
Particulars Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI | Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cost*

Financial assets
i) Investments * -1 2,176.42 992.57 | 3,168.99| 1,704.44 11.46 460.52| 2,176.42
ii) Trade Receivables - -1 3,146.30| 3,146.30 - -
iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents - - 831.62 831.62 - -
iv) Bank Balance other than above - - 172.83 172.83 - -
v) Loans - .| 1,44558| 1,445.58 - -
vi) Others - .| 3,384.32|  3,384.32 - -

2,176.42| 9,973.22| 12,149.64| 1,704.44 11.46 460.52 2,176.42
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings - -| 16,485.17| 16,485.17 - -
ii) Trade payables - -| 874476| 8,744.76 - -
iii) Other Financial liability - - 116.98 116.98 - -

25,346.91| 25,346.91 ; . . ]

* Excludes investment in Subsidiary Companies/Associate ¥ 3711.69 lacs (Previous Year X 3493.48 lacs)

Measurement of fair values

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the

significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique

Open purchase and sale contracts | Based on commodity prices listed on stock exchange and along with quotations
from brokers and adjustments made for grade and location of commodity.

NOTE: 51 — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
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The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
i) Market risk
(@) Currency risk
(b) Interest rate risk
(c) Commodity Risk
(ii) Credit risk and
(iii) Liquidity risk
Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of risks on its financial performance.
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The Company’s risk management assessment policies and processes are established to identify and analyses the risks
faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the
same. These policies and processes are reviewed by management regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing these policies
and processes.

i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk of changes the market prices on account of foreign exchange rates, interest rates and Commaodity
prices, which shall affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of its financial instruments. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the returns.
i(@) Foreign Currency risk
The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have impact on the profit and loss account, where any
transaction has more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity. Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Company
operates, its operations are subject to risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries. The risks
primarily relate to fluctuations in U.S. dollar, against the functional currency. The Company, as per its risk management
policy, uses foreign exchange and other derivative instruments primarily to hedge foreign exchange and interest rate
exposure. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
Exposure to foreign currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported by the management of the
Company is as follows:
R in lacs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018
USD Exposure USD Exposure
in INR in INR
Receivable net exposure
Trade receivables 3,653.07 3,439.08
Receivable net exposure 3,653.07 3,439.08
Payable net exposure
Trade payables and other financial liabilities 15.70 14.76
Payable net exposure 15.70 14.76
Forward exchange contracts against imports and foreign currency payables - -
Payable net exposure 15.70 14.76
Total net exposure on Receviables/(Payables) 3,637.37 3,424.32
Sensitivity analysis
A 1% strengthening/weakening of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of Company
would result in increase or decrease in profit or loss as shown in table below. The following analysis has been worked
out based on the exposures as of the date of statements of financial position.
Effect in Indian Rupees (in lacs) Profit/(Loss) March 31, 2019 Profit/(Loss) March 31, 2018
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
INR (36.37) 36.37 (34.24) 34.24
i(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to
borrowings from financial institutions. The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates

85



Notes

FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

primarily to the borrowing from bank and financial institution. Currently Company is not using any mitigating factor
to cover interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk exposure -variable rate

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Borrowing from bank 7,570.57 8,406.49
Borrowing from financial institution 1,636.42 2,618.06
9,206.99 11,024.55

Interest rate sensitivity

A reasonably possible change of 1% in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) equity
and profit or loss by amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular, foreign
currency exchange rates, remain constant. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet
date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not
necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

A. As at March 31, 2019 R in lacs)
Particulars Impact on Profit/(loss) before tax
1% Increase 1% Decrease

On account of Variable Rate Borrowings from Banks and financial (92.07) 92.07
institutions

Sensitivity (92.07) 92.07

B. Asat March 31, 2018

Particulars

On account of Variable Rate Borrowings from Banks (110.25) 110.25
Sensitivity (110.25) 110.25

i(c) Commodity risk

The prices of agricultural commodities are subject to wide fluctuations due to unpredictable factors such as weather,
government policies, changes in global demand resulting from population growth and changes in standards of living and
global production of similar and competitive crops. During its ordinary course of business, the value of the Company’s
open sales and purchases commitments and inventory of raw material changes continuously in line with movements in
the prices of the underlying commodities. To the extent that its open sales and purchases commitments do not match at
the end of each business day, the Company is subjected to price fluctuations in the commodities market.

While the Company is exposed to fluctuations in agricultural commodities prices, its policy is to minimise its risks
arising from such fluctuations by hedging its sales either through direct purchases of a similar commodity or through
futures contracts.

In the course of hedging its sales either through direct purchases the Company may also be exposed to the inherent
risk associated with trading activities conducted by its personnel. The Company has in place a risk management
system to manage such risk exposure.

At the balance sheet date, a 1% increase/decrease of the commodities price indices, with all other variables remaining
constant, would result in (decrease)/increase in profit before tax and equity by the amounts as shown below:

& in lacs)
Particulars Profit/(loss)
March 31, 2019
Increase Decrease

Effect of increase/(decrease) in prices

Profit before taxes 11.11 (11.11)
Assumptions used for calculation

Inventory Commodity price * 1%
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ii) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to

meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customer. The Company
establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate on expected loss model.

A.

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry has an influence on credit risk assessment.
Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Summary of the Company’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

R in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Past due but not impaired

Past due 0-90 days 427.80 469.73
Past due 91-180 days 73.85 125.99
Past due more then 180 days 4,354.69 4,845.52

4,856.34 5,441.24

Expected credit loss assessment for customers as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine
expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit
losses. Impaired amounts are based on lifetime expected losses based on the best estimate of the management.
Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 180 days are still
collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The
impairment loss related to several customers that have defaulted on their payments to the Company and are not
expected to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was
as follows.

R in lacs)
Balance as at April 1, 2018 2,294.94
Impairment loss recognised 1,130.77
Amounts written off -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 3,425.71
Balance as at April 1, 2017 856.69
Impairment loss recognised 1,438.25
Amounts written off -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 2,294.94

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks of ¥ 167.30 lacs as at March 31, 2019
[¥ 831.65 lacs as at March 31, 2018].The credit worthiness of such banks is evaluated by the management on an
ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Investments

The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties apart from those
already given in financials, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry
sectors or specific country risks.
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iiii)

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The
Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet

its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to
the Company’s reputation.

The Company has obtained fund based lines from various banks. The Company also constantly monitors various
funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial flexibility.
Exposure to liquidity risk

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturities groupings based on their
contractual maturities for:

* all non derivative financial liabilities

* net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for the
understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

A. As at March 31, 2019 R in lacs)
Particulars | Carrying Contractual cash flows
Amount 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years | More than
or less 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured term loans and borrowings 9,206.99 9,206.99 750.00 1,332.20 5,134.82 1,989.97
Unsecured term loans and
borrowings
Redeemable preference shares 5,460.61 5,460.61 1,365.15 4,095.46
Trade payables 8,022.44 8,022.44 8,022.44
Other financial liabilities 122.48 122.48 122.48
(repayable on demand)
B. Asat March 31,2018
Particulars | Carrying Contractual cash flows
Amount 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years | More than
or less 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured term loans and borrowings 11,061.47|  11,061.47 970.22 1,124.13 5,165.31 3,801.81
Unsecured term loans and - - - - - -
borrowings
redeemable preference shares 5,460.61 5,460.61 - - - 5,460.61
Trade payables 8,744.76 8,744.76 8,021.29 - - -
Other financial liabilities 1,051.55 1,051.55 910.20 - - -
(repayable on demand)

Note:

The inflows/(outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating
to derivative financial liabilities held for risk management purposes and which are not usually closed out before
contractual maturity. The disclosure shows net cash flow amounts for derivatives that are net cash-settled and gross
cash inflow and outflow amounts for derivatives that have simultaneous gross cash settlement.

NOTE: 52 — CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to
ordinary shareholders.
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The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, less cash
and cash equivalents. Equity comprises of Equity share capital and other equity.

The Company’s policy is to keep the ratio at optimum level. The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio was as follows.

R in lacs)
A.  Particulars As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Total Liabilities (refer note no 16,20) 9,222.64 11,073.74
Less: Cash and cash equivalent 167.30 831.62
Adjusted net debt 9,055.34 10,242.12
Total equity 11,923.57 13,936.60
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.76 0.73
B. Dividends
Amount of Dividends approved during the year by shareholders
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
No. of Shares 3 Lacs No. of Shares < Lacs
Equity Shares 20,52,39,942 - 20,52,39,942 -
Preference Shares 54,60,613 - 54,60,613 -
NOTE: 53

IND As 115 ‘Revenue from contract with customer’, has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). On
March 28, 2018 and is effective from accounting period beginning on or after April 1, 2018, which replace existing
revenue recognition requirement. In accordance with the new standard, and on the basis of he Company’s contracts with
customers, its application did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the
financial statements including the retained earnings as at April 1st, 2018.

NOTE: 54

Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped/ rearranged whereever considered necessary.

As per our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For ASHOK KHASGIWALA & CO. LLP Ravindra Kumar Kakani Narendra Shah
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Executive Director
(Firm Regn No 000743C/0C400037) DIN 02143172
CA Ashok Khasgiwala Ashish Mehta Krishna Das Gupta
Partner Company Secretary Director
Membership No. 070288 DIN 00374379
Mumbai, May 22, 2019 Mumbai, May 22, 2019
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Independent Auditors Report

To,
The Members of
Ruchi Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ruchi Infrastructure Limited ( hereinafter referred to
as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”)
and its associate, comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements/financial information of the subsidiaries and associate referred
to below in Other Matter paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate entities as at 31st March, 2019, and their consolidated
loss, including consolidated other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and their consolidated
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled
entities in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Recoverability of Export Trade Receivable

As at the year end March 31, 2019
Trade receivable includes, Export
trade receivable amounting to
% 3653.07 lacs doubtful of recovery.
Permission is pending with RBI for its w/off.

Auditor’s Response

Audit Procedure

We have verified the documents filed by holding company with RBI and RBI has
recommended to recover the dues. However company has made adequate provision
for the same.

Accuracy of recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosures of revenues and
other related balances in view of adoption
of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” (new revenue accounting
standard)

The application of the new revenue
accounting standard involves some key points

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed the Group’s process to identify the impact of adoption of the new
revenue accounting standard. Our audit approach consisted testing of the design
and operating effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as follows:
Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to implementation of the new revenue
accounting standard. Sample selected from continuing and new contracts, and tested
the operating effectiveness of the internal control, relating to identification of the
distinct performance obligations and determination of transaction price. We have

which includes Identification of contract
with customer, identification of distinct
performance obligations, determination
of transaction price of the identified
performance obligations, the appropriateness
of the basis used to measure revenue
recognized. Additionally, new revenue
accounting standard contains disclosures
which involves collation of information in
respect of disaggregated revenue and periods
over which the remaining performance
obligations will be satisfied subsequent to the
balance sheet date.

performed the following procedures:

¢ Read, analysed and identified the distinct performance obligations in these contracts.
e Compared these performance obligations with that identified and recorded by the
Group.

e Considered the terms of the contracts to determine the transaction price including
any variable consideration to verify the transaction price used to compute revenue
and to test the basis of estimation of the variable consideration.

eSample of revenues disaggregated by type and service offerings was tested with the
performance obligations specified in the underlying contracts.

e Performed analytical procedures for reasonableness of revenues disclosed by type
and service offerings.

* We reviewed the collation of information and the logic of the report generated
from the budgeting system used to prepare the disclosure relating to the periods over
which the remaining performance obligations will be satisfied subsequent to the
balance sheet date.
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Lease Expired Audit Procedures

Holding Company has storage tank terminal | We have checked the lease agreement and application of renewal of lease. Considering
at Haldia on lease from Kolkata Port Trust, | the past records and practice it is highly probable that lease will be renewed.
Haldia Dock Complex. The lease of the same
expired on 15/03/2018 and renewal of lease
is in process.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its
associate entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind As) specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates
and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities
are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditors Report co

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the Group and its associates entities to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and
its associates and jointly controlled entities to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group and its associate entities to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the

consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 7666.09 Lacs
as at 31st March, 2019, total revenues of Rs. 1881.43 lacs and cash outflows amounting to Rs. 19.88 lacs for the year ended
on that date as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The Consolidated financial statements also include the
Group'’s share of net loss (including other comprehensive income) of Rs. 0.56 lacs in respect of an associate for the year
ended 31 March, 2019 as considered in the consolidated financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amount and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub- section (3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries and its associate, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the
other auditors and the financial statements/information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.
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b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as appears from our examination of those books and reports of the other
auditor.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), Consolidated statement of changes in equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rules framed thereunder.

e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding company, as on 31% March
2019 taken on records by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditor of
its subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India,
is disqualified as on 31 march, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and
its Subsidiaries Company incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure A”; and

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group — refer note 33 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii.  The Group did not have any long term contract including derivative contract for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India.

h)  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports of the statutory auditors
of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current
year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India to its directors is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For Ashok Khasgiwala & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 000743C/0C400037)

CA Ashok Khasgiwala

Place : Mumbai (Partner)
Date : 22.05.2019 M.No. 070288
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Annexure A To the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Ruchi
Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31 March,
2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ruchi Infrastructure Limited (“the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated
in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries which are companies incorporated
in India, internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and obtained by other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in
the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
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risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to two subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For Ashok Khasgiwala & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 000743C/0C400037)

CA Ashok Khasgiwala

Place : Mumbai (Partner)
Date : 22.05.2019 M.No. 070288
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Ruchi Infrastructure Limited
CIN: L65990MH1984PLC033878
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

R in lacs)
Particulars Notes As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
[ ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 25,038.07 26,010.53
(b) Capital work-in-progress 1 640.25 1,091.03
(c) Intangible Assets 1 1,761.22 1,767.41
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 2 1,266.76 4,113.53
(ii) Others 3 680.18 404.38
(e) Deferred tax Assets (Net) 4 832.39 476.41
(f) Other non-current assets 5 2,469.16 2,222.76
Total Non-current assets 32,688.03 36,086.05
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 1,137.25 1,581.03
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 - 11.46
(i) Trade receivables 8 1,711.11 3,381.35
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 298.31 1,074.87
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 10 92.26 202.83
(v) Loans 11 2,096.07 1,487.46
(vi) Others 12 4,122.31 2,966.86
(c) Other Current Assets 13 801.90 1,099.24
Total Current assets 10,259.21 11,805.10
(3) Assets Classified as held for Sale 212.37 -
Total Assets 43,159.61 47,891.15
1l. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 2,052.40 2,052.40
(b) Other Equity 15 10,974.24 13,217.68
(c) Non-Controlling interest 16 0.66 1.03
Total Equity 13,027.30 15271.11
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 17 18,867.51 21,300.16
(b) Provisions 18 44.00 34.10
(c) Other non-current liabilities 19 472.59 493.95
Total Non-Current Liabilities 19,384.10 21,828.21
(2) _ Current liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 375.00 -
(i) Trade payables 21 8,079.58 8,755.00
(ii) Other financial liabilities 22 1,888.01 1,664.07
(b) Other current liabilities 23 301.98 365.48
(c) Provisions 24 7.64 7.28
Total Current liabilities 10,652.21 10,791.83
(3) _Liabilities directly associated with Assets classified as held for sale 96.00 -
Total Equity and Liabilities 43,159.61 47,891.15
The accompanying notes to accounts forming an integral part to the 1 to 51
consolidated financial statements
General information and significant accounting policies A-B
As per our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For ASHOK KHASGIWALA & CO. LLP Ravindra Kumar Kakani Narendra Shah
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Executive Director
(Firm Regn No 000743C/0C400037) DIN 02143172
CA Ashok Khasgiwala Ashish Mehta Krishna Das Gupta
Partner Company Secretary Director
Membership No. 070288 DIN 00374379
Mumbai, May 22, 2019 Mumbai, May 22, 2019
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Ruchi Infrastructure Limited
CIN: L65990MH1984PLC033878
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

R in lacs)
Particulars Notes For the Year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
INCOME
| Revenue from Operations 25 7,498.11 7,648.05
1 Other Income 26 683.61 1,591.35
111 Total Income (I + 11) 8,181.72 9,239.40
IV EXPENSES
Cost of material’s consumed 27 148.49 162.83
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 28 1,239.76 2,213.77
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 29 447.44 (158.51)
stock in trade
Employee Benefits Expense 30 894.17 776.67
Finance Costs 31 1,907.43 2,230.78
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expenses 1 2,183.73 2,408.81
Other Expenses 32 3,173.15 2,911.14
Total Expenses 9,994.17 10,545.49
\% Profit/(loss) before share of profit/(loss) of associate & (1,812.44) (1,306.09)
exceptional items (111 — 1V)
VI __ Share in Profit/(loss) of Associate (0.56) 0.73
VIl _ Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (1,813.01) (1,305.36)
VI _Exceptional ltems - -
IX___ Profit/(loss) before tax (VII — VIII) (1,813.01) (1,305.36)
X Tax expense
Current Tax 2.55 61.17
Deferred Tax 4 (271.87) (505.89)
Provision for earlier years 12.54 -
X1 Profit/(loss) after tax for the year (IX — X) (1,556.23) (860.64)
XIl__(A) Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (18.15) 0.44
Tax thereon 5.05 (0.15)
Gain/(Loss) on change in fair value of equity instrument other (753.54) (859.18)
than subsidiaries
Tax thereon 79.07 35.32
(i) Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive income (687.57) (823.57)
X1l _Total comprehensive income for the year (XI+XII) (2,243.80) (1,684.21)
Total Comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owner of the Company (2,243.43) (1,684.36)
Non-Controlling interest (0.37) 0.15
(2,243.80) (1,684.21)
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owner of the Company (1,555.86) (860.80)
Non-Controlling interest (0.37) 0.15
(1,556.23) (860.65)

Other Comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owner of the Company (687.57) (823.57)

Non-Controlling interest

©87.57) (823.57)

XIV__Earnings per equity share of face value of ¥ 1 each

Basic and Diluted earnings per share

(a) Basic (in%) (0.95) (0.61)

(b) Diluted (in ) (0.95) (0.61)
The accompanying notes to accounts forming an integral part to the 1 to 51
consolidated financial statements
General information and significant accounting policies A-B
As per our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For ASHOK KHASGIWALA & CO. LLP Ravindra Kumar Kakani Narendra Shah
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Executive Director
(Firm Regn No 000743C/0C400037) DIN 02143172
CA Ashok Khasgiwala Ashish Mehta Krishna Das Gupta
Partner Company Secretary Director
Membership No. 070288 DIN 00374379
Mumbai, May 22, 2019 Mumbai, May 22, 2019
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Ruchi Infrastructure Limited

CIN: L65990MH1984PLC033878

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCIE) FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

a.  Equity share capital

R in lacs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the period 205,239,942 2,052.40 205,239,942 2,052.40
Changes in Equity share capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the period 205,239,942 2,052.40 205,239,942 2,052.40
b.  Other Equity
(i) As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total
Capital Securities General Retained | Equity Instru-
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings | ments through
Other Com-
prehensive
Income
Balance at the beginning of the period 5,522.35 2,778.57 8,906.41 (2,728.58) (1,261.07) 13,217.68
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (1,555.86) - (1,555.86)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - (13.10) (674.48) (687.58)
(net of tax)
Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income - - (1,935.99) - (1,935.99)
Transfer to Retained Earnings - - - 1,935.99 1,935.99
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (3,504.95) 1,261.51 (2,243.44)
Balance at the end of the period 5,522.35 2,778.57 8,906.41 (6,233.53) 0.44 10,974.24
(ii) As at March 31, 2018
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total
Capital Securities General Retained | Equity Instru-
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings | ments through
Other Com-
prehensive
Income
Balance at the beginning of the period 5,522.35 2,778.57 8,906.41 (1,868.07) (437.21) 14,902.05
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - (860.80) - (860.80)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 0.29 (823.86) (823.57)
(net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (860.51) (823.86) (1,684.37)
Balance at the end of the period 5,522.35 2,778.57 8,906.41 (2,728.58) (1,261.07) 13,217.68
The accompanying notes to accounts forming an integral part
to the consolidated financial statements 1to 51
General information and significant accounting policies A-B

As per our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For ASHOK KHASGIWALA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No 000743C/0C400037)

CA Ashok Khasgiwala
Partner
Membership No. 070288

Mumbai, May 22, 2019

Narendra Shah
Executive Director
DIN 02143172

Ravindra Kumar Kakani
Chief Financial Officer

Ashish Mehta
Company Secretary

Krishna Das Gupta
Director
DIN 00374379

Mumbai, May 22, 2019
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Ruchi Infrastructure Limited

CIN: L65990MH1984PLC033878

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Membership No. 070288
Mumbai, May 22, 2019

R in lacs)
Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A Cash Flow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax (1,813.01) (1,305.36)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 2,183.73 2,408.81
Net (gain)/Loss on Sale of Property, plant & Equipment (61.05) (1,324.45)
Amounts charged directly to OCI (18.15) 0.44
Prepaid Lease Rentals 22.46 26.34
Government Grant Income (22.29) (34.68)
Provision for doubtful debts 1,121.28 1,421.21
Profit on sale of Investment (0.02) -
Interest Income (277.90) (128.01)
Dividend Income - (6.86)
Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign currency translation (218.11) (10.82)
Finance Costs 1,907.43 2,230.78
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2,824.37 3,277.40
Working Capital Adjustments
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 443.78 (153.02)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other receivables (461.35) 6,218.85
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and other payables (498.27) (5,545.55)
Cash Generated from operations 2,308.53 3,797.68
Income Tax Paid (279.73) (176.73)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,028.80 3,620.95
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (Including Capital WIP and (1,034.89) (1,174.42)
Capital advance)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 128.95 1,555.25
Purchase of Investment (16.61) (821.25)
Sale of Investment 2,121.31 -
Interest Income 28.69 170.27
Dividend Income - 6.86
Change in Bank Balances (158.21) (51.41)
B NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,069.24 (314.70)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings 375.00 -
Repayment of borrowings (2,370.39) (2,036.25)
Finance Costs (1,879.21) (2,254.72)
C NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,874.60) (4,290.97)
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (776.56) (984.72)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,074.87 2,059.59
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 298.31 1,074.87
Cash & Cash Equivalents comprises:
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 267.94 1,050.43
In Deposit Accounts 25.89 16.01
Cash on Hand 4.48 8.43
298.31 1,074.87
As per our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For ASHOK KHASGIWALA & CO. LLP Ravindra Kumar Kakani Narendra Shah
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Executive Director
(Firm Regn No 000743C/0C400037) DIN 02143172
CA Ashok Khasgiwala Ashish Mehta Krishna Das Gupta
Partner Company Secretary Director

DIN 00374379
Mumbai, May 22, 2019
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Notes

FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

100

General Information

Ruchi Infrastructure Ltd (the Company) is a Public Limited Company( CIN L65990MH1984PLC033878) incorporated on
28th August, 1984 in India under the provision of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at 706, Tulsiani
Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai- 400021. The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “the group”.
The consolidates financial statement as at March 31, 2019 presents the financial position of the group as well as its interest
in associate Company. The group is engaged in the business of infrastructure viz. storage of liquid commodities, Agri
Warehousing Facilities, Wind power generation, trading of various commodities and manufacturing of soap. Its equity
shares are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. ( NSE ) and BSE Ltd. (BSE).

The Company has the following subsidiaries :

Name of Subsidiary % age of Holding
i.  Peninsular Tankers Pvt Ltd : 100
ii.  Mangalore Liquid Imped Pvt Ltd : 98
iii.  Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt Ltd : 100

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i.  Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (“Ind
AS”) notified, under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the rules notified under the relevant
provisions of the Act.

ii.  Basis of Preparation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies mentioned below.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013. The Group has ascertained its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents.
Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Group’s functional currency.
All'amounts have been rounded to the nearest Rupees in lacs unless otherwise indicated.

iii. Use of Estimates, Judgments and Assumptions
The preparation of Consolidated financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle
of twelve months and other criteria set out in Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013.
Significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have significant
effect on amount recognized in the consolidated financial statements are:
i.  Allowance for bad and doubtful trade receivable.
ii.  Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies.
iii. Depreciation/ Amortisation and useful lives of Property, plant and equipment / Intangible Assets.
iv.  Recognition of deferred tax.
v.  Income Taxes.
vi. Measurement of defined benefit obligation.
vii. Impairment of Non-financial assets and financial assets.

iv. Revenue
Recognition
The Group recognises revenue i.e. account for a contract with a customer only when all of the following criteria are
met:
(@) the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other customary

business practices) and are committed to perform their respective obligations;

(b) the entity can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred;
(c) the entity can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;

(d)  the contract has commercial substance (ie the risk, timing or amount of the entity’s future cash flows is expected
to change as a result of the contract); and
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(e) it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the
goods or services that will be transferred to the customer. In evaluating whether collectability of an amount of
consideration is probable, an entity shall consider only the customer’s ability and intention to pay that amount
of consideration when it is due. The amount of consideration to which the entity will be entitled may be less
than the price stated in the contract if the consideration is variable because the entity may offer the customer
a price concession.

Measurement

When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the Group recognise as revenue the amount of the transaction price
(which excludes estimates of variable consideration that are constrained) that is allocated to that performance obligation.
The transaction price is the amount that the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring promised goods
or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, some taxes on sales). The
consideration promised may include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both.

i)

ii)

iiii)

vi.

Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer which is usually on dispatch / delivery
of goods, based on contracts with the customers. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the
contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government. Due
to the short nature of credit period given to customers, there is no financing component in the contract.
Sale of Services
Revenue from services rendered is recognised as the services are rendered and is booked based on agreements/
arrangements with the concerned parties.
Interest and Dividend
Interest income is recognized on accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised
in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s right to receive payment is established.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, except by-product/scrap is valued at net realizable
value. Cost of inventory is arrived at by using Moving Average Price Method. Cost of inventory is generally comprises
of cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.
Property, Plant and Equipment
a. Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Freehold land is measured at costs.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, acquisition or construction cost
including borrowing costs, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, initial estimate of the costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit or
loss.
b. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Group.
c. Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using Written down value method (WDV) on
depreciable amount as per the useful life of the assets in the manner as specified in Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013. The estimated useful life of assets and estimated residual value is taken as prescribed under
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation on additions during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to date of addition/
installation. Depreciation on assets disposed/discarded is charged up to the date on which such asset is sold.
The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each balance sheet
date, any changes therein are considered as changes in estimate and accordingly accounted for prospectively.
d. Biological Assets
Biological assets are classified as Bearer biological assets and Consumable biological assets. Bearer Biological
Assets which are held to bear agricultural produce are classified as Bearer plants. Consumable biological assets
are those that are to be harvested.

101



Notes

FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

vii.

viii.

102

Bearer plants are recognised under Property, Plant and Equipment on fulfilment of the following condition :
1. Is used in the production or supply of agricultural produce;
2. s expected to bear produce for more than one period; and has a remote likelihood of being sold as
agricultural produce, except for incidental scrap sales.
Promogranate Plants are recognised as Bearer biological assets. These are classified as mature Bearer Plants
and Immature Bearer Plants. Mature Bearer Plants are those that have attained harvestable stage. Cost incurred
for new plantations and immature areas are capitalised. Cost includes cost of land preparation, new planting
and maintenance till maturity. The cost of areas coming into bearing is transferred to mature plantations and
depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Promogranate Plants attain a harvestable stage in about 1.5 years.
Bearer biological assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any. Subsequent expenditure on bearer assets are added to its book value only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Mature bearer plants are depreciated over their estimated useful life. Immature bearer plants are tested
for impairment / obsolescence. The estimated useful life of mature bearer plants are approx.. 24 years.
e. Capital Work In progress
Assets under erection/installation are shown as “Capital work in progress”, Expenditure during construction
period are shown as “pre-operative expenses” to be capitalized on erection/installations of the assets.
Intangible Assets
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset
will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
Recognition and measurement
Computer softwares and Jetty rights have finite useful lives and are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands,
when incurred is recognised in statement of profit or loss.
Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss. Computer
software are amortised over their estimated useful life of 3 years. Jetty Rights are amortised over the life mentioned
in the agreement entered with Maritime
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if required.
Employee benefits
i.  Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
ii. Defined benefit plans
The liability for gratuity a defined benefit plan is determined annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.
The Group pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of service with the Group at the time
when the employee leaves the Group as per the payment of gratuity act 1972.
The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment
to the employees.
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to other comprehensive
income. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement
of profit and loss.
iii. Other employee benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of obligation
as at the Balance sheet date determined based on an actuarial valuation.
iv. Defined Contribution Plan
The Group’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognized as expenses during the period in which
the employees perform the services that payment covers. Defined contribution plan comprise of contribution
to the employees’ provident fund with government, Employees’ State Insurance and Pension Scheme.
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Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to other comprehensive income or a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity.
i.  Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the group:
a)  has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
ii. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which
is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability.
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured
reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on the same taxable entity.
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Difference arising on settlement of monetary items are recognised in statement
of profit and loss except to the extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs
on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets
which are capitalized as cost of assets..
Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange
rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Exchange
difference arising out of these transactions are generally recognised in statement of profit and loss.
Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till the date it is ready for its intended use or sale. qualifying asset are the
assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs
are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent includes the cash and Cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with bank and
other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Bank overdraft are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of financing
activities in the cash flow statement. Book overdraft are shown within other financial liabilities in the balance sheet
and forms part of operating activities in the cash flow statement.
Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effect of transactions
of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and items of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flow. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Group is segregated based on the available information.
Earning Per Share
i.  Basicearnings per shares is arrived at based on net profit/ (loss) after tax available to equity shareholders divided
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XV.

XVi.

Xvii.

xviii.

by Weighted average number of equity shares , adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the
year (if any) and excluding treasury shares.

ii.  Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit attributable to equity holders after tax divided by
Weighted average number of shares considered for basic earning per shares including potential dilutive equity
shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been
actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Potential
ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their conversion to ordinary shares would
decrease earnings per share or increase loss per share from continuing operations.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the

amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present

obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Group does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognized, but its existence is disclosed in the financial statements

Leases

As a Lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as finance lease or an operating lease. Leases under which the Group assumes

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. When acquired, such assets are

capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of lease, whichever is
lower. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve

a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs

in the statement of profit and loss.

Other leases are treated as operating leases, with payments are recognized as expense in the statement of profit and

loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

As a Lessor

Rental Income from operating leases is recognized on straight - line basis over the term of relevant lease. Where

the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Group’s

expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognized in the period in which such benefits accrue.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial asset or a

group of non-financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the amount of impairment

loss.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from

continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets is considered as

cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable amount. Losses

are recognized in statement of profit and loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Group considers

that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is

increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not

exceed the carrying amount that would have been in place had there been no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in

Statement of Profit and Loss, taking into account the normal depreciation/amortization.

Financial Instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign

exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and currency options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract.

i.  Financial assets
Classification
The Group classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories :



Notes

FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a. Those measured at amortised cost and

b.  Those measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through
profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

Allfinancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition

of the financial asset, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. Purchases or

sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial assets included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date

at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the

Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit

and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified

from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Financial Asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for financial asset. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for

categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the group company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost

or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a

measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in

the profit and loss.

Derecognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets)

is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

i.  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii.  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through” arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

iii. When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

iv. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, and bank balance.

b)  Trade receivables.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

i.  Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

ii.  For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities
Classification
The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be
subsequently measured at fair value.
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
or amortised costs.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the

initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,

fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as

well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs

that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit

and loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,

or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as

the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and

forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks,
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respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when,and
when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends either to settle then an a net
basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Measurement of fair values

The Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for financial instruments.
The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as
broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

xix. Government Grants

XX.

Government Grants and subsidies from Government are recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the

grant/subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Government grant received are

recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss on a systematic basis over the period in which the group recognizes as

expenses the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate.

Mandatory exceptions applied — Standard Issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116 Leases : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116

will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the

principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e.,

the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize

assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced

disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in

Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard

permits two possible methods of transition:

e Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

e Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized
at the date of initial application.

The group is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement- On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate

Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments,

curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

e to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period
after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

e  to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a
surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The group

does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate

Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while
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performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need
to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments,
that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the
most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach,
Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8
— Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively
with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without
adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The
Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the
date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The group is
currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the standalone financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments
to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions

or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The group is

currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the standalone financial statements.

XXI1) Basis of Consolidation

a) The Consolidated financial statements relate to Ruchi Infrastructure Ltd ( the Company) and its subdidiaries
and associates as under :

Entity Basis of Country of % age of % age of Share in
Consolidation | Incorporation | Shareholding of the Consolidated
Company Profit /( Loss)
Peninsular Tankers Pvt Ltd Subsidiary India 100 (2.15)
Mangalore Liquid Impex Pvt Ltd Subsidiary India 98 0.83
Ruchi Renewable Energy Pvt Ltd Subsidiary India 100 11.60
Narang & Ruchi Developers Associate India 90 0.03

b)  The consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 110 as notified under
rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounts ) Rules, 2014 in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
recognized accounting practices and policies on the following basis :

i)
i)
iii)
iv)
v)

vi)

vii)
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The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line to line basis
by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The financial statements of Associates have been consolidated using the Equity method of accounting.
Intragroup balances, intragroup transactions and resulting unrealized profits/lossess have been eliminated
in full.

Non controlling interest in the net assets of subsidiaries has been separately disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. Non controlling interest in income for the year has been separately disclosed in the
statement of profit and loss.

Figures pertaining to the subsidiaries and the partnership firm have been reclassified to bring them in line
with parent Company’s financial statements.

The excess of / shortfall in the cost to the Company of its investment over the Company’s portion of equity
as at the date of investment is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as goodwill / capital
reserve. The resultant goodwill , if any, is capitalized.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policy for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances.
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NOTE: 1 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment

& in lacs)
Particulars Freehold | Buildings | Plant & | Furniture | Vehicles | Office |(Biological| Total
land Equip- & Equip- | Assets
ment | Fixtures ment
a._Gross carrying amount
As at April 1, 2017 5,625.56| 2,992.51{12,702.51| 1,079.59 229.08 299.35 -122,928.60
Additions - 30.97 28.36 10.44 9.38 17.73 - 96.88
Deduction/Adjustments 187.24 19.52 35.53 0.48 2.17 0.24 -l 245.18
As at March 31, 2018 5,438.32| 3,003.96|12,695.34| 1,089.55 236.29| 316.84 -122,780.30
Additions - 163.50 408.89 1.89 48.36 9.18 25.02 656.84
Deduction/Adjustments 23.80 4.62 70.48 0.02 - 2.40 - 101.32
Transfer from / ( to) assets given on lease - 71.70] _ (36.71) - - - - 34.99
Less: Assets classified as held for sale 212.37 - - - - - -l 21237
(refer note 42)
As at March 31, 2019 5,202.15| 3,234.54/12,997.04| 1,091.42 284.65 323.62 25.02|23,158.44
b. Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
As at April 1, 2017 - 143.19| 1,668.51 73.39 72.51 23.55 -l 1,981.15
Depreciation charge for the year -l 153.95| 1,438.10]  263.00 52.87| 126.40 -| 2,034.32
Deduction/Adjustments - 1.37 11.46 0.09 1.34 0.12 - 14.38
As at March 31, 2018 - 295.77| 3,095.15 336.30 124.04 149.83 -| 4,001.09
Depreciation charge for the year -l 132.83]| 1,276.88| 195.91 32.76 77.79 0.34| 1,716.51
Deduction/Adjustments - 0.90 30.52 - - 2.00 - 33.42
Transfer from / ( to) assets given on lease -l (31.88)]  (32.68) - - - -l (64.56)
As at March 31, 2019 -l 395.82| 4,308.83 532.21 156.80] 225.62 0.34| 5,619.62
c. Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2018 5,438.32| 2,708.19| 9,600.19 753.25 112.25 167.01 -118,779.21
As at March 31, 2019 5,202.15| 2,838.72| 8,688.21 559.21 127.85 98.00 24.68|17,538.82
Assets Given on lease R in lacs)
Particulars Freehold | Buildings | Plant & | Furniture | Vehicles | Office |Biological| Total
land Equip- |& Fixtures Equip- | Assets
ment ment
a._Gross carrying amount
As at April 1, 2017 -| 7,550.35 248.11 - - - -l 7,798.46
Additions - - - - - - - -
Deduction/Adjustments - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2018 -l 7,550.35 248.11 - - - -| 7,798.46
Additions - 192.12 631.99 - - - - 824.11
Deduction/Adjustments - - - - - - - -
Transfer (to) / from own assets -l (71.70) 36.71 - - - - (34.99)
As at March 31, 2019 -| 7,670.77 916.81 - - - -| 8,587.58
b. Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
As at April 1, 2017 - 184.57 28.51 - - - - 213.08
Depreciation charge during the year - 336.34 17.72 - - - - 354.06
Deduction/Adjustments - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2018 - 520.91 46.23 - - - - 567.14
Depreciation charge for the year .| 337.87 118.76 - - - -l 456.63
Deduction/Adjustments - - - - - - - -
Transfer (to) / from own assets - 31.88 32.68 - - - - 64.56
As at March 31, 2019 - 890.66 197.67 - - - -l 1,088.33
c._Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2018 -l 7,029.44 201.88 - - - -l 7,231.32
As at March 31, 2019 - 6,780.11 719.14 - - - - 7,499.25
GRANT TOTAL (1 +11)
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2018 5,438.32| 9,737.63| 9,802.07 753.25 112.25 167.01 -126,010.53
As at March 31, 2019 5,202.15] 9,618.83| 9,407.35 559.21 127.85 98.00 24.68| 25,038.07
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B. Capital Work in Progress R in lacs)
Particulars Freehold | Buildings | Plant & | Furniture | Vehicles | Office |Biological| Total
land Equip- |& Fixtures Equip- | Assets
ment ment
As at April 1, 2017 - - 14212 - - - -l 14212
Additions - 127.30]  821.37 - - - 0.24] 94891
Less: Transfer to Property, Plant and - - - - - - - -
Equipment
As at March 31, 2018 -l 127.30]  963.49 - - - 0.24| 1,091.03
Additions - 71.93 401.56 - - - -l 47349
Less: Transfer to Property, Plant and - 67.39| 856.64 - - - 0.24| 924.27
Equipment
As at March 31, 2019 -l 131.84] 508.41 - - - .| 640.25
C. Intangible Assets R in lacs)
Particulars JETTY RIGHTS Computer Goodwill Total
Software
a. Gross carrying amount
As at April 1, 2017 293.79 - 1,615.45 1,909.24
Additions - 5.93 - 5.93
Deduction/Adjustments
As at March 31, 2018 293.79 5.93 1,615.45 1,915.17
Additions - 4.40 - 4.40
Deduction/Adjustments - - - -
As at March 31, 2019 293.79 10.33 1,615.45 1,919.57
b. Accumulated Amortisation
As at April 1, 2017 127.33 - - 127.33
Amortisation charged for the year 20.21 0.22 - 20.43
Deduction/Adjustments - - - -
As at March 31, 2018 147.54 0.22 - 147.76
Amortisation charged for the year 7.12 3.47 - 10.59
Deduction/Adjustments - - - -
As at March 31, 2019 154.66 3.69 - 158.35
c. Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2018 146.25 5.71 1,615.45 1,767 .41
As at March 31, 2019 139.13 6.64 1,615.45 1,761.22

Note: 1. Refer Note no 17 for details of Property, Plant, Machinery pledged.
2. The ownership of jetty ¥ 293.79 lacs (At Cost) (previous year X 293.79 lacs) rests with the Gujarat Maritime Board.

3. The title deeds in respect of 0.789 acre of freehold land (cost as per books ¥ 423.27 lacs as at 31st March 2019,
Previous Year ¥ 423.27 lacs situated at 40-41, East Madha Church Street, Royapuram, Chennai - 600013 are still in
the name of M/s. Kay Am Processors and M/s. Venkateswara Warehousing Corporation, being partnership firms in
which the Company has acquired 100 % ownership in the year 2003.

4. The Company’s storage tank terminal at Haldia is located on 10117 Sq Mtrs of land leased from Kolkatta Port Trust,
Haldia Dock Complex (“HDC"). The lease of the said plot expired on 15th March 2018. The Company has written
to the HDC asking them to renew the lease and the same is under process.

5. The Company has purchased 42.97 acre of land (cost as per books ¥ 1190.25 lacs as at March 31, 2019,
31190.25 lacs as at March 31, 2018) at Industrial Park, Pantapalam, A.P on January 1, 2015 from Andhra Pradesh
Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Ltd (“APIICL”). Due to alleged non compliance of certain terms and conditions
of the allotment, APIICL has cancelled the allotment of the land and has asked the Company to surrender the
land. The Company has filed a writ petition in the Andhra Pradesh High Court, Hyderabad against the demand for
surrender of the land.

6. There was no borrowing cost to the capitalised during the year (Previous year Nil)
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Particulars

NOTE: 2 - NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

A Investment in Equity Instruments - Other than in subsidiary, associate and

Joint Venture companies

(Measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

(a) Quoted

i) 13,71,800 (previous year 13,71,800) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each

fully paid up in National Steel & Agro Industries Ltd.

ii) 11,700 (previous year 11,700) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid

up in Ruchi Strips & Alloys Ltd.

iii) 2,59,625 (previous year 82,59,625) Equity Shares of ¥ 2/- each fully

paid up in Ruchi Soya Industries Ltd.

As at
March 31, 2019

R in lacs)

As at
March 31, 2018

Total

(b) Unquoted

i) Nil (previous year 7,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid

up in Ruchi Acroni Industries Ltd.

ii) Nil (previous year 1,25,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid

up in Ruchi Global Ltd.

iii) Nil (previous year 10,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up

in Union Infrastructure Solutions Pvt Ltd.

Total

Total

B Investment in Preference Shares (measured at Amortised cost)

Unquoted

i) 2,00,000 (previous year 2,00,000) 6% Redeemable Non convertible
cumulative Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each fully paid up in Ruchi Soya

Industries Ltd. (refer note 37)

ii) Nil (previous year 5,70,000) 6% Non Convertible Redeemable cumulative
Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up in Ruchi Realty Holdings Ltd.

Total

C Investments in Other Structured Entities

Investment in Partnership Firm (refer note no. 38)

Total

Total

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - Cost

Aggregate provision for diminution in value of unquoted investments

76.68 395.08
0.22 0.21
17.24 1,309.15
94.14 1,704.44

- 320.38

- 140.14

- 460.52

94.14 2,164.96
200.00 200.00

- 792.56

200.00 992.56
972.62 956.01
972.62 956.01
1,266.76 4,113.53
94.14 1,704.44
1,172.62 1,948.57
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R in lacs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

NOTE: 3 - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRENT

Interest Accrued but not due

On Fixed Deposits With Bank

Balance with Banks in Deposit Accounts having maturity over 12 months
(Earmarked as security for Guarantees issued by Bank)

NOTE: 4 - DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Deferred Tax Assets

On account of provision for doubtful debts

On account of Carry forward of Business Losses

On account of Fair Valuation of Investments

On account of defined employee benefit plan

On account of other timing differences

Total Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Liabilities

On Depreciation between book depreciation and tax depreciation

On account of fair valuation of investment

On account of defined employee plan

Total - Deferred Tax Liabilities

Net tax assets/(Liabilities)

29.47 22.05
650.71 382.33
680.18 404.38
953.78 766.14

59.70 -

58.39 -

4.90 -
12.89 13.21
1,089.66 779.35
257.27 282.12

- 20.68

- 0.14

257.27 302.94
832.39 476.41

(i) The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

(i) Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and
liabilities and recoverability of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on
estimates of taxable income by each jurisdiction in which the relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred

income tax assets will be recovered.

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

NOTE: 5 - OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Capital Advances

Balance with Government Authorities

Advance Income-Tax (Net of Provision)

Prepaid Lease rentals

Others

NOTE: 6 - INVENTORIES

Raw Materials (including packing material)

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stock-in-Trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading) (refer note 36)

343.19 342.87
25.30 25.29
1,481.43 1,216.79
618.85 637.42
0.39 0.39
2,469.16 2,222.76
24.33 20.67
1.87 3.71
12.31 6.18
1,098.74 1,550.47
1,137.25 1,581.03

I) Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, except by products/scrap, which are valued at net

realisable value

ii)  The cost of inventories recognised as an expense include nil (previous year nil) in respect of written down of inventory to

net realisation value.
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Particulars

NOTE: 7 - CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Unquoted

Investment in Mutual Fund (Designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income [FVTOCI]

Nil Mutual Fund (previous year 1,00,000) units of Rs 10 each in IDBI Midcap Fund

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - cost

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

NOTE: 8 — TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Credit impaired

Have significant credit risk

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts/expected credit loss

NOTE: 9 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with Banks

i) In Current Accounts

ii) In Deposit Accounts with less than or equal to 3 months maturity

Cheques, drafts on hand

Cash on hand

NOTE: 10 - BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Dividend Accounts earmarked

In Deposit Accounts with

Original Maturity less than or equal to 12 months (earmarked)

NOTE: 11 - LOANS

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)

Security Deposits

Loans

NOTE: 12 — OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT

Other Receivables *

Interest Accrued but not due

On Fixed Deposits with Banks

On Other deposits

* (Refer Note 35)

NOTE: 13 — OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advance against supply

Balance with Government Authorities

Other receivable **

Prepaid lease rentals

** Represents prepaid expenses, advance to employees, etc

R in lacs)

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

- 11.46
- 11.46

- 10.00

839.56 3,381.35
3,865.69 2,312.85
439.98 -
5,145.23 5,694.20
3,434.12 2,312.85
1,711.11 